
CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
Electronic Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 

Monday, December 21, 2020 
7:00 p.m. 

The City Council will be conducting a meeting of the Grosse Pointe Woods City Council by 
video (Zoom) and telephone conference in accordance with the City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
City Council resolution adopted May 4, 2020. This notice is being provided to ensure that 
those wishing to participate in the meeting have an opportunity to do so. Additional 
instructions are listed below. 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://zoom.us/j/92653990787?pwd=Z3NNSmVGK3BuQ1RoRXIxS1NkTmF0UT09 

Meeting ID: 926 5399 0787 
Passcode: 279033 

Join by phone: 
Dial by your location 

   888 788 0099 US Toll-free 
        877 853 5247 US Toll-free 
Meeting ID: 926 5399 0787 
Passcode: 279033 

Facilitator’s Statement 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA

4. APPOINTMENTS A. Council Appointments - Commission/Board/Committee
1. Citizens Recreation Commission

a. Reappointments (3)
2. Board of Review

a. Reappointments (2)
b. Vacancy (1)

3. Building Authority Committee
a. Reappointment (1)

B. Council Appointments – Council Members to
Boards/Organizations

1. Pension Board
2. Grosse Pointes – Clinton Refuse Disposal Authority

a. Representative
3. Wayne County Community Development Advisory

Council
a. Representative
b. Alternate
c. Planning Committee

4. Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments

https://zoom.us/j/92653990787?pwd=Z3NNSmVGK3BuQ1RoRXIxS1NkTmF0UT09


5. MINUTES A.
B. 
 
 
 
C. 
D. 

Council 12/07/20 
Committee-of-the-Whole 12/07/20, 12/14/20, 
w/recommendation: 

1. Audit-FY Ending 06/30/20 CAFR and Municipal 
Court Financial Statement 

Citizens Recreation Commission 11/10/20 
Tree Commission 11/04/20 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS A. Fence Variance: Joseph Jarackas, 1971 Oxford 
1. Letter 10/29/20, w/neighbor’s signatures – J. 

Jarackas 
2. Revised Application for Fence Rec’d 12/15/20 
3. Contract/Fence Plan 07/28/20 – Michigan Fence 
4. Photo 
5. Fence Requirements Enforcement 10/13/20 
6. Memo 12/02/20 – Building Official 
7. Photos (2) 
8. Memo 12/02/20 – Director of Public Services 
9. Affidavit of Property Owners Notified 
10. Aerial Views (2) 

  
  B. Fence Variance: Jay Pilotto, 1201 Fairholme 

1. Letter 11/18/20 – J. Pilotto 
2. Letter 07/05/20 – J. and S. Pilotto 
3. Letter 05/19/20 – J. and S. Pilotto 
4. Letter 07/02/20 – Building Inspector 
5. Letter 05/08/20 – Building Inspector 
6. Ticket No. 258611 07/10/20 
7. Application for Fence 05/29/20 
8. Photos (3) 
9. Fence Enforcements 05/08/20, 07/10/20 
10. Memo 12/11/20 – Building Official 
11. Photos (6) 
12. Memo 12/15/20 – Director of Public Services 
13. Affidavit of Property Owners Notified 
14. Aerial Views (2) 

 
  C. Fence Variance: Jay Pilotto, 1221 Fairholme 

1. Letter 11/18/20 – J. Pilotto 
2. Letter 07/05/20 – J. and S. Pilotto 
3. Letter 07/02/20 – Building Inspector 
4. Letter 05/08/20 – Building Inspector 
5. Ticket No. 248610 07/10/20 
6. Application for Fence 05/29/20 
7. Photos (2) 
8. Memo 12/11/20 – Building Official 
9. Photos (6) 
10. Memo 12/15/20 – Director of Public Services 
11. Affidavit of Property Owners Notified 



12. Aerial Views (2) 
 

7. COMMUNICATIONS A. Budget Amendment – I. T. Technician 
1. Memo 12/14/20 – City Administrator 
2. Council Excerpt 12/15/19 

 
  B. Monthly Financial Report – November 2020 

 
8. BIDS/PROPOSALS/ 

CONTRACTS 
A. Supplemental Agreement: Military Leave Second 

Extension – Brian Conigliaro 
1. Memo 11/25/20 – Director of Public Safety 
2. Council Excerpt 06/01/20, 04/01/19 
3. Supplemental Agreement 

 
9. ORDINANCE A. First Reading: An Ordinance To Amend Chapter 8 

buildings and Building Regulations, Article XVI 
Emergency Electrical Generators, To Modify Sec 8-463 
Permanent Location, To Allow Side Yard Placement 
Based on Certain Requirements 

1. Letter 12/15/20 – City Attorney 
2. Proposed Ordinance 

 
10. CLAIMS/ACCOUNTS A. 2020 Concrete Pavement and Parking Repair Program 

1. L. Anthony Construction Pay Estimate No. 3 
11/29/20 - $180,450.58. 

  B. 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 
1. Fontana Construction Pay Estimate No. 6 11/29/20 

– 9,450.40. 
  C. Bournemouth Water Main Replacement 

1. Fontana Construction Pay Estimate No. 4 11/29/20 
- $54,217.65. 

  D. City Engineer – Anderson, Eckstein & Westrick 
1. Engineering Plan Review/Public Utility/Row 

Inspection Invoice No. 0128650 11/17/20 - 
$480.20. 

  E. Auditing Services 
1. Plante Moran Invoice 1928851 11/30/20 - 

$10,795.00. 
  F. FOIA Attorney 

1. McGraw Morris P.C. Statement No. 7377 
12/04/20 - $927.50. 

  G. Professional Services 
1. Hallahan & Assoc. P.C. Invoice No. 17914 

11/30/20 - $100.28. 
  H. Professional Services 

1. Rosati, Schultz, Joppich & Amtsbuechler P.C. 
Invoice No. 1074839 12/09/20 - $2,325.00. 

  I. Labor Attorney 



1. Keller Thoma Invoice No. 119615 12/01/20 - 
$3,088.75. 

  J. City Attorney 
1. Charles T. Berschback November Billing 11/30/20 

– $11,082.50. 
 
11.    NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
12.    ADJOURNMENT 

Lisa Kay Hathaway, MiPMC-3/MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLIC ACT 267 (OPEN MEETINGS ACT)  
POSTED AND COPIES GIVEN TO NEWSPAPERS 

 
The City of Grosse Pointe Woods will provide necessary, reasonable auxiliary aids and services to 
individuals with disabilities. Closed captioning and audio will be provided for all electronic meetings. All 
additional requests must be made in advance of a meeting.   
 
Instructions for meeting participation 
 

1. To join through Zoom: The meeting may be joined by clicking on the link provided on the agenda 
at the start time posted on the agenda, enter the meeting identification number, and password. Zoom 
may provide a couple of additional instructions for first time use. As an alternative to using the 
link, accessibility to the meeting may be obtained by using the browser at join.zoom.us. If having 
trouble logging in, try a different browser e.g. Chrome.  
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/92653990787?pwd=Z3NNSmVGK3BuQ1RoRXIxS1NkTmF0UT09 

 
Meeting ID: 926 5399 0787 
Passcode: 279033 

 
2. Join by telephone: Dial the toll-free conferencing number provided and enter the meeting 

identification number, and password. Dial *9 to be heard under Public Comment. 
 

Phone Numbers 
Dial by your location 

         888 788 0099 US Toll-free 
         877 853 5247 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID: 926 5399 0787 
Passcode: 279033 
 

In an effort to alleviate feedback and disruption of the meeting, choose one of the media options, either 
phone or Zoom, not both. 
 
Meeting notices are posted on the City of Grosse Pointe Woods website home page at www.gpwmi.us and 
the on-line calendar, both containing a link to the agenda. The agenda contains all pertinent information 
including business to be conducted at the meeting, a hyperlink to participate using Zoom, and call-in 

https://zoom.us/j/92653990787?pwd=Z3NNSmVGK3BuQ1RoRXIxS1NkTmF0UT09
http://www.gpwmi.us/


telephone number with necessary meeting identification, and a password. Agendas will also be posted on 
six (6) City bulletin boards along Mack Avenue. 
 
The following are procedures by which persons may contact members of the public body to provide input 
or ask questions: 

1. To assist with meeting flow and organization, all public comment will be taken at the end of the 
meeting unless it is moved to a different location on the agenda upon a consensus of the City 
Council; 

2. The phone-in audience, when making public comment please state your name (optional) when 
called upon; 

3. Audience participants will be muted upon entry and will have a chance to speak during 
the public comment portion of the meeting at the end of the agenda, at which time the 
microphones will be unmuted.  

4. Those joining by Zoom will also be muted and may use the virtual raised “hand” to 
request to be heard under Public Comment.  

5. Those joining by telephone need to dial in using the phone number provided on the 
agenda. When prompted, enter the meeting number and the password also located on the 
agenda. Dial *9 to be heard under Public Comment. 

6. The published agenda invites participants from the community to provide written 
questions, comments, and concerns in advance of the meeting to any Elected Official or 
the City Clerk regarding relevant City business and may be read under Public Comment. 
Emails may be sent to: 
 

Mayor Robert E. Novitke mayornovitke@comcast.net  586 899-2082 
Art Bryant, Council Member arthurwbryant@gmail.com  313 885-2174 
Ken Gafa, Council Member kgafa@comcast.net  313 580-0027 
Vicki Granger, Council Member grangergpw@aol.com  313 640-5250 
Mike Koester, Council Member koester.gpw@gmail.com  313 655-4190 
Todd McConaghy, Council Member todd.mcconaghygpw@yahoo.com  248 765-0628 
George McMullen, Council Member george@grmcmullen.net 313 549-6363 
Lisa Hathaway, City Clerk lhathaway@gpwmi.us 313 343-2447 

 
 
You may contact Lisa Hathaway, City Clerk, at lhathaway@gpwmi.us should you have any questions prior 
to the meeting starting. 

NOTE TO PETITIONERS:  YOU, OR A REPRESENTATIVE, ARE REQUESTED TO BE IN ATTENDANCE AT THE 
MEETING SHOULD COUNCIL HAVE QUESTIONS REGARDING YOUR REQUEST 

mailto:mayornovitke@comcast.net
mailto:arthurwbryant@gmail.com
mailto:kgafa@comcast.net
mailto:grangergpw@aol.com
mailto:koester.gpw@gmail.com
mailto:todd.mcconaghygpw@yahoo.com
mailto:george@grmcmullen.net
mailto:lhathaway@gpwmi.us
mailto:lhathaway@gpwmi.us


MEMO 
TO: 	Lisa Hathaway 

FROM: 	Gretchen Miotto 

RE: 	Citizen Re-Appointments to Commission and Boards 

DATE: 	12/14/20 

Mayoral — shaded 	Council Appointment — unshaded 

Appointed by Authority Commission/Board Name Address 
Mayor City Code Sec. 2- 

501; 3-yr 
staggered term, 
15 members 

Beautification Advisory 
Commission 

Stewart, Marlin 2145 Stanhope 

GPW, Ml 48236 

Arslanian, Gloria 2000 Hunt Club 
GPW, Ml 48236 

Casinelli, Mary 20085 Marford Ct. 
GPW, Ml 48236 

Miller, Janet 596 N. Brys 
GPW, Ml 48236 

Spreder, Lisa 1440 Yorktown 

GPW, Ml 48236 

VACANCIES (4) 
Council By-Laws; 9 

members, 3-yr 
staggered terms 

Citizens' Recreation 
Commission 

Janutol, Barbara 1708 Aline 
GPW, MI 48236 

Coletti Brown, Angela 672 Birch Lane 
GPW, MI 48236 

Heim, Gib 1219 Brys Dr. 
GPW, MI 48236 



Appointed by Authority Commission/Board Name Address 
Mayor By-Laws,! I 

members, 3-yr 
staggered terms; 
Sec. 2-380 

Community Tree 
Commission 

Lechner, Paul 898 Anita Ave. 

GPW, Ml 48236 

Butler, Timothy 703 Pear Tree Lane 

GPW, Ml 48236 

Galbo, Maria 938 S. Renaud 

GPW, Ml 48236 

Rennpage, Randy 521 Roslyn Rd. 

GPW, Ml 48236 

VACANCY 
Council Section 3-13 City 

Charter 
Election Commission NONE 

Mayor Council 
Resolution 8-20- 
79, By Laws,;Sec. 
2-494; 3-yr. 
staggered term, 
11 members 

Historical Commission Hartert, Shirley 
GPW, MI 48236  

1930 Lancaster Ave. 

Listman, Stephanie 979 Briarcliff 
GPW, MI 48236 

Wilborn, Giles 2110 Fleetwood 
GPW, MI 48236 

Mayor City Code 2-406, 
5-yr staggered 
term, 5 members 

Local Officers' 
Compensation 
Commission 

NONE 

Mayor Section 2-441a 
City Charter, 3- 
yr. staggered 
term, 9 members 

Planning Commission Bailey, George 
GPW, MI 48236  

1155 Hampton 

Fuller, Michael 1230 North Renaud 
GPW, MI 48236 

Hamborsky, Douglas 19982 Clairview Ct. E. 
GPW, MI 48236 



Appointed by Authority Commission/Board Name Address 
Mayor 11 members, 9- 

general community-
3-yr terms, 2-senior 
groups & 
community interest 
— 1 yr. terms 

Senior Citizens' 
Commission 

Wehrmann, Ronald 2041 Norwood 
GPW, MI 48236 

Stander, David M. 20501 Van K Dr. 
GPW, MI 48236 

Community Interest Rep Beeby, Sharon 4186 Wabeek Lake Dr. 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 
48302 

HELM Life Center Rep Uhlig-Johnstone, 
Heidi 

158 Ridge Rd 
GPF, Ml 48236 

VACANCIES (2) 
Council MCL 211.29 Sec. 

28 (2) (3), 3-yr. 
staggered terms 

Board of Review Cerwin, Theresa 
(Alternate) 

1489 Dorthen 
GPW, MI 48236 

McLellan, Jan 
Ryndress 

1617 S. Renaud Rd. 
GPW, MI 48236 

VACANCY 
Mayor 

M.C.L. 125.1514, 
3-7 members, 2- 
yr. staggered terms 

Construction Board of 
Appeals 

Morrisett, Donald 749 Roslyn 
GPW, MI 48236 

Vitale, John A. 20771 Wedgewood 
GPW, MI 48236 

Mayor City Code Sec. 
44-230c 

Downspout Board of 
Appeals 

NONE 

Mayor Section 2-286, 
City Code 
"Retirement 
System" 

Pension Board NONE 

Council Articles of 
Incorporation of 
1992, 3-yr. 
staggered terms, 3 
members 

Building Authority 
Committee 

Dickinson, Allen 1782 Hollywood 
GPW, Ml 48236 



COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 165 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF THE CITY OF GROSSE POINTE 
WOODS HELD REMOTELY ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 7, 2020. 

The Facilitator's statement was read. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:16 p.m. by Mayor Novitke. 

Roll Call*: 	Mayor Novitke 
Council Members: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy (Southfield, MI), McMullen 
Absent: 	 None 
(*Unless specifically identified otherwise, Council Members attended remotely from Grosse Pointe Woods, MI.) 

Also Present: City Administrator Smith 
City Attorney Berschback 
City Clerk Hathaway 
Deputy Treasurer/Comptroller Murphy 
Director of Public Safety Kosanke 
Director of Public Services Schulte 
Building Official Tutag 
Deputy City Clerk/Facilitator Antolin 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Gafa, that all items on tonight's agenda be received, placed on file, 
and taken in order of appearance. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by McConaghy, regarding appointment — Treasurer/Comptroller, 
that the City Council approve the Employment Agreement as presented, and amended by the City 
Attorney, appointing Shawn Murphy as the City's Treasurer/Comptroller effective December 7, 
2020. 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by McConaghy, to amend the previous motion by inserting, "and 
authorize the Mayor to sign." 

1 



COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 166 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by Gafa, seconded by Bryant, that the following minutes be approved as submitted: 

1. City Council Minutes dated November 16, 2020; 
2. City Council Minutes dated November 23, 2020. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Koester, regarding City Attorney Appointments, that the City 
Council concur with the Committee-of-the-Whole at their meeting held November 23, 2020, and 
engage the two firms of Rosati, Schultz, Joppich & Amtsbuechler PC and York, Dolan & 
Tomlinson PC as the City Attorneys for the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, and to authorize the 
Mayor to sign the Retention for Legal Services Agreements that have been submitted by those 
firms, respectively dated November 11, 2020, and November 6, 2020, as amended. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Koester, that the following minutes be approved as submitted: 

1. Committee-of-the-Whole Minutes dated November 16, 2020; 
2. Committee-of-the-Whole Minutes dated November 23, 2020. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

2 



COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 167 

THE MEETING WAS THEREUPON OPENED AT 7:26 P.M. FOR A PUBLIC HEARING TO 
HEAR THE REQUEST OF VENTZEL POTOCHNIK, 1584 HUNTINGTON, GROSSE POINTE 
WOODS, WHO IS REQUESTING TO INSTALL A PERMANENT GENERATOR IN THE 
REAR YARD AT A DISTANCE OF 9' FROM THE PROPERTY LINE. THIS REQUEST IS 
NONCOMPLAINT WITH SECTION 8-463, WHICH REQUIRES A PERMANENT 
GENERATOR BE PLACED BEHIND THE HOUSE AT A MINIMUM 15' FROM THE 
PROPERTY LINE. A VARIANCE IS THEREFORE REQUIRED. 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Gafa, that for purposes of the public hearing, the following items 
be received and placed on file: 

1. Letter 10/16/20 — Ventzel J. Potochnik 
2. Generator Application 08/26/20 
3. Electrical Permit 
4. Mechanical Permit 
5. Photos (2) and site rendering 
6. BS&A Image/Sketch for Parcel 
7. Home Generator Unit Placement Approval 10/13/20 — Mark Criger, 1570 Huntington 
8. 14RCA Kohler Generator and Power Systems Specifications 
9. Memo 11/03/20 — Building Official 
10. Photos (2) 
11. Affidavit of Property Owners Notified 
12. Aerial View 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

The Building Official provided an overview of his memo dated November 3, 2020. 

The Chair asked if anyone from the audience wished to speak in favor of the proposed request. 
The following individual was heard: 

Ventzel Potochnik 
1584 Huntington 

The Chair asked if anyone from the audience wished to speak in opposition to the proposed request. 
No one wished to be heard. 

3 



COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 168 

Motion by McMullen, seconded by Gafa, that the public hearing be closed at 7:31 p.m. PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

Motion by Gafa, seconded by McConaghy, regarding Public Hearing: Generator — Ventzel 
Potochnik, 1584 Huntington, that the City Council approve the generator variance as proposed based 
upon the following: 

1 	Upon review of the property and meeting with the homeowner, locating the generator in 
compliance with code would be difficult due to the backyard brick patio; 

2. The proposed location will have no adverse impact on surrounding residences as the proposed 
generator will be screened and not be visible from the street; 

3. Conditioned upon the general installation be completed within six months. 

Motion by Gafa, seconded by McConaghy, to amend the previous motion by inserting, "4. Proper 
shielding from the street be maintained." 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by McConaghy, seconded by Bryant, regarding Public Hearing: Fence Variance -
Joseph Jarackas, 1971 Oxford, that the City Council postpone this public hearing to the City 
Council Meeting to be held on December 21, 2020. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by McConaghy, regarding Amendment to Water Service Contract —
Great Lakes Water Authority, that the City Council approve Amendment No. 4 to the Water 
Service Contract between Great Lakes Water Authority and the City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
changing the max day usage value to 3.36 MGD and the peak hour usage value to 4.29 MGD; and, 
authorize the City Administrator to sign said contract. 

4 



COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 169 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by McConaghy, seconded by Gafa, regarding Memorandum of Understanding Between 
Wayne County Department of Health, Human & Veterans Services and City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods Regarding Mass Prophylaxis Dispensing Closed Point of Dispensing (POD), that the City 
Council enter into an Agreement with Wayne County and to authorize the City Administrator to sign 
the Agreement. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by McMullen, seconded by Gafa, regarding Wayne County Annual Permits (2), that the 
City Council adopt the Annual Wayne County Permit Resolutions for Maintenance and Special 
Events, name Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services, as the Community's authorized 
representative to sign the permits, and authorize the City Clerk to certify and forward documents to 
Wayne County. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Motion by Granger, seconded by McConaghy, regarding Claims/Accounts, that the City Council 
approve payment of Items 9A — 9G as listed on the Council agenda and as identified in the pink sheet 
in the respective amounts and accounts listed, as follows: 

A. Assessing Services 
1. WCA Invoice No. 11202020 11/20/20 - $6,258.25; Account No. 

101-224-818.000. 
B. Robert E. Novitke Municipal Center Generator 

1. Motor City Electric Co Pay Application No. 1 11/16/20 - 
$52,047.00; Account No. 420-902-977.101. 
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COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 170 

C. 	City Engineer — Anderson, Eckstein & Westrick, Inc. 
1. Bournemouth W/M Replacement Invoice No. 0128399 11/04/20 -

$3,003.25; Account No. 592-537-977.310. 
2. 2020/21 GIS Maintenance Invoice No. 0128470 11/05/20 - 

$3,687.00; 592-537-977.000. 
3. Vernier Rd. Resurfacing — Fairway to ECL Invoice No. 0128641 

11/17/20 - $428.00; 202-451-974.803. 
4. 2019 Sewer Structure Rehabilitation Invoice No. 0128642 11/17/20 

- $254,50: 
a. Account No. 202-451-974.201 - $2.55; 
b. Account No. 203-451-974.201 - $48.35; 
c. Account No. 592-537-975.401 - $33.09; 
d. Account No. 592-537-976.001 - $170.51. 

5. 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program Invoice No. 0128643 
11/17/20 - $548.25; Account No. 592-537-976.001. 

6. Beaufait Rd Reconstruct-Mack to WCL Invoice No. 0128644 
11/17/20 - $196.00: 

a. Account No. 202-451-974.201 - $15.68; 
b. Account No. 203-451-977.803 - $131.32; 
c. Account No. 203-451-974.201 - $13.72; 
d. Account No. 592-537-975.401 - $35.28. 

7. LFPark Vehicular Bridge Replacement Invoice No. 0128646 
11/17/20 - $3,739.80; Account No. 401-903-977.109. 

8. REN Complex Generator Invoice No. 0128647 11/17/20 -
$1,761.40; Account No. 420-451-974.201. 

9. 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program Invoice No. 0128648 
11/17/20 - $18,197.50: 

a. Account No. 202-451-974.201 - $3,457.53; 
b. Account No. 203-451-974.201 - $2,183.70; 
c. Account No. 585-561-978.300 - $9,098.75; 
d. Account No. 592-537-975.401 - $3,457.52. 

10. Sewer Rehab-Lining Invoice No. 0128649 11/17/20 - $413.26; 
Account No. 592-537-976.001. 

11. 2020/21 General Engineering Invoice No. 0128659 11/18/20 -
$2,548.25: 

a. Account No. 101-441-818.000 - $849.42; 
b. Account No. 101-444-818.000 - $849.42; 
c. Account No. 592-537-818.000 - $849.41. 
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COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 171 

D. AT&T Cell Tower Renewal - Kitch Drutchas Wagner Valitutti & 
Sherbrook 

1. Invoice No. 478414 08/31/20 - $604.75; Account No. 101-210-
812.000. 

2. Invoice No. 480664 09/30/20 - $2,070.00; Account No. 101-210-
812.000. 

3. Invoice No. 483423 10/31/20 - $2,100.00; Account No. 101-210-
812.000. 

E. 	FOIA Matters 
1. McGraw Morris PC Statement No. 7290 11/04/20 - $350.00; 

Account No. 101-210-801.00. 
F. 	Labor Attorney — Keller Thoma 

1. Invoice No. 119411 11/01/20 - $4,408.11; Account No. 101-210-
810.000. 

2. Invoice No. 119414 11/01/20 - $437.50; Account No. 101-210-
810.000. 

G. Professional Services 
1. Rosati, Schultz, Joppich & Amtsbuechler Invoice No. 1074716 

11/12/20 - $1,250.00; Account No. 101-210-801.300. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by McConaghy, to amend the previous motion by removing Item 
9F2." 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Hearing no objections, the following item was heard under New Business: 
• The City Administrator requested to be heard regarding the purchase of in-car and body 

cameras for the Department of Public Safety, as discussed earlier this evening at the 
Committee-of-the-Whole. 

Motion by McMullen, seconded by McConaghy, to authorize the purchase of in-car and body 
cameras in the amount of $181,195.16 as outlined in the Director of Public Safety's memo dated 
November 30, 2020. 

7 



COUNCIL 
12-07-20 - 172 

Motion by McMullen, seconded by McConaghy, to amend the previous motion by inserting, "and 
authorize the City Administrator to sign." 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

• Council Member McConaghy requested that a Charter Amendment regarding City 
Administrator be discussed at a future Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting. The Mayor 
requested the City Clerk to place this item on a future Committee-of-the-Whole. 

Nobody wished to be heard under Public Comment. 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by McConaghy, to adjourn tonight's meeting at 7:49 p.m. PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Kay Hathaway 	 Robert E. Novitke 
City Clerk 	 Mayor 
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COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE 
12-07-20 - 41 	.573  

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE OF THE CITY OF 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS HELD REMOTELY ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 7, 2020. 

The Facilitator's statement was presented. 

PRESENT*: 	Mayor Novitke 
Council Members Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy 
(Southfield, MI), McMullen 

ABSENT: 	 None 
(*Unless specifically identified otherwise, Council Members attended remotely from Grosse Pointe Woods, 
MI.) 

ALSO PRESENT: City Administrator Smith 
City Attorney Berschback 
City Clerk Hathaway 
Director of Public Safety Kosanke 
Director of Public Services Schulte 
Deputy Treasurer/Comptroller Murphy 
Facilitator/Deputy City Clerk Antolin 

Mayor Novitke called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Koester, that all items on tonight's agenda be received, 
placed on file, and taken in order of appearance. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Discussion ensued regarding a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between 
Wayne County Department of Health, Human & Verterans Service and City of 
Grosse Pointe Woods Regarding Mass Prophylaxis Dispensing Closed Point of 
Dispensing (POD). Director Kosanke provided an overview. He stated in order to receive 
vaccines, this MOU would have to be in place and it is not specific to only COVID-19. If 
vaccines are delivered to the County, the City will pick up the vaccines to vaccinate 
employees and families. The City will be contacted by the County as it evolves and when 
further instructions and information comes available as the. 

The Mayor had a number of concerns regarding whether the City has any obligations when 
we receive something, does insurance cover liability, what is it, will waivers be signed by 
people receiving vaccinations, and who will dispense it. 

Council Member McMullen inquired whether once received, would the City have any 
latitude for dispensing vaccines. The Director stated the County has not given any strict 
guidelines. The Director stated two first responders have tested positive for COVID, and 
we need to ensure City services continue. 
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The Mayor stated the City will have to follow the direction of the Michigan Health 
Department. The Director stated he will receive direction from the County. The vaccines 
require refrigeration. Two credentialed employees will be trained as vaccinators to 
administer the vaccines. Employees and families will sign up. The Community Center is 
able to accommodate one-way foot traffic and has refrigeration. He does not know 
whether people that have already had COVID will receive a vaccine. The Director stated 
that when the vaccine is ready to be received, the process will move fast, and the MOU 
needs to be approved. 

The Mayor asked the City Attorney about waivers and exposure to liability. The City 
Attorney stated where there is a State declared emergency by MDHHS, or a federally 
declared emergency, which is the case, there will be statutory protections and in some 
respects immunity. For COVID we can take advantage of that. When not a declared 
emergency we will have insurance through the insurance company. There is no specific 
exclusion. The City is covered and there is no high-level of risk as proven based on the 
H1N1 scare. This is a 5-year agreement and the City's insurance policy will need to be 
reviewed in the future. He is comfortable with it as is. The City is not absolutely required 
to come into the Agreement. He stated it would be a good idea to obtain signed waivers 
as part of protocols, and that a questionnaire is a good idea. He stated a guardian or 
parent's signature could sign on behalf of a minor. The Mayor briefly discussed giving 
away a minor's rights, and the City Attorney will return with more information on that 
matter. 

Council Member McConaghy referred to the Director of Public Safety's statement that 
Medstar will be on standby during inoculation days, but he doesn't believe the City will be 
on the hook for medical malpractice. 

Council Member Granger inquired how Lansing will be notified of vaccines being given. 
The Director of Public Safety will obtain more information and will follow-up. 

The Mayor inquired regarding how much paperwork is involved, to what extent, and what 
to do about people that will not come back to get the second vaccination if a reaction 
should occur. The City needs some way to follow-up. The Director stated that side effects 
may occur and that they are actually a good thing as it identifies the vaccine is working. 
Staff will follow-up with people that may not show up for the second shot. The Director 
stated he will follow-up on what the City can do if somebody does not receive the second 
injection. There was a consensus of the Committee to move forward with the MOU. 

The next item discussed was regarding a camera system and body cameras for the 
Department of Public Safety. Director Kosanke is requesting to replace in-car cameras and 
purchase body cameras. The current in-car cameras are over ten years old. With what is 
going on in law enforcement, he is in favor of body cameras. Code, parking, and animal 
enforcement will also have body cameras. He stated cameras capture valuable evidence 
for court cases and prosecutions. They provide good protection for City liability. This 
purchase was prepared and submitted in the fiscal year budget, however it was removed 
from the final approved budget. 

The Mayor confirmed the request is for eight dash cams and 33 body cameras: $45,000.00 
for eight in-car dash cams and $135,000.00 for the 33 body cameras including 5-years 
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cloud storage that is retained on a rolling one-year basis. The Director stated the backups 
are stored at two locations and has redaction software. The Deputy Treasurer/Comptroller 
stated fund balance is at 27.26%. With this purchase it would be a 1.25% decrease; or 
approximately a 25% fund balance remaining. 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by McConaghy, regarding purchase: in-car and body cameras 
for the Department of Public Safety, that the Committee-of-the-Whole recommend that 
City Council authorize the purchase of in-car and body cameras in the amount of 
$181,195.16 as outlined in the Director of Public Safety's memo dated November 30, 
2020. 

Under discussion, Council Member Koester stated that with the new tax multiplier, this 
purchase is a wash. Council Member Granger stated paying up front saves $18,000.00 
over five years, however state revenue sharing will be lower and she has concerns. When 
asked, the Director stated training is included. 

The Mayor reminded the Committee of pending construction projects including Allard 
Road, and the City Engineer is determining whether the project will be asphalt 
replacement or reconstruction for an estimated $1.2-$1.4 million. 

Council Member McMullen inquired whether it has to be done now or can it wait to work 
into the budget next year. The Director stated in-car cameras are at the end of life, officers 
want the cameras, and it needs to be implemented. 

Council Member Koester asked if there are written policies and procedures for use, 
disclosure, and releasing of information. The Director stated a policy is in place for in-car 
cameras and is being updated to include body cameras. Release of information will be in 
accordance with Freedom of Information Act policies and guidelines. The City Attorney 
stated certain statutes exist for cameras. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Nobody wished to be heard under new business. 

Nobody wished to be heard under public comment. 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Koester, that the meeting of the Committee-of-the-Whole 
be adjourned at 7:13 p.m. PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Kay Hathaway 	 Robert E. Novitke 
City Clerk 	 Mayor 
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMM]. I I EE-OF-THE-WHOLE OF THE CITY OF 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS HELD REMOTELY ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2020. 

The Facilitator's statement was read. 

PRESENT*: 	Mayor Pro-Tern Bryant 
Council Members Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy (Southfield, 
MI), McMullen 

ABSENT: 	 Mayor Novitke 
(*Unless specifically identified otherwise, Council Members attended remotely from Grosse Pointe Woods, 
MI.) 

ALSO PRESENT: 
	

City Administrator Smith 
Treasurer/Comptroller Murphy 
City Clerk Hathaway 
Facilitator/Deputy City Clerk Antolin 

Also in attendance were Bill Brickey and Josh Yde from Plante Moran. 

Mayor-Pro Tern Bryant called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 

Motion by McMullen, seconded by Gafa, that Mayor Novitke be excused from tonight's 
meeting as he is attending to a personal matter. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Novitke 

The Chair stated that the purpose of tonight's meeting was to review the City's audit as 
well as the audit of the Municipal Court. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Gafa, that all items on tonight's agenda be received, 
placed on file, and taken in order of appearance. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Novitke 

Discussion ensued regarding the FY Ending June 30, 2020, Audit. Mr. Brickey stated 
that the Municipal Court received an unmodified opinion and there were no audit findings 
with nothing additional to go through. 
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Mr. Brickey then provided an overview of the highlights pertaining to the City audit. He 
stated this is the 47th year that City will receive the award from the Government Finance 
Officers Association for Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year Ending 2019, and he 
congratulated the City for the receiving the award. He then discussed: 

• Page 1 - the City received an unmodified opinion, the City is in compliance, and it 
is a clean audit report. 

• Page 51 - Revenue is at $13.5 million, revenue sharing was under what was 
expected and similar to last year. The City expenditures are under budget by 
$78,000.00 including amendments. Excess revenue over expenditures is $1.6 
million and budgeted was $1.7 million; from original budget it is a loss of 
$27,000.00. Excess revenues is $1,601,496.00. There was $2,224,703.00 
transferred from the general fund to support other funds of the City. 

• Page 12 - Balance sheet. The General Fund included local street and cable funds. 
The unassigned fund balance was $6,181,169.00, 51% of the general fund 
expenditures, and the City remains in a healthy position; the City does not want 
Fund Balance to go any lower than 20% of expenditures. The City is in sound 
financial position even though monies have been moved to fund local street 
projects. When asked, Mr. Brickey stated that at the $6.1 million at June 30, some 
of those could be used for future projects. 

• Page 14-Grosse Gratiot Drain fund. The City is involved with the Milk River Drain 
projects, which funding is funneled through the Grosse Gratiot Drain Fund. The 
City collected $2.8 million, with a total revenue at $2.9 million to fund the project. 
Expenditures include at $8,477,000.00 that represent operating and maintenance 
costs and $6.7 million of capital. The capital is going through the County, which 
issued bonds, working on infrastructure, and is reflected in this fund. There was 
$5.7 million of new debt issued, the City's portion of the large debt that the County 
has issued. The total for Grosse Pointe Woods was $17.8 million. There have been 
some cost overages with this project, and the City did use some general fund 
money to fund the overages. 

• Page 52-Legacy costs: Pension and health care. The audit identifies a schedule of 
seven years funding of pension system under GASB 68. For 2020, total pension 
liability is $82.3 million according to actuary. Plan Fiduciary net position at FY 2020 
is $35.5 million. The unfunded pension is $46.7 million, or 43% funded. Most 
systems are about 65-70% funded. The City needs to continue to monitor this 
fund by reviewing assumptions and actuary reports so this will be funded in the 
long run. The City has always paid into the fund what the actuary has advised. 

• Page 55-Supplemental annuity fund. There is a $3.7 million liability and the City 
has $1.9 million set aside, fund is 50% funded. Plans will be filed with the State of 
Michigan to fund the liability. 

• Page 57 - Retiree health care liability. Total OPEB liability is $36.3 million, and the 
City has 1 million set aside; or, 3% funded. This is not very well funded but OPEB 
in many communities are zero funded. The City has always paid its costs as they 
come due. The accounting procedures changed a few years ago to measure this 
way. 

Mr. Yde discussed the end of audit letter. This letter is required to list any deviations and 
difficulties, and there were none. He stated: 
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• Page 2-Internal Controls. First, material weaknesses were due to journal entries. 
Second, related to COVID-19 and segregation issues with cash receipting due to 
limited staffing at that time, but no errors were noted. 

• Section 3, page 6 provides a lot of good information pertaining to upcoming 
events, legislative and finance, including upcoming GASB changes. 

Motion by Gafa, seconded by McConaghy, regarding the FY Ending June 30, 2020, City 
and Municipal Court Audits, that the Committee-of-the-Whole refer these audits to the 
City Council at their meeting being held December 21, 2020. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Novitke 

Hearing no objections, the following items were heard under New Business: 
• Council Member McConaghy discussed moving forward with setting up a Special 

Committee-of-the-Whole devoted to the issue of Supervision being given by the 
City Administrator, with Tom Fleury present, and there was a general consensus 
to schedule a January meeting. 

• Council Member McConaghy referred to an article in the Grosse Pointe News 
regarding a Grosse Pointe Woods resident, Mark Dybis, who was recently a living 
organ donor to his brother-in-law. Hearing no objections, the City Administrator 
was asked to prepare a Proclamation. 

• Council Member Granger asked if there were any updates on when the City will 
receive COVID vaccines. There were none. 

Nobody wished to be heard under Public Comment. 

Motion by McMullen, seconded by Koester, that the meeting of the Committee-of-the-
Whole be adjourned at 7:48 p.m. PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Kay Hathaway 	 Arthur W. Bryant 
City Clerk 	 Mayor Pro-Tem 
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Plante & Moran, PLLC 
1098 Woodward Avenue 
Detroit, MI 48226-1906 

TeL 31:3.496.7200 
Fax: 313.496.7201 
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November 19, 2020 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
20025 Mack Plaza Drive 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

Enclosed are your annual financial reports and letters of required communication for the year ended June 
30, 2020. 

We will electronically forward your financial statements and letters of required communication to the State 
of Michigan, Department of Treasury. 

The State of Michigan requires auditors to prepare the auditing procedures report, which will be submitted 
with the audited financial statements to the State at the time we electronically file the report. Please be 
aware that, to the extent any exceptions have been reported, the State of Michigan may request that you 
file a corrective action plan. 

Other filing requirements:  

Michigan Department of Treasury: 

• Form F-65 - The Michigan Department of Treasury requires Form F-65 to be completed and submitted 
within six months after the close of your government's fiscal year. Local units are required to submit 
Form F-65 using the electronic online format on the State of Michigan website. The State is no longer 
accepting Excel or hard copy submissions. Upon submission, you may receive error messages that will 
need to be addressed. Local units will now file Form F-65, audit reports, and the qualifying statements 
in the same location using only one login (user ID and password). The form can be filed at the following 
link: https://treas-secure. state. m  us/LAFDeform/TL41W71.aspx. 

• Qualifying Statement - Communities are required to submit a filing once a year with the Michigan 
Department of Treasury. This filing will serve as a preapproval for future debt issues. The current filing 
is due within six months of the government's year end and is good for one year thereafter. The annual 
qualifying statement must be submitted electronically using the Department of Treasury's website. 

• Legacy Cost Reporting - In accordance with PA 314 of 1965, as amended, an investment fiduciary of 
a public employee retirement system is required to publish a summary annual report. The summary 
annual report requires, among other items, systems' assets and liabilities and changes in net plan 
assets on a plan-year basis and systems' funded ratio of valuation assets to actuarial accrued liabilities 
on a plan-year basis. PA 530 of 2016 amended this act to require the summary annual report to include 
the actuarial assumed rate of health care inflation. Also, this summary annual report is required to be 
sent to the Michigan Department of Treasury within 30 days of publication. The Michigan Department 
of Treasury will post an executive summary of each summary annual report it receives. 

In addition, any public employee retirement system not at least 60 percent funded shall post an 
information report on the system's website outlining steps, if any, the system may be taking to decrease 
the system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability. 

In addition, PA 202 of 2017 has additional reporting requirements. Information regarding filing can be 
located at http://www.michioan.govftreasury/0,4679,7-121-1751  51556 84499---,00.html. The due 
date for completion of Form 5572 is no later the six months after the end of your fiscal year. In addition 
to submitting this new form to the Department of Treasury, local units must also post this information 
on their websites. The governing body of a local unit will also need to receive a copy of this form, in 
accordance with the act, but the act does not require approval by the governing body before submission 
to the Treasury. 

') PRAXITY 
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To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 	 November 19, 2020 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Michigan Department of Transportation (MOOT): 

The government's Act 51 Highway report is due 120 days after year end. The Act 51 report can be 
electronically submitted through the MDOT ADARS (Act 51 Distribution and Reporting System) site. 
Instructions can be found at: http://www.nnichiaan.qovidocuments/mdot/mdot  act51 street financial report 
guide 359394 7.pdf. 

The Michigan Department of Transportation has granted an automatic 60-day extension to cities and 
villages that are required to file the Act 51 report. The updated policy will extend the Act 51 report deadline 
to be due within six months of your fiscal year end date, which will align with the due date for the audited 
financial statements. This extension does not apply to counties. Counties are required to submit the act 51 
report to MDOT by May 1 every year, regardless of their fiscal year end. 

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA): 

Submission of the government's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) to the GFOA's Certificate 
of Achievement Program is due within six months of the government's fiscal year end (or, if that date falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the next business day). As part of the GFOA's new awards management system, 
the Certificate of Achievement Program will be automated, allowing CAFR applicants to apply, pay CAFR 
fees, check application status, or request copies of award documents electronically. After the launch of the 
awards management system, email applications will no longer be accepted, and all CAFRs must be 
submitted electronically. Information can be found at: 

https://www.qfoa.orq/award-proqrams/certificate-achievement-excellence-financial-reportinq-program-cafr-
program   

Securities and Exchange Commission: 

Please be advised that, because you have issued bonds after July 1, 1995, you may be required to submit 
information, including your annual financial statements, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(MSRB). Submissions must be made electronically in PDF format to Electronic Municipal Market Access 
(EMMA) system (www.emma.msrb.org). In addition, you are obligated to provide continuing disclosure 
documents to a State Information Depository (SID) if required by applicable state law or by an outstanding 
continuing disclosure agreement in effect prior to July 1, 2009. The SID for Michigan is: 

Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan 
Buhl Building - 535 Griswold, Suite 1850 

Detroit, MI 48226-3699 

In addition to the report submission requirement, it is also likely that your bond documents (either the bond 
awarding resolution or the bond official statement) may have committed you to make additional nonfinancial 
disclosures (such as population, taxable valuation, millage rates, and other demographic data). As a result, 
there may be additional information required to be sent to the above repositories (which will also have a 
due date - often 180 days after year end). Please contact your bond financial advisors to determine if these 
disclosure requirements apply to you. If you, your bond counsel, or financial advisors need assistance in 
supplying the appropriate information, please contact us. 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve as your auditors. Please contact us if you have any questions 
regarding these filing requirements. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
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Detroit, MI 43226-1906 
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November 19, 2020 

To the City Council and Management 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan (the "City") as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2020. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit, which 
is divided into the following sections: 

Section I - Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit 

Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 

Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 

Section I includes any deficiencies we observed in the City's accounting principles or internal control that 
we believe are significant. Current auditing standards require us to formally communicate annually matters 
we note about the City's accounting policies and internal control. 

Section II includes information that current auditing standards require independent auditors to communicate 
to those individuals charged with governance. We will report this information annually to the City Council 
and management of the City. 

Section III presents informational legislative items offered in the interest of helping the City toward 
continuous improvements and to remain informed of the changing legislative landscape. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the City's staff for the cooperation and courtesy extended to 
us during our audit. Their assistance and professionalism are invaluable. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We welcome any questions you may have regarding the following communications, and we would be willing 
to discuss these or any other questions that you might have at your convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

William Brickey 

Joshua Yde 
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Section I - Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses, and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. 

However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is 
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

We consider the following deficiencies in the City's internal control to be material weaknesses: 

• During the audit, the City required assistance identifying various journal entries that were needed to 
adjust the year-end balances to be in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These 
journal entries were related to net pension liability; net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability; 
deferred inflows/outflows; unavailable revenue; capital assets, debt, and accruals related to the Milk 
River Drainage District; net position; accrued payroll; revenue; and expenses. Failure to properly 
identify and record year-end journal entries could lead to materially inaccurate financial reporting. 

• For a portion of the year, the comptroller performed cash receipting, banking, and journalizing duties. 
The City's internal controls are designed to segregate these duties among various individuals, but 
during the State of Michigan stay-at-home order, the controls were not followed due to staffing issues. 
Although we did not identify any errors, the lack of segregation of duties creates the opportunity for 
unauthorized transactions and/or errors in processing and recording transactions. 
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Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards  

As stated in our engagement letter dated July 22, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with 
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are 
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our 
meeting about planning matters on July 22, 2020. 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with 
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the city are described in Note 1 
to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing 
policies was not changed during 2020. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the city during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. 

There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different 
period than when the transaction occurred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. 

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements include the liability and expense associated 
with pension and OPEB, the liability associated with estimated property tax refunds, unbilled water and 
sewer charges, and incurred but not reported liabilities related to self-insurance. 

Management's estimates of the pension and OPEB liability and expense are based on discount rates, rate 
of return, and other assumptions, which are used by an actuary to calculate the total net pension liability 
and net OPEB liability. While the actuary uses assumptions to calculate the total pension and OPEB 
liabilities, it is management's responsibility to assess whether the assumptions made are reasonable. We 
evaluated the key assumptions used to calculate the total pension liability and the total OPEB liability in 
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements takes as a whole. 

In the current year, pension valuations were prepared in accordance with GASB 67/68. The total pension 
liability of the main plan increased by $1,469,396, a 1.8 percent decrease, and the supplemental annuity 
plan total liability decreased by $303,771, a 7.4 percent decrease. The City continues to use an open 
amortization period, which means that the City's actuarially determined contributions may not be sufficient 
to close the gap between the plan net position and the total pension liabilities. 
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Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 
(Continued) 

Management's estimate of property tax refunds is calculated by known contested taxable values and the 
City's assessor's and lawyer's estimates, which are based on historical data. 

At year end, due to the timing of the billing cycles for water and sewer, it is necessary to record an estimate 
for the amount unbilled to customers. The amount is recorded as a receivable in the Water and Sewer 
Fund. 

The estimates of the incurred but not reported amounts related to the City's self-insured workers' 
compensation and health insurance obligations are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements. 
Management's estimate of the various incurred but not reported amounts is based on historical information 
regarding claims. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant 
to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The 
following material adjustments detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected by management: 
journal entries related to the Milk River Drain. 

Significant Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, business conditions affecting the City, and business plans and strategies that may affect the 
risks of material misstatement, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and our 
responses were not a condition of our retention. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 19, 2020. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion 
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant 
to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were 
no such consultations with other accountants. 
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Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 
(Continued) 

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements  

Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the City's financial statements and report 
does not extend beyond the financial statements. We do not have an obligation to determine whether or 
not such other information is properly stated. However, we read the introductory section and statistical 
section, and nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its manner of 
presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information or manner of its presentation appearing in the 
financial statements. 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 

COVID-19 Resource Center 

Plante & Moran, PLLC (Plante Moran) has assembled a COVID-19 task force of leaders across the firm to 
monitor, address, and mitigate risks presented by the virus. We understand the unique challenges our local 
governments are facing in providing essential services to protect communities during the COVID-19 crisis, 
while going forward, they face seemingly impossible choices around staffing, capital projects, pension 
obligations, and dozens of other items in the face of an uncertain revenue outlook. We are sharing our 
insights within our government COVID-19 resource center at https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-
thinkinq/areas-of-focus/covid-19-qovernment-resource-center. We will keep you updated with relevant 
economic analyses, crisis management guidelines, notices of changing regulations, and more to keep the 
City running as smoothly as possible amidst uncertainty and unprecedented disruption. 

Have questions about the CARES Act? Submit them at https://www.plantemoran.com/campaiqns/firm/  
cares-act by simply providing your contact information and agreeing to our terms and conditions, and an 
expert from our task force will contact you within 24 hours. 

Automated CAFR Application and Award Process 

In November 2019, the GFOA announced that the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting application and award process will be completely automated by spring 2020. This electronic 
process will allow applicants the ability to apply, pay fees, check application status, and receive CAFR 
award documents electronically. In preparation for this transition, beginning on January 1, 2020, CAFRs 
will no longer be accepted in hard copy form, on CDs, or on flash drives. The new application process will 
only accept PDF or other electronic files. Any questions are to be directed to cafrprogram@gfoa.org. 

Cybersecurity and Information Technology Controls 

Cyberattacks are on the rise across the globe, and the cost of these attacks is ever increasing. Because of 
these attacks, municipalities stand to lose their reputation, the ability to operate efficiently, and proprietary 
information or assets. Communities potentially can also be subject to financial and legal liabilities. Managing 
this issue is especially challenging because even a municipality with a highly mature cybersecurity risk 
management program still has a residual risk that a material cybersecurity breach could occur and not be 
detected in a timely manner. We understand that the technology department continues to monitor and 
evaluate this risk, which are critical best practices. Additionally, periodic assessments of the system in order 
to verify that the control environment is working as intended are key parts of measuring associated business 
risk. We encourage administration and those charged with governance to work with the technology team 
on this very important topic. If we can be of assistance in the process, we would be happy to do so. 

Updated Uniform Chart of Accounts 

In April 2017, the State released an updated Uniform Chart of Accounts. Originally, local units of 
government were expected to comply with the changes beginning with June 30, 2018 year ends. However, 
the State has extended the deadline for compliance. On April 20, 2020, the State issued a memo that sets 
an implementation date for fiscal years ending on October 31, 2022 and thereafter. The State has 
committed to releasing various tools to help local units with implementation, including FAQs and clarification 
on which accounts should be used when implementing GASB 84. A significant revision to the current 
version of the chart of accounts will be issued in the future that will incorporate feedback that the Treasury 
has received. This revision will include significant changes to the expenditure accounts 700-999, which will 
now mirror the old approach that allowed for various numbers within certain ranges. Going forward, the 
Treasury will issue the following three documents for any future revisions: a revised chart of accounts, a 
marked-up version of the chart showing the changes, and a summary of the revisions report. Local units 
can sign up for alerts at this link: https://public.qovdeliverv.com/accounts/MITREAS/subscriber/new?asp=   
MITREAS 1. 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

Revenue Sharing  

Given the recent COVID-19 pandemic, there are anticipated declines in the state revenue-sharing 
constitutional portion and an unknown impact on the statutory portion as a result of COV1D-19. Please refer 
to the Plante Moran COVID-19 resource center discussed above to keep updated on the economic analysis 
and other up-to-date information related to the pandemic. 

Administrative Charges  

The services provided by employees that are traditionally charged to the General Fund, like treasury, 
finance, HR, etc., oftentimes significantly benefit other funds. As a result, it is a fairly common practice to 
allocate a portion of these costs via an administrative charge to other funds of the government. 
Administrative charges can take many forms, such as interfund allocations, chargebacks, and payment in 
lieu of taxes to other funds (such as a golf courses). While the practice of charging for administrative 
services provided to other funds may certainly be justified, there seems to be a heightened focus lately on 
the methodology and amount of charges. Given the fact that many cost allocation methodologies were 
implemented several years ago, it would be prudent to revisit your current methodology and the related 
inputs to ensure that any administrative charges are fully substantiated. 

Legacy Costs  

Legacy costs and the challenge of funding them continue to be topics of discussion. GASB pronouncements 
of late have placed even more focus on the net long-term liability arising from these benefit promises by 
requiring governmental financial statements to now reflect the net pension and OPEB liability. For many 
governments, these net liabilities are significant. In addition, Public Act 202 of 2017 has brought further 
focus on the funding level of these plans. 

The following are the funding levels per the funding valuations reported in the financial statements for the 
last three years for both pension and OPEB: 

Pension OPEB 
2020 43.17% - 50.41% 2.75% 
2019 45.99% - 45.15% 2.45% 
2018 46.50% - 44.06% 1.94% 

Maintaining or even improving the funded status of the plans is dependent upon a number of factors, 
including the government's contribution policies, its amortization policy for funding the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability, its benefit levels, and the ability to make future changes to the plan. 

That said, the challenge here is significant. We are happy to assist you in thinking through alternative ways 
to manage this liability. 

Legacy Cost Reporting 

Public Act 530 of 2016 

On December 31, 2016, the governor signed Public Act 530 of 2016, which amends Public Act 314 of 1965, 
also known as Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act (PERSIA). This act was effective on 
March 29, 2017. 

Under the prior act, communities were required to publish a summary annual report setting forth key 
information related to pension and retiree health care plans. The amendment requires that this summary 
annual report also be submitted to the Michigan Department of Treasury within 30 days of publication. 

In addition, for any system (either pension or retiree health care) that is not funded at a level of at least 60 
percent, the community must now post a report to its website indicating steps that are being undertaken to 
address the liability. In addition, this report must be submitted to the Department of Treasury within a 
reasonable time frame. 

The legislation calls for the Department of Treasury to accumulate all of the reports and publish a summary 
of funding levels throughout the state. 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

Public Act 202 of 2017 

On January 5, 2018, the Michigan Department of Treasury released initial reporting requirements under 
Public Act 202 of 2017 (the "Act"), which were primary components of the Act. These reporting requirements 
apply to all local units of government that offer or provide defined benefit pension and/or defined benefit 
OPEB retirement benefits. 

Local units began reporting funded ratios and contributions in accordance with these uniform assumptions 
starting with their fiscal year 2019 if their audited financial statements were based on an actuarial valuation 
issued after December 31, 2018. If their fiscal year 2019 audited financial statements were based on an 
actuarial valuation issued prior to December 31, 2018, the local units will begin reporting on these uniform 
assumptions starting with their fiscal year 2020. 

On October 21, 2019, the Michigan Department of Treasury released the updated uniform assumptions to 
be used for fiscal year 2020. Beginning with fiscal year 2020 reporting, all local governments must utilize 
the updated fiscal year 2020 uniform assumptions. Each year moving forward, the annual uniform 
assumptions will be updated and are expected to be utilized within Form 5572, where indicated, for that 
fiscal year. Local governments may utilize roll-forward procedures in nonvaluation years utilizing any 
updates to the uniform assumptions to calculate the data. 

This means that the local unit potentially may need three calculations: a funding valuation (if the local unit 
chooses to have different assumptions for funding purposes), a valuation that complies with GAAP to be 
used for financial statement reporting, and a calculation that complies with the State's new uniform 
assumptions. 

The releases by the Department of Treasury include the letters titled "Public Act 202: Selection of the 
Uniform Assumptions" and "Public Act 202: Selection of the Uniform Assumptions for Fiscal Year 2020," 
Numbered Letter 2018-1, Form 5572, detailed instructions for completion of Form 5572, and a listing of 
frequently asked questions. All documents can be located at http://www.michicran.crov/treasurv/0,4679,7-
121-1751  51556 84499---,00.html. 

Form 5572 is due annually for both pension and OPEB plans provided by an employer no later than six 
months after the end of the fiscal year. 

In addition to submitting this new form to the Department of Treasury, a local unit must also post this 
information either on its website or in a public place if it does not have a website. The governing body of a 
local unit will also need to receive a copy of this form, in accordance with the Act, but the Act does not 
require approval by the governing body before submission to the Treasury. 

Public Act 202 defines that a local unit of government is in underfunded status if any of the following apply: 

1. OPEB - Total plan assets are less than 40 percent of total plan liabilities according to the most recent 
annual report, and, for primary units of government*, the annual required contribution for all of the 
retirement health systems of the local unit is greater than 12 percent of the local unit of government's 
governmental funds operations revenue. 

2. Retirement pension plans - Total plan assets are less than 60 percent of plan total liabilities according 
to the most recent annual report, and, for primary units of government, the annual required contribution 
for all of the retirement pension systems of the local unit is greater than 10 percent of the local unit of 
government's governmental funds operations revenue. 

*Primary units of government are cities, villages, townships, and counties. 

If, after submission of Form 5572, the Treasury determines your community to have underfunded status, 
you will have the opportunity to file a waiver under Section 6 of the Act. The waiver needs to provide a plan 
for how the underfunding is being addressed. This waiver will then be submitted to the Treasury. 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

In the event that a local unit has underfunded plans and does not submit a waiver or the waiver is not 
approved, the Treasury will perform an internal review. The local unit will also need to submit a corrective 
action plan to the newly created Municipal Stability Board (under Section 7 of the Act). The local unit will 
be responsible for creating the corrective action plan. 

For governments with OPEB plans, Section 4(I)(a)(i)(ii) of Public Act 202 of 2017 requires the local unit to 
pay retiree insurance premiums for the year, as well as the normal costs for the new employees hired after 
June 30, 2018. The actuary will likely need to calculate this number in order for governments to comply. In 
addition, if communities must essentially prefund this additional cost, those communities without a qualifying 
OPEB trust will need to consider where these contributions will go. 

Questions should be directed via email to the Treasury offices at LocalRetirementReportinq(@.michiaan.ciov 
or by visiting its website at www.Michician.qov/LocalRetirementReportinci.  

Numbered Letter 2018-3 

On March 13, 2020, the Treasury issued Numbered Letter 2018-3 (Revised) as a revision to Numbered 
Letter 2018-3 that was first issued in September 2018. This revised numbered letter provides additional 
clarity and guidance for compliance with Public Act 202 related to the calculation and reporting of the 
actuarial determined contribution (ADC) for other postemployment benefit (OPEB) systems. The revision 
emphasized the following two key points: 

1. The ADC, regardless of funding policy, must be calculated as the normal cost plus the amortization of 
the unfunded liability. 

2. The ADC, calculated in accordance with the Act, must be reported in the audited financial statements. 
Note that OPEB plans that are not administrated through a trust are not required by GAAP to disclose 
the ADC in the required supplemental information section of the audited financial statements, but those 
plans should disclose this information in the footnotes to the financial statements, as required by this 
revised numbered letter. 

Failure to calculate the ADC in compliance with this Numbered Letter 2018-3 (Revised) will be considered 
statutory noncompliance and shall be reported in the notes to the financial statements and result in an 
auditor finding for statutory noncompliance. Failure to report a compliance ADC in audited financial 
statements may result in the rejection of Form 5572 submissions and noncompliance with the Act and/or 
rejection of the local government's audited financial statements. 

Upcoming Accounting Standards Requiring Preparation  

GASB Statement No. 95 - Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance 

This new pronouncement was adopted in May 2020 and is effective immediately. This statement postpones 
the effective dates of the following pronouncements and implementation guides by one year: 

• Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations 
• Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities 
• Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt 
• Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period 
• Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests 
• Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 
• Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 
• Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 
• Implementation Guide No. 2017-3, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 

Other Than Pensions (and Certain Issues Related to OPEB Plan Reporting) 
• Implementation Guide No. 2018-1, Implementation Guidance Update - 2018 
• Implementation Guide No. 2019-1, Implementation Guidance Update - 2019 
• Implementation Guide No. 2019-2, Fiduciary Activities 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

The effective dates of the following pronouncement and implementation guide are postponed by 18 months: 

• Statement No. 87, Leases 
• Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases 

GASB Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities 

This new pronouncement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 (December 
15, 2019 after extension within GASB Statement No. 95). This statement provides criteria for state and 
local governments to use in identifying whether an activity is fiduciary and should be reported as a fiduciary 
fund type in its financial statements. In addition, once fiduciary activities are identified, GASB 84 also 
provides specific reporting requirements. 

This statement has the potential to significantly impact what governments currently report as a fiduciary 
activity. Upon adoption, we anticipate that some governments' fiduciary activities will need to move to 
governmental funds, while other activities that previously were not considered fiduciary may now be 
reported as such under certain circumstances. It is also possible that certain pension and OPEB fiduciary 
funds will no longer be reported in a local unit's financial statements. 

Given the potential to have a major impact on many governments, not only to their external financial 
statements, but also to their accounting system requirements and budget documents, we encourage you 
to start analyzing the impact of this standard now. The first step to implementation is identifying the types 
of activities that should be analyzed and then running those activities through the lens of this standard. 

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases 

This new accounting pronouncement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2019 (June 15, 2021 after extension within GASB Statement No. 95). This statement requires recognition 
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and 
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the 
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases 
are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize 
a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. 

We recommend beginning to accumulate information now related to all significant lease agreements in 
order to more efficiently implement this new standard once it becomes effective. 

Plante Moran will be providing trainings and other resources to our clients in the coming months to help 
prepare for the implementation of all these new standards. In the interim, please reach out to your 
engagement team for assistance in getting started. 

GASB Statement No. 90 - Majority Equity interest 

This new accounting pronouncement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2018 (December 15, 2019 after extension within GASB Statement No. 95). This statement requires that 
governments analyze the holdings of legally separate organizations to see if the ownership of a majority 
interest in a separate legal organization qualifies as an investment or a component unit. 

GASB Statement No. 91 - Conduit Debt 

This new accounting pronouncement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2020 (December 15, 2021 after extension within GASB Statement No. 95). This statement clarifies the 
existing definition of conduit debt, provides a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers, 
and eliminates diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures. 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

GASB Statement No. 92 - Omnibus 2020 

This new accounting pronouncement has various effective dates that were postponed by one year after 
extension within GASB Statement No. 95. This statement addresses eight unrelated practice issues and 
technical inconsistencies in authoritative literature. The standard addresses leases, intraentity transfers of 
assets, postemployment benefits, government acquisitions, risk financing and insurance-related activities 
of public entity risk pools, fair value measurements, and derivative instruments. 

GASB Statement No. 94 - Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements. 

This new accounting pronouncement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. 
This statement improves accounting and financial reporting for arrangements where a governmental entity 
contracts with an operator to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use 
nonfinancial assets, such as infrastructure or other capital assets, for a period of time in an exchange or 
exchange-like transaction. It establishes the definitions of public-private and public-public partnerships 
(PPPs) and availability payment arrangements (APAs) and provides uniform guidance on accounting and 
financial reporting for transactions that meet those definitions. The first step of implementation is identifying 
the types of arrangements that are PPPs and analyzing each of those arrangements through the 
requirements of this standard. In the interim period prior to the required implementation date, please reach 
out to your engagement team with any questions or for assistance in getting started. 
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CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
20025 Mack Plaza Drive 

Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 

Michigan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is submitted herewith, in accordance with 

provisions of Section 8.7 (Charter) of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods and the rules and 

regulations as put forward by the State of Michigan Department of Treasury. This report was 

prepared by and is the responsibility of the City's Finance Department. This document represents 

the official report of the City's financial operations to its residents, elected officials, employees, 

investment firms, banks and rating and regulatory agencies, and other interested parties. The 

data, as presented in the report, is accurate in all material respects, is shown in a manner 

designed to clearly and fairly set forth the financial activity of all the various funds established and 

utilized by the City and all disclosures have been included to enable the reader to gain the 

maximum understanding of the City's financial operations. The independent auditing firm of Plante 

& Moran, PLLC performed the annual audit of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods' financial 

statements as required by the Michigan Department of Treasury and has issued its unmodified 

opinion here within. 

This document consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of 

Grosse Pointe Woods. Consequently, Administration assumes full responsibility for the 

completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable 

basis for making these presentations, City Administration has established a comprehensive 

internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, 

theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's 

financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Because the 

cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework 

of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that 

the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. To ensure that the City's system 

of internal controls is providing the security needed, the City's auditors are routinely consulted 

before any changes are made to the system and are requested to advise management of any 

improvements that would benefit operations. As Administration, we assert that, to the best of our 

knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 



To the Honorable Mayor 
	

November 19, 2020 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Furthermore, it is important to note that this letter complements the Management's Discussion 

and Analysis (MD&A), which is found in the financial section. 

Reporting Entity 

This report includes all funds for which the City's elected officials have operational and financial 

authority. This authority implies that the elected and administrative officials are legally responsible 

for establishing and implementing the fiscal policies and overseeing the financial management of 

the City. Where required, actual results of individual government funds are shown with its 

original/amended budgetary appropriations. This required disclosure allows the reader to 

compare the effectiveness of the administration to stay within the spending guidelines (budget) 

established by the City Council during the budget process and to disclose other variations that 

may occur during the course of the fiscal year. 

Legal Requirement 

This report has been prepared pursuant to and in compliance with Michigan Department of 

Treasury regulations, which, in part, require that an annual independent audit of the City's 

financial records of accounts and transactions be performed. The opinion by the City's 

independent auditor, Plante & Moran, PLLC, dated November 19, 2020 on the basic financial 

statements and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of 

this report. There is not a separately issued Single Audit Report for the Federal Grant Fund under 

the 2 CFR 200 regulations because the total federal grant expenditures were less than the 

threshold of $750,000, which is the minimum expenditure limit needed to be subject to the 

regulations of the Single Audit Act. Through the Wayne County Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program, the City is designated as a sub-grantee and coordinates its program. 

Consistent with previous years, the intent and responsibility of Administration is to effectively 

adhere to the fiscal policies and initiatives established by the City Council while remaining cost-

efficient and responsive to the needs of the residents. Many of the financial policies and 

procedures established by the City Council are detailed in the City's annual budget. In 

accordance with the City Charter, the City Administrator and the Treasurer/Comptroller will have 

presented their budgetary estimates of revenues and expenditures of all the City's funds 

(excluding Trust & Agency Funds and selected Special Revenue Funds) to the Mayor and City 

Council no later than the first meeting in April. These estimates are then forwarded to the City's 
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To the Honorable Mayor 
	

November 19, 2020 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Finance Committee, which performs a thorough review of the operational, financial, and capital 

components of the budget. Upon completing this budget review along with recommendations, the 

budget is presented back to the Mayor and City Council for additional review and comments. The 

proposed budget document is formally approved by the Mayor and City Council no later than the 

third Monday in May. Throughout the course of the fiscal year, the Finance Committee may review 

any significant changes to the original budget document as recommended by the City 

Administrator and/or the Treasurer/Comptroller. Per the City Charter, the Mayor and City Council 

must formally approve any proposed adjustments to the budget. This process allows the City to 

remain flexible to changes in the revenue and expenditure patterns that occur throughout the year 

as well as keeping the elected officials updated on the financial condition of the City. Following 

the passage of the budget, a summary of the completed document is made available to all 

residents, and a budget summary published in the local newspaper and in the annual City 

calendar. 

Fiscal Policies/Major Initiatives 

One of the most elemental functions of our City is to establish practices to guide us through good 

times and challenging times. Clearly, the last decade has been challenging but through costs 

cutting initiatives and better efficiencies we have been able to build a strong cash reserve. 

Currently, we have an unassigned fund balance of 42 percent of actual expenses. Our cash 

reserves are acceptable based upon the GFOA recommendation of a 10-15 percent fund balance. 

We are ever cognizant of the delicate balancing that is required to maintain adequate operational 

reserves while maintaining essential city services and funding infrastructure improvements. City 

administration continues to look for efficiencies, expanding community partnerships and 

alternative sources of revenue to keep our City financially strong and maintain our desirability as 

one of the premier communities in southeast Michigan to live, work and play. 

The City's long-term financial stability is the result of a strong and continuous commitment to 

fundamental principles of fiscal integrity. The City's current administration has taken many steps 

over the last several years toward improved budgeting, cost containment, and improved 

efficiency, which has helped in dealing with the current economic conditions. The City has 

developed a cautious but proactive strategy to evaluating the needs of our community. Excess 

reserve funds have been budgeted throughout the course of fiscal year 2019 — 2020 to accomplish 

numerous projects that include: 
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• On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory 

disease that has caused a coronavirus pandemic. Executive order 20-21 was signed by 

Governor Gretchen Whitmer on March 23, 2020 directing all Michigan businesses and 

operations to temporarily suspend in-person operations that are not necessary to sustain 

or protect life. The order also directed Michigan residents to stay in their homes unless 

they were a part of a critical infrastructure workforce, engaged in an outdoor activity or 

performing tasks necessary to the health and safety of themselves or their family. City 

Administration immediately suspended all City operations with the exception of our Public 

Safety Department and directed staff to "Stay Home, Stay Safe" as the unprecedented 

crisis of the COVID-19 pandemic unfolded. Pursuant to authority granted by the city 

council, city administration provided our information technology department with the 

equipment and resources needed to establish remote workstations for essential city 

employees and daily e-blasts were provided to the community to provide resources and 

information. Throughout the fourteen (14) weeks of the municipal offices being closed to 

the public (March 24, 2020 through July 10, 2020) all city services remained intact with 

staff performing in an exemplary manner while providing exceptional service to our 

community during this trying time. 

• In fiscal year 2019 — 20, in partnership with the Michigan Department of Transportation, 

the Vernier Road project was 100% completed. Federal Surface Transportation Funds 

were awarded to the City in the amount of $1,031,615 for resurfacing of Vernier Road from 

Morningside to Fairway. The City was obligated to fund 20% of the projected construction 

costs, estimated at $1,329,200 and 100% of the cost of engineering and oversight. The 

final cost breakdown to the City for this cooperative effort with MDOT was $224,433 in 

construction and $242,155 for engineering and oversight, a grand total of $466.588. This 

project is a great improvement to one of our major roadways. . 

• City Administration, City Engineers and members of the Construction Committee, 

recommended to the City Council the replacement of city water mains. City Council 

authorized the 2019 Water Main Construction Project in the amount of $1,148,158 that 

includes construction and engineering costs. Funding for this project will come from the 

water and sewer reserve fund. The project includes replacing 3,647 feet of 65 year old 

eight inch water main on Bournemouth, Raymond, Linville, Kingsville and the easement 

water mains that run between homes on South Renaud, North Saddle Lane and 

Lakeshore Lane. 

In November 2019, City Council approved the 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program for 

critical sewer repairs that were deemed necessary as a direct result of sewer line 
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infrastructure information gathered through use of funds provided under the Stormwater, 

Asset Management and Wastewater (SAW) Grant awarded to the City in 2017. Funds in 

the amount of $645,779 were allocated which include construction and oversight by city 

engineers. The location of these repairs are throughout the city and we anticipate them 

being completed in the fall 2020. 

• The City is committed to continuing the local street repair and maintenance program that 

has been in place since 2015. In November 2019 the repair and/or re-surfacing work was 

completed on the 2018 Road Construction Project which included: Anita from Mack to the 

west city limits; Brys from Mack to Helen; Lochmoor from Sunningdale Park to Fairway; 

Re-construction of Stanhope from Chester to west city limit; Joint repair of Cook Road 

from Mack to Wedgewood. In June 2019, City Council authorized the 2019 Road 

Construction Project which was the reconstruction of Beaufait (Mack to the west city limit), 

the resurfacing of Oxford Road (west city limit to Jackson), and the asphalt joint patching 

of Fairway and Holiday. This project completed 100% of the local road repair identified in 

10-year Road Capital Improvement Plan. A total of $1,490,228 was budgeted for this 

improvement and will be a great improvement to several of our local roads. 

• The City's general fund balance continues to maintain a sound financial state at fiscal year 

2019-20. The City had budgeted the use of prior year reserves to fund the 2019 and 2020 

local road projects, but reserves were not needed to fund the expenses therefore the fund 

balance increased by approximately $69,000. 

• City administration continues to look for funding opportunities, cost containment initiatives, 

community partnerships and potential grant funds to fund and maintain the high level of 

public services provided to our community. Significant amenities the City provides include 

Lake Front Park, where you can spend the day with your family poolside, host a picnic or 

special event, or take a stroll on the boardwalk that overlooks Lake St. Clair. In addition, 

the Community Center offers programs for all ages, where members of the community 

can participate. 

Additionally, maintaining a strong cash reserve is paramount in order to continue with our 

Water/Sewer bond rating of AA+ allowing for the City to make the costs of borrowing lower and 

allow us to better invest in our city. Just as importantly, we need to build our savings so that we 

can pay our bills in the event of a fiscal emergency or natural disaster. Lastly, increasing our 

reserves would demonstrate to businesses, governmental organizations, and ratings agencies 

that we have prudent, disciplined fiscal practices and that we are good stewards of our taxpayers' 

money. This stability is good for business and good for the people of Grosse Pointe Woods. 
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Economic Conditions and Outlook 

The City of Grosse Pointe Woods is one of the most desired areas to live in the State of Michigan, 

located 10 miles northeast of Detroit. Its population of 15,332 is distributed among approximately 

6,819 households and has a median household income of $99,019. The median home value of 

an owner-occupied residence in the City is $282,794. The labor force is comprised largely of 

professional, healthcare, hospitality and education services, with over 55% having a bachelor's 

or graduate degree. 

The City has struggled over the last decade as a result of a low inflation rate multiplier used to 

calculate taxable value on all properties. Low inflation rates significantly impact property tax 

revenue and the funding of essential City services. In tax year 2020, the inflation rate factor was 

1.9 percent. 

Continued re-development and re-investment within the City will add value in fiscal year 2021. 

Re-investment is key to maintaining the health and welfare of established communities where 

land is not readily available for new construction. The building department and its staff had a very 

busy year with plan reviews, inspections and public contacts as our businesses and residents 

performed upgrades, additions and/or renovations to maintain and enhance their home and 

property. The City is fortunate to have such commitment in our residents and businesses who 

work hard to maintain the status that the City of Grosse Pointe Woods enjoys. 

In accordance with the City Charter, the City may levy up to 20 mills. The Headlee Act, which 

amended the State Constitution in regard to property tax relief, has forced the City to roll back its 

20 mills to 13.4300 mills. 

The City's General Fund year-end fund balance is approximately $7.8 million; $1.7 million is 

committed, assigned, or non-spendable, leaving $6.1 million unassigned. 

The City is committed to providing excellence in public safety, public works, and recreational 

opportunities and also promotes a true sense of community. We are proud of our Lake Front Park 

which provides the largest outdoor swimming complex in the Midwest and all of our recreational 

programs and community events. 
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Administrative Summary 

The City's strengths continue to be strong financial management, sound finances, and low debt 

levels. Because of this, the City's Water and Sewer Fund enjoys an outstanding bond rating of 

"AA" and the City's overall rating is "AA+" from Standard & Poor's. This outstanding bond rating 

allows the City to borrow at the lowest possible interest rate, saving taxpayers thousands of dollars 

in future costs. 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded 

the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This is 

the 47th consecutive year that the City of Grosse Pointe Woods received this prestigious award. 

In fact, our City is the longest-standing recipient in GFOA's history. 

In 2019, GFOA awarded the City with a Popular Annual Financial Reporting Award (PAFR). This 

is the seventh consecutive year the City has received this award which is presented to local 

governments that successfully extract information from their Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) and produce a high-quality report specifically designed to be readily accessible 

and easily understandable to the general public and others who do not have a background in 

public finance. 

The City continues to maintain our well-respected status and is proud to be labeled as one of the 

most desired areas to live in southeast Michigan. The challenge to the City is to continue to 

provide a multitude of public services, while complying with increased state regulations for 

accountability and transparency. Administration also remains confident that City Council and the 

employees possess the capability, foresight, and resolve necessary to successfully meet these 

challenges. 

Sincerely, 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 
Michigan (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan's basic financial statements, as listed in 
the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan as of June 30, 2020 and the respective 
changes in its financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matter 

Required Supplemental Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the required supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan's basic financial statements. The other supplemental 
information, as identified in the table of contents, and the introductory section and the statistical section are 
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The other supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the other supplemental information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and the statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

1-0,4t-,  htfrtAtit.., PLL.0 

November 19, 2020 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan's (the "City") financial performance 
provides an overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Please read it in 
conjunction with the City's financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

The following represents the most significant financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2020: 

• Property taxes continue to be the City's largest source of revenue; slow but steady increases have been 
realized for the last three fiscal years. After the 2007 housing market decline, the City has had incremental 
increases, with a CPI of 1.9 percent for fiscal year 2019-2020. Although the millage rate is essentially at the 
Headlee cap, the general operating property tax revenue remained consistent with 2018-2019. 

• Revenue sharing from the State of Michigan remains our second largest revenue source. The City continues to 
meet all requirements of accountability and transparency with the State and received 100 percent of our state-
shared revenue allocation in 2019-2020. 

• The City remains vigilant with property maintenance enforcement to ensure properties are maintained. 
Maintaining property values and preventing decline through an effective property maintenance and rental 
inspection program is an important component of our overall financial plan and maintaining the quality of life 
within our community. 

• Road repair and reconstruction continue to be a priority for the City. With the completion of the 2017 road 
program, funded through the subsequent issuance of a road debt bond in 2017, the City has approved 
additional road projects in fiscal year 2019-2020. The road projects include the reconstruction of Beaufait and 
the resurfacing of Oxford, with asphalt joint repair on Fairway and Holiday. Funding of $1.49 million for this 
project will come from the General Fund fund balance and the Water and Sewer Fund reserves. 

• In partnership with the Michigan Department of Transportation, the resurfacing of Vernier Road took place from 
Morningside to Fairway. This construction project, at an estimated cost of $1.329 million was awarded to the 
City through Federal Surface Transportation Funding (STP). The STP provides flexible funding that may be 
used by states and local government for projects to preserve and improve the conditions and performance on 
any federal aid highway. The City was obligated to provide 100 percent of the engineering costs and a 
construction match of 20 percent. The overall cost to the City for this great improvement to one of our major 
roadways was $466,588. 

• The City has realized a slight increase in its General Fund fund balance of $69,000, exclusive of the Cable 
Franchise and Local Street funds. 

Using This Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement of 
activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's 
finances. This longer-term view uses the accrual basis of accounting so that it can measure the cost of providing 
services during the current year and whether the taxpayers have funded the full cost of providing government 
services. 

The fund financial statements present a short-term view; they tell the reader how the taxpayers' resources were 
spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending. Fund financial statements also report 
the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by providing information about 
the City's most significant funds. The fiduciary fund statements provide financial information about activities for 
which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

The City as a Whole 

The following table shows, in a condensed format, the net position as of the current date compared to the prior 
year: 

Summary Condensed Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Assets 
Current and other assets $ 16,806,358 $ 18,760,770 $ 15,655,928 $ 15,725,275 $ 32,462,286 $ 34,486,045 
Capital assets 61,032,581 51,748,050 29,960,580 29,347,271 90,993,161 81,095,321 

Total assets 77,838,939 70,508,820 45,616,508 45,072,546 123,455,447 115,581,366 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 8,895,176 11,865,129 804,861 1,160,485 9,700,037 13,025,614 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 1,834,319 1,832,830 922,742 1,159,854 2,757,061 2,992,684 
Noncurrent liabilities 105,372,716 97,680,305 13,792,363 14,727,639 119,165,079 112,407,944 

Total liabilities 107,207,035 99,513,135 14,715,105 15,887,493 121,922,140 115,400,628 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,570,077 11,457,613 392,635 1,172,614 3,962,712 12,630,227 

Net Position (Deficit) 
Net investment in capital 

assets 34,307,867 29,554,228 23,036,705 21,640,125 57,344,572 51,194,353 
Restricted 3,879,012 4,675,063 198,090 155,000 4,077,102 4,830,063 
Unrestricted (62,229,876) (62,826,090) 8,078,834 7,377,799 (54,151,042) (55,448,291) 

Total net 
position 
(deficit) $(24,042,997)  $(28,596,799)  $ 31,313,629  $ 29,172,924  $ 	7,270,632  $ 	576,125 

Capital assets in governmental activities increased by approximately $6.6 million due to the City's ongoing work 
related to the Milk River Drainage District. The remaining increase in capital assets of approximately $2.7 million is 
related to the City's continued investment in road improvement projects and other infrastructure assets. 

The increase in long-term liabilities was $7.7 million, primarily due to unfunded pension and other postemployment 
benefits (OPEB) liabilities. The City continues to make the required contributions to the pension plans, but market 
conditions and changes in the governmental accounting standards have changed the manner in which these 
liabilities are reported on the City's statement of net position. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

The following table shows the City's major revenue and expenses as a whole for both the governmental and 
business-type activities. The bottom of the table shows the changes in net position during the current year in 
comparison to the prior year: 

Summary Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Revenue 
Program revenue: 

Charges for services $ 	735,843 $ 	853,280 $ 	8,869,111 $ 	8,878,802 $ 	9,604,954 $ 	9,732,082 
Operating grants 1,566,077 1,743,250 1,566,077 1,743,250 
Capital grants 930,108 13,232 930,108 13,232 

General revenue: 
Property taxes 15,997,173 15,161,779 15,997,173 15,161,779 
Intergovernmental 1,649,486 1,848,256 - 1,649,486 1,848,256 
Investment earnings 338,402 438,677 241,682 294,366 580,084 733,043 
Other revenue: 

Cable franchise fees 369,566 336,174 369,566 336,174 
Other miscellaneous 

income 1,129,700 752,977 1,129,700 752,977 

Total revenue 22,716,355 21,147,625 9,110,793 9,173,168 31,827,148 30,320,793 

Expenses 
General government 518,836 739,340 518,836 739,340 
Public safety 5,741,383 4,025,271 5,741,383 4,025,271 
Public works 6,547,839 6,164,026 - - 6,547,839 6,164,026 
Solid waste 1,661,616 1,499,882 1,661,616 1,499,882 
Municipal improvement 1,283,863 1,029,092 - - 1,283,863 1,029,092 
Parks and recreation 1,848,120 1,723,640 - - 1,848,120 1,723,640 
Debt service 560,896 539,273 - - 560,896 539,273 
Water and Sewer Fund - 6,399,751 6,351,669 6,399,751 6,351,669 
Parking Utility Fund 432,624 495,089 432,624 495,089 
Boat Dock Rental Fund - 132,434 279,565 132,434 279,565 
Commodity Sales Fund 5,279 47,233 5,279 47,233 

Total expenses 18,162,553 15,720,524 6,970,088 7,173,556 25,132,641 22,894,080 

Change in Net Position 4,553,802 5,427,101 2,140,705 1,999,612 6,694,507 7,426,713 

Net Position (Deficit) - 
Beginning of year (28,596,799) (34,023,900) 29,172,924 27,173,312 576,125 (6,850,588) 

Net Position (Deficit) - End of 
year $(24,042,997) $(28,596,799) $ 31,313,629 $ 29,172,924 $ 	7,270,632 $ 	576,125 

Governmental Activities 

The City's governmental revenue totaled approximately $22.7 million, with the greatest revenue source being 
property taxes. Total revenue for governmental activities increased approximately $1.57 million compared to fiscal 
year 2018-2019. The majority of the increase is related a capital grants contribution of approximately $906,000 
from the Surface Transportation Program (STP) of Vernier Road and approximately $835,000 in property tax 
revenue. 

Property taxes make up approximately 70 percent of total governmental revenue. That percentage decreased 
slightly from the 72 percent reported in fiscal year 2018-2019. Overall, the City experienced an increase of 3.8 
percent in taxable value for 2019-2020, down slightly from 5.5 percent in fiscal year 2018-2019. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

Total governmental expenses for the City were approximately $18.2 million. This is an increase of approximately 
$2.4 million compared to fiscal year 2018-2019. Expenses increased this year as a result of city hall renovations 
and the City's continued investment in both its major and local road infrastructure. 

Business-type Activities 

The City's business-type activities consist of the funds for water and sewer, parking utility, commodity sales, and 
boat dock. 

Water and sewer utility system revenue is primarily from fees paid by customers based on use. Water and sewer 
rates were increased in the current year to cover increased costs to purchase water and to fund required 
infrastructure improvements. 

The remaining business-type funds continue to be funded exclusively by user fees, and there were no significant 
changes in revenue or expenses in the current year. 

In the business-type activities, revenue decreased by approximately $62,000, primarily due to a decrease 
investment earnings as a result of the market weathering a steep decline in March 2020 with the onset of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Expenses decreased approximately $203,000 due to the completion of SAW Grant CCTV 
investigation. 

The City's Funds 

An analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 12, following the government wide financial statements. The 
fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the City as a whole. 
The City Council created funds to help manage money for specific purposes, as well as to show accountability for 
certain activities, such as special property tax millages. The City's major governmental funds for fiscal year 2019-
2020 include the General Fund and the Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund. Since the Local Street Fund and the Cable 
Franchise Fund receive the majority of their revenue from unrestricted sources, they can no longer be classified as 
special revenue funds. Therefore, they are included in the General Fund. The City's major business-type fund is 
the Water and Sewer Fund. 

General Fund 

The General Fund pays for most of the City's governmental services. The two largest services funded by the 
General Fund are public safety (combined police and fire services) and public works, which account for $10.4 
million in expenses. The parks and recreation department accounted for $1.5 million in expenses, with this 
department of the City being primarily funded through tax revenue and user fees. 

Other major activities in the General Fund include recreation and culture, solid waste, and all general government 
administrative and services operations. Some of these activities rely on fees for services to help offset costs, and 
some do not generate any significant service-related revenue. Many of these activities rely heavily on property 
taxes and revenue sharing to subsidize their operations. 

In fiscal year 2019-2020, the General Fund's fund balance decreased by $521,295. The decrease is the result of 
road construction and municipal improvement projects and updates funded through insurance reimbursements 
and the use of prior year reserves. 

The City's General Fund year-end fund balance is approximately $7.9 million; $1.7 million is committed, assigned, 
or nonspendable, leaving $6.2 million unassigned. The unassigned amount represents approximately 43 percent 
of fiscal year 2019-2020 actual expenditures. This level of fund balance is above the recommended level of 
between 10 percent and 15 percent of annual expenditures; however, the City strives to maintain a cash surplus 
sufficient to maintain superior city services and retain a favorable bond rating. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund 

The Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund is used to accumulate resources for payment of operations and maintenance 
costs, as well as the Grosse-Gratiot Drain improvements financed by issuance of debt. In 2017, the Milk River 
Inter County Drain Drainage Board issued debt in the amount of $36 million for system updates and 
improvements, with the City's first principal payment made in 2020. The City continues to make estimated interest 
payments each year, which are being funded through use of the Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund fund balance. 

In fiscal year 2019-2020, the fund derived revenue from property taxes of approximately $2.8 million and 
expenditures of approximately $1.9 million related to drain operations and maintenance provided by Wayne 
County, Michigan and $7.6 million related to capital expenditures. 

This Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund's fund balance decreased $924,677; its fund balance at year end is $2,206,710 
and will be used to cover 50 percent of the City's portion of cost overruns that occurred on the Milk River Drainage 
project. As the project neared completion, unforeseen circumstances caused cost overruns of $6.8 million. The 
City's allocation of 50.5 percent of these overruns totals an additional $3.5 million. 

Water and Sewer Fund 

The Water and Sewer Fund continues to maintain a small amount of working capital and the required reserves to 
meet bond covenants. Because revenue is derived from user fees that are adjusted periodically to cover 
expenses, the fund is very secure. Unlike the governmental activities of the City, the Water and Sewer Fund does 
not rely on tax dollars and state aid for its financial well-being. 

Water and sewer rates remained constant with fiscal year 2019-2020. These fees cover the expenses imposed by 
the Great Lakes Water Authority; Wayne County, Michigan; city billing staff; and city operations and maintenance 
staff, and infrastructure improvements are financed by issuance of debt and the use of reserves. 

The City Council and administration review revenue and expenditures annually to ensure revenue remains at an 
adequate level to support the required expenditures of the water and sewer systems. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City experienced a 3.8 percent increase in taxable value in fiscal year 2019-2020, resulting in a modest 
increase in property tax revenue. The City Council and administration review expenditures to determine if 
appropriate funding levels from property taxes and revenue sharing will adequately cover expenditures. Revenue 
exceeded expenditures for fiscal year 2019-2020 by approximately $69,000. The decrease in expenditures is the 
direct result of the suspension of Lake Front Park activities and the deferment of the pool opening to July due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Local Street Activity 

The Local Street Fund accounts for the maintenance and replacement of all local streets within the City. The City 
has approximately 42 miles of local streets within our municipal boundaries. The primary source of financing for 
this fund is provided by distribution of gas tax proceeds from the State under Public Act 51, with the City receiving 
just under $440,000 in fiscal year 2019-2020. The other primary income source is through a transfer from the 
General Fund. Expenditures exceeded revenue in local streets by $594,320. The reason for the increase in 
expenditures is the completion of the Beaufait and Oxford road project budgeted in fiscal year 2019-2020. The 
Local Street Fund additionally receives a small amount of its revenue from fees, other state funding, special 
assessment, and interest on investments. 

The Local Street Fund's fund balance decreased by $594,320. This decrease is the direct result of fiscal year 
2018-2019 projects being finalized and closing payments to contractors were made in fiscal year 2019-2020. The 
Local Street Fund's fund balance at fiscal year end 2019-2020 was $797,860. For reporting purposes, this fund 
balance has been classified as committed and rolled into the General Fund. 

Cable Franchise Activity 

The Cable Franchise Fund was established to invest the proceeds from the sale of the City's interest in a cable 
company's earnings used for capital improvements. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

The Cable Franchise Fund's fund balance increased to $549,619 primarily as a result of annual interest earnings 
and is reported in the General Fund as assigned. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

General obligation debt for the City in fiscal year 2019-2020 includes the 2015 Road Construction Bonds, the 2017 
Road Construction Bonds, and the 2018 Capital Improvement Bonds utilized to fund municipal infrastructure 
needs throughout various city-owned buildings and properties. These general obligation bonds are secured by an 
issuing government's pledge to use all available resources to repay holders of the bond and that they are backed 
by the full faith and credit of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan as the issuing authority. Fiscal year 2019-
2020 ended with general obligation debt of $8.8 million dollars in outstanding principal. 

The City finalized all vehicle lease-to-own payments in fiscal year 2019-2020 from the prior four years of funding 
vehicle purchases through installment payments versus the outright purchases. Overall, the City's debt remains 
low with combined governmental long-term debt at $27 million, with $17.8 million directly attributed to the Milk 
River Drainage Project. Detailed information on the City's debt can be found in the statistical section of this report 
in the debt capacity and direct and overlapping debt schedules. For more information regarding the activity of 
capital assets and debt, please refer to Notes 4 and 6, respectively 

Economic Factors 

Property tax values increased pursuant to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) approximately 1.9 percent and realized 
an overall increase of 3.8 percent in fiscal year 2019-2020. The overall increase is inclusive of all taxable value 
additions as losses calculated into this final percentage. This resulted in an increase in property tax revenue of 
approximately $835,000 in fiscal year 2019-2020. The City remains hopeful that the rebound from the 2007 decline 
in taxable values continues. Prudent fiscal management continues to be a top priority, as the City continues to 
implement cost-saving measures: reducing discretionary spending, evaluating and prioritizing capital projects, and 
working to establish partnerships with other agencies. 

The City was awarded a Storm Water Asset Management and Wastewater (SAW) Grant in 2017, which funded 
the investigation of the City's sewer lines, manholes, and catch basins; funded an asset management system to 
properly inventory and rate the condition of each sewer asset; and helped the City in developing a long-term 
capital improvement plan. City staff, working closely with city engineers, provided adequate funding during fiscal 
year 2019-2020 to begin to address some of the needs identified as a result of this grant funding. Significant 
strides were made during the year in many areas of the City as it worked to accomplish these important goals. 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory disease caused by a 
coronavirus a pandemic. Executive Order 20-21 was signed by Governor Gretchen Whitmer on March 23, 2020 
directing all Michigan businesses and operations to temporarily suspend in-person operations that were not 
necessary to sustain or protect life. The order also directed Michigan residents to stay in their homes unless they 
were a part of a critical infrastructure workforce, engaged in an outdoor activity, or performing tasks necessary to 
the health and safety of themselves or their family. City administration, in conjunction with the mayor and City 
Council, immediately suspended all city operations with the exception of our public safety and public works 
department and directed staff to "stay home, stay safe" as the unprecedented crisis of the COVID-19 pandemic 
unfolded. Pursuant to authority granted by the City Council, city administration provided our information technology 
department with the equipment and resources needed to establish remote workstations for essential city 
employees, and daily e-blasts were provided to the community to provide resources and information. Throughout 
the 14 weeks of the municipal offices being closed to the public (March 24, 2020 through July 10, 2020), all city 
services remained intact, with staff performing in an exemplary manner while providing exceptional service to our 
community during this trying time. 

Contacting the City's Management 

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with a general 
overview of the City's finances and demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional information, please contact the city administrator's office at (313) 
343-2450. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Statement of Net Position 

Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

June 30, 2020 

Total 

Cash and investments (Note 3) $ 	15,539,703 $ 	13,628,908 $ 	29,168,611 
Receivables: 

Property taxes receivable 110 - 110 
Customer receivables 1,781,574 1,781,574 
Accrued interest receivable 25,744 26,025 51,769 
Other receivables 7,633 7,633 
Due from other governments 587,403 41,884 629,287 

Internal balances 30,912 (30,912) - 
Prepaid items and other assets 269,370 10,359 279,729 
Restricted assets 290,135 198,090 488,225 
Investment in Grosse Pointes-Clinton Refuse Disposal 

Authority (Note 13) 55,348 55,348 
Capital assets: (Note 4) 

Assets not subject to depreciation 21,008,821 82,460 21,091,281 
Assets subject to depreciation - Net 40,023,760 29,878,120 69,901,880 

Total assets 77,838,939 45,616,508 123,455,447 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred pension costs 8,730,427 788,807 9,519,234 
Deferred OPEB costs 164,749 16,054 180,803 

Total deferred outflows of resources 8,895,176 804,861 9,700,037 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 1,133,357 574,121 1,707,478 
Due to other governmental units 36,158 36,158 
Accrued liabilities and other: 

Accrued salaries and wages 209,014 18,172 227,186 
Payroll taxes and withholdings 41,521 4,445 45,966 
Accrued interest payable 62,664 28,945 91,609 
Accrued other 326,787 297,059 623,846 

Unearned revenue 24,818 24,818 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year: 
Compensated absences (Note 6) 776,015 53,342 829,357 
Provision for claims (Notes 6 and 14) 128,706 128,706 
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 1,738,265 808,271 2,546,536 

Due in more than one year: 
Compensated absences (Note 6) 202,098 12,481 214,579 
Net pension liability (Note 8) 45,007,641 3,660,967 48,668,608 
Net OPEB liability (Note 10) 32,243,407 3,141,698 35,385,105 
Long-term debt - Net of current portion (Note 6) 25,276,584 6,115,604 31,392,188 

Total liabilities 107,207,035 14,715,105 121,922,140 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred pension cost reductions 2,844,668 321,964 3,166,632 
Deferred OPEB cost reductions 725,409 70,671 796,080 

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,570,077 392,635 3,962,712 

Net Position (Deficit) 
Net investment in capital assets 34,307,867 23,036,705 57,344,572 
Restricted: 

Roads 1,041,231 1,041,231 
Debt service 2,403,380 198,090 2,601,470 
Public safety 54,213 54,213 
Solid waste 274,747 274,747 
Community development 95,397 95,397 
Grants 10,044 10,044 

Unrestricted (62,229,876) 8,078,834 (54,151,042) 

Total net position (deficit) $ 	(24,042,997)  $ 	31,313,629  $ 	7,270,632  

See notes to financial statements. 	 9 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Functions/Programs 
Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 

Expenses 

Program Revenue 

Charges for 
Services 

Operating 	Capital Grants 
Grants and 	and 

Contributions 	Contributions 

General government $ 	518,836 $ 	403,678 $ 	55,228 $ 
Public safety 5,741,383 253,797 
Public works 6,547,839 1,510,849 930,108 
Solid waste 1,661,616 
Municipal improvement 1,283,863 110 
Recreation and culture 1,848,120 78,258 
Interest on long-term debt 560,896 

Total governmental activities 18,162,553 735,843 1,566,077 930,108 

Business-type activities: 
Water and Sewer Fund 6,399,751 8,021,351 
Parking Utility Fund 432,624 321,868 
Boat Dock Rental Fund 132,434 512,097 
Commodity Sales Fund 5,279 13,795 

Total business-type activities 6,970,088 8,869,111 

Total primary government $ 	25,132,641 $ 	9,604,954 $ 	1,566,077 $ 	930,108 

General revenue: 
Property taxes 
Unrestricted state-shared revenue 
Unrestricted investment income 
Franchise fees 
Other miscellaneous income 

Total general revenue 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning of year 

Net Position - End of year 

See notes to financial statements. 	 10 



Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net 
Position 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities 	Activities 	Total 

$ 	(59,930) $ 	- $ 	(59,930) 

	

(5,487,586) 	 - 	(5,487,586) 

	

(4,106,882) 	 - 	(4,106,882) 

	

(1,661,616) 	 - 	(1,661,616) 

	

(1,283,753) 	 (1,283,753) 

	

(1,769,862) 	 - 	(1,769,862) 

	

(560,896) 	 (560,896) 

(14,930,525) 	 (14,930,525) 

	

1,621,600 	1,621,600 

	

(110,756) 	(110,756) 

	

379,663 	379,663 

	

8,516 	8,516 

1,899,023 	1,899,023 

	

(14,930,525) 	1,899,023 	(13,031,502) 

	

15,997,173 	 - 	15,997,173 

	

1,649,486 	 - 	1,649,486 

	

338,402 	241,682 	580,084 

	

369,566 	 369,566 

	

1,129,700 	 - 	1,129,700 

19,484,327 	241,682 	19,726,009 

	

4,553,802 	2,140,705 	6,694,507 

	

(28,596,799) 	29,172,924 	576,125  

$ (24,042,997) $ 31,313,629  $ 7,270,632  

11 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2020 

Assets 

General Fund 

Debt Service 
Fund - 

Grosse-Gratiot 
Drain Fund Nonmajor Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Cash and investments (Note 3) $ 	7,941,443 $ 	2,658,761 $ 	2,437,442 $ 	13,037,646 
Receivables: 

Property taxes receivable 110 110 
Accrued interest receivable 13,378 997 14,375 
Other receivables 7,633 7,633 
Due from other governments 413,311 174,092 587,403 

Due from other funds (Note 5) 52,872 7,443 60,315 
Advances to other funds 201,828 201,828 
Prepaid items and other assets 89,089 11,783 100,872 
Restricted assets 290,135 290,135 

Total assets $ 	8,711,921 $ 	2,659,758 $ 	2,928,638 $ 	14,300,317 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 325,004 $ 	414,926 $ 	373,427 $ 	1,113,357 
Due to other governmental units 36,158 36,158 
Due to other funds (Note 5) 11,022 20,000 31,022 
Advances from other funds 201,828 201,828 
Accrued liabilities and other: 

Accrued salaries and wages 197,452 6,699 204,151 
Payroll taxes and withholdings 38,480 1,692 40,172 
Accrued other 239,821 38,122 45,931 323,874 

Unearned revenue 24,818 24,818 

Total liabilities 847,937 453,048 674,395 1,975,380 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unavailable 
revenue 578 110 688 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 290,917 11,783 302,700 
Restricted: 

Roads 1,034,274 1,034,274 
Public safety 53,040 53,040 
Debt service 2,206,710 196,670 2,403,380 
Grants 10,044 10,044 
Community development 94,397 94,397 
Solid waste 271,984 271,984 
Capital improvement 290,135 290,135 

Committed - Local streets 791,701 791,701 
Assigned: 

Public safety 50,000 61,565 111,565 
Capital projects 115,084 115,084 
Parkway beautification 115,157 115,157 
Cable 549,619 549,619 

Unassigned 6,181,169 6,181,169 

Total fund balances 7,863,406 2,206,710 2,254,133 12,324,249 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances $ 	8,711,921  $ 	2,659,758  $ 	2,928,638  $ 	14,300,317  

See notes to financial statements. 	 12 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2020 

Fund Balances Reported in Governmental Funds 	 $ 	12,324,249 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different 
because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and are not 
reported in the funds 	 59,236,980 

Receivables that are not collected soon after year end are not available to pay for current 
period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds 	 688 

Investments in joint ventures are not financial resources and are not reported in the 
funds 	 55,348 

Bonds payable and capital lease obligations are not due and payable in the current 
period and are not reported in the funds 	 (27,014,849) 

Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and is not reported in the 
funds 	 (62,664) 

Some employee fringe benefits are payable over a long period of years and do not 
represent a claim on current financial resources; therefore, they are not reported as 
fund liabilities: 

Employee compensated absences 	 (946,605) 
Pension benefits 	 (37,888,018) 
Retiree health care benefits (OPEB) 	 (31,864,476) 

Internal service funds are included as part of governmental activities 	 2,116,350  

Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities 	 $ (24,042,997) 

See notes to financial statements. 	 13 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Funds 
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 
Property taxes: 

General Fund 

Debt Service 
Fund - 

Grosse-Gratiot 
Drain Fund Nonmajor Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Property taxes $ 	10,241,873 $ 	2,836,373 $ 2,918,239 $ 	15,996,485 
Franchise fees 369,566 369,566 

Intergovernmental: 
Federal grants 26,750 26,750 
State and local sources 2,093,809 11,099 1,110,655 3,215,563 

Charges for services 600,775 600,775 
Fines and forfeitures 253,797 253,797 
Investment income 195,494 58,876 34,908 289,278 
Other revenue 255,415 203,448 458,863 

Total revenue 14,010,729 2,906,348 4,294,000 21,211,077 

Expenditures 
Current services: 

General government 2,537,974 65,559 2,603,533 
Public safety 5,502,349 150,125 5,652,474 
Public works 4,864,890 8,477,879 2,739,594 16,082,363 
Municipal improvement 1,181,810 1,181,810 
Parks and recreation 1,498,109 249,383 1,747,492 

Debt service: 
Principal 723,048 925,500 1,648,548 
Interest on long-term debt 331,749 284,723 616,472 

Total expenditures 14,403,322 9,532,676 5,596,694 29,532,692 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (392,593) (6,626,328) (1,302,694) (8,321,615) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 519,346 1,320,549 1,839,895 
Transfers out (1,320,549) (519,346) (1,839,895) 
New debt issued 5,701,651 5,701,651 
Insurance recoveries 672,501 672,501 

Total other financing (uses) 
sources (128,702) 5,701,651 801,203 6,374,152 

Net Change in Fund Balances (521,295) (924,677) (501,491) (1,947,463) 

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 8,384,701 3,131,387 2,755,624 14,271,712 

Fund Balances - End of year $ 	7,863,406 $ 	2,206,710 $ 2,254,133 $ 	12,324,249 

See notes to financial statements. 	 14 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Net Change in Fund Balances Reported in Governmental Funds 
	

$ 	(1,947,463) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different 
because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the statement of 
activities, these costs are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation: 

Depreciation expense 	 (1,726,179) 
Donated assets 	 906,733 
Capital outlay 	 9,790,049 

Revenue in the statement of activities that does not provide current financial resources is 
not reported as revenue in the funds until it is available 	 (4,351) 

Issuing debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds but increases 
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position 	 (5,701,651) 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds but not in the 
statement of activities (where it reduces long-term debt) 	 1,710,317 

Interest expense is recognized in the government-wide statements as it accrues 	 (6,193) 

Some employee costs (pension, OPEB, and compensated absences) do not require the 
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
the governmental funds 	 765,048 

Change in investment in a joint Grosse Pointes-Clinton Refuse Disposal Authority is not 
recorded in the funds 	 14,228 

Internal service funds are included as part of governmental activities 	 753,264  

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 	 $ 	4,553,802 

See notes to financial statements. 	 15 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2020 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Enterprise Funds 
Governmental 

Activities 
Water and Sewer 

Fund 
Nonmajor 
Enterprise Total 

Internal Service 
Funds 

Cash and investments $ 	11,950,137 	$ 1,678,771 $ 	13,628,908 $ 	2,502,057 
Receivables: 

Customer receivables 1,781,574 - 1,781,574 
Accrued interest receivable 23,996 2,029 26,025 11,369 
Due from other governments 41,884 - 41,884 

Due from other funds 91 62 153 3,734 
Prepaid items and other assets 8,599 1,760 10,359 168,498 

Total current assets 13,806,281 1,682,622 15,488,903 2,685,658 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets 198,090 198,090 
Capital assets: 

Assets not subject to depreciation 82,460 82,460 
Assets subject to depreciation - Net 28,795,230 1,082,890 29,878,120 1,795,601 

Total noncurrent assets 29,075,780 1,082,890 30,158,670 1,795,601 

Total assets 42,882,061 2,765,512 45,647,573 4,481,259 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred pension costs 642,548 146,259 788,807 313,656 
Deferred OPEB costs 12,946 3,108 16,054 4,719 

Total deferred outflows of resources 655,494 149,367 804,861 318,375 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 570,944 3,177 574,121 20,000 
Due to other funds 31,065 31,065 2,115 
Accrued liabilities and other 340,749 7,872 348,621 9,125 
Compensated absences 40,540 12,802 53,342 - 
Provision for claims - 128,706 
Current portion of long-term debt 808,271 - 808,271 - 

Total current liabilities 1,760,504 54,916 1,815,420 159,946 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 9,486 2,995 12,481 31,508 
Net pension liability 2,945,112 715,855 3,660,967 1,414,347 
Net OPEB liability 2,533,707 607,991 3,141,698 923,522 
Long-term debt - Net of current portion 6,115,604 - 6,115,604 - 

Total noncurrent liabilities 11,603,909 1,326,841 12,930,750 2,369,377 

Total liabilities 13,364,413 1,381,757 14,746,170 2,529,323 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred pension cost reductions 267,957 54,007 321,964 133,173 
Deferred OPEB cost reductions 56,993 13,678 70,671 20,788 

Total deferred inflows of resources 324,950 67,685 392,635 153,961 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 21,953,815 1,082,890 23,036,705 1,795,601 
Restricted - Debt service 198,090 198,090 
Unrestricted 7,696,287 382,547 8,078,834 320,749 

Total net position 
$ 	29,848,192 	$ 1,465,437 $ 	31,313,629 $ 	2,116,350 

See notes to financial statements. 	 16 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Operating Revenue 

Enterprise Funds 
Governmental 

Activities 
Water and Sewer 

Fund 
Nonmajor 
Enterprise Total 

Internal Service 
Funds 

Water sales and charges for services $ 	7,632,579 $ $ 	7,632,579 $ 
Interest and penalty charges 112,801 112,801 
Fees and violations 316,748 316,748 
Dockings and launching fees 195,382 195,382 
Commodity sales - 13,795 13,795 _ 
Other revenue 247,700 321,835 569,535 1,200 
Charges to other funds - - - 1,506,850 

Total operating revenue 7,993,080 847,760 8,840,840 1,508,050 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of water 3,700,730 3,700,730 - 
Cost of insurance claims - - 39,153 
General and administrative 92,440 244,264 336,704 199,590 
Operation and maintenance 1,001,684 199,301 1,200,985 
Charges from internal service funds 550,000 - 550,000 
Vehicle operation and maintenance - - - 271,678 
Depreciation 879,442 126,066 1,005,508 312,194 

Total operating expenses 6,224,296 569,631 6,793,927 822,615 

Operating Income 1,768,784 278,129 2,046,913 685,435 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 
Investment income 220,052 21,630 241,682 57,518 
Interest expense (175,455) (706) (176,161) (1,639) 
Loss on sale of assets - 8,250 
Amortization of debt premium 28,271 28,271 
Insurance proceeds - - 3,700 

Total nonoperating revenue 72,868 20,924 93,792 67,829 

Change in Net Position 1,841,652 299,053 2,140,705 753,264 

Net Position - Beginning of year 28,006,540 1,166,384 29,172,924 1,363,086 

Net Position - End of year 
$ 	29,848,192 $ 	1,465,437 $ 	31,313,629 $ 	2,116,350 

See notes to financial statements. 	 17 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Enterprise Funds 
Governmental 

Activities 
Water and Sewer 

Fund 
Nonmajor 
Enterprise Total 

Internal Service 
Funds 

Receipts from customers $ 	7,834,669 $ 	847,760 $ 	8,682,429 $ 	1,200 
Receipts from interfund services and reimbursements (91) (91) 1,505,231 
Payments to suppliers (4,004,072) (240,580) (4,244,652) (390,214) 
Payments to employees and fringes (1,525,691) (722,576) (2,248,267) (292,213) 
Payments from other funds - (37,726) (37,726) 
Claims paid - - (108,353) 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) operating activities 2,304,815 (153,122) 2,151,693 715,651 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing 
Activities 

Proceeds from insurance - 3,700 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - 8,250 
Purchase of capital assets (1,581,685) (37,132) (1,618,817) (626,122) 
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (937,273) (706) (937,979) (63,735) 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in 
capital and related financing activities (2,518,958) (37,838) (2,556,796) (677,907) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest received on investments 227,261 26,102 253,363 58,196 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment 

securities 3,674,127 484,441 4,158,568 33,176 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by investing activities 3,901,388 510,543 4,411,931 91,372 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,687,245 319,583 4,006,828 129,116 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 4,563,729 624,687 5,188,416 1,137,994 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 	8,250,974 $ 	944,270 $ 	9,195,244 $ 	1,267,110 

Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and investments $ 	11,950,137 $ 	1,678,771 $ 	13,628,908 $ 	2,502,057 
Restricted cash 198,090 198,090 
Less amounts classified as investments (3,897,253) (734,501) (4,631,754) (1,234,947) 

Total cash and cash equivalents 8,250,974 $ 	944,270 $ 	9,195,244 $ 	1,267,110 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash from 
Operating Activities 

Operating income $ 	1,768,784 $ 	278,129 $ 	2,046,913 $ 	685,435 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

from operating activities: 
Depreciation 879,442 126,066 1,005,508 312,194 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables (106,556) (106,556) - 
Due to and from other funds (91) (3,997) (4,088) (1,619) 
Prepaid and other assets (1,977) (529) (2,506) (112,222) 
Net pension or OPEB asset 144,887 (416,255) (271,368) (90,746) 
Accounts payable (379,674) (136,536) (516,210) (3,263) 
Estimated claims liability (74,128) 

Total adjustments 536,031 (431,251) 104,780 30,216 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) operating activities 2,304,815 $ 	(153,122) $ 	2,151,693 $ 	715,651 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

June 30, 2020 

Assets 

	

Pension and 
Other Employee 

Benefits Agency Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	299,523 $ 	2,795 
Investments: 

Stocks 15,422,323 
Corporate bonds 6,733,885 
Pooled investments 15,999,052 

Receivables 25 

Total assets 38,454,808 $ 	2,795 

Liabilities - Payables 	 _ $ 	2,795 

	

Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other Employee Benefits 	$ 	38,454,808 	

See notes to financial statements. 	 19 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Year Ended 

Additions 
Investment income (loss). 

June 30, 2020 

Pension and 
Other Employee 

Benefits 

Interest and dividends 571,354 
Net increase in fair value of investments (376,867) 
Investment-related expenses (74,175) 

Net investment income 120,312 

Contributions: 
Employer contributions 3,144,224 
Employee contributions 321,216 

Total contributions 3,465,440 

Total additions 3,585,752 

Deductions - Benefit payments 5,033,991 

Net Decrease in Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other Employee Benefits (1,448,239) 

Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other Employee Benefits - Beginning of year 39,903,047 

Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other Employee Benefits - End of year $ 	38,454,808 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

The City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan (the "City") is governed by an elected mayor and a six-
member City Council. In accordance with government accounting principles, there are no separate legal 
entities appropriate to be reported within these financial statements. 

The City was incorporated as a home rule village on January 4, 1927 and as a home rule city on 
December 11, 1950. The City has a population of 16,135 per the 2010 census and encompasses 3.2 
square miles. The City is located approximately 10 miles north of downtown Detroit and is over 97 percent 
residential. There are no major industries or corporations located within the City's limits. 

Accounting and Reporting Principles 

The City follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as 
applicable to governmental units. Accounting and financial reporting pronouncements are promulgated by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary of the significant 
accounting policies used by the City: 

Report Presentation 

Governmental accounting principles require that financial reports include two different perspectives - the 
government-wide perspective and the fund-based perspective. The government-wide financial statements 
(i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the 
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units, as applicable. The government-
wide financial statements are presented on the economic resources measurement focus and the full 
accrual basis of accounting. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. The statements also present a schedule reconciling these amounts to the 
modified accrual-based presentation found in the fund-based statements. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenue includes: (1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Taxes, unrestricted intergovernmental receipts, and other 
items not properly included among program revenue are reported instead as general revenue. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule occur when there are charges between the City's water and 
sewer function and various other functions. Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs 
and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds, if any, are reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Basis of Accounting 

The governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is intended to better demonstrate accountability for how the 
City has spent its resources. 

Expenditures are reported when the goods are received or the services are rendered. Capital outlays are 
reported as expenditures (rather than as capital assets) because they reduce the ability to spend 
resources in the future; conversely, employee benefit costs that will be funded in the future (such as 
pension and retiree health care-related costs or sick and vacation pay) are not counted until they come 
due for payment. In addition, debt service expenditures, claims, and judgments are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Revenue is not recognized until it is collected or collected soon enough after the end of the year that it is 
available to pay for obligations outstanding at the end of the year. For this purpose, the City considers 
amounts collected within 60 days of year end to be available for recognition. The following major revenue 
sources meet the availability criterion: state-shared revenue, state gas and weight tax revenue, court 
fines, and interest associated with the current fiscal period. Conversely, amounts collected after the period 
of availability are recorded as a deferred inflow, along with a corresponding receivable. 

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, as applicable, use the economic resources measurement focus and 
the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when 
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

Fund Accounting 

The City accounts for its various activities in several different funds in order to demonstrate accountability 
for how it spends certain resources; separate funds allow the City to show the particular expenditures for 
which specific revenue is used. The various funds are aggregated into three broad fund types: 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds include all activities that provide general governmental services that are not 
business-type activities. Governmental funds can include the General Fund, special revenue funds, debt 
service funds, capital project funds, and permanent funds. The City reports the following funds as major 
governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the primary operating fund because it accounts for all financial resources used to 
provide government services other than those specifically assigned to another fund. 

• The Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund is used to account for revenue received that is used to pay for capital 
projects related to the drain, as well as principal and interest on the Grosse-Gratiot Drain long-term 
debt. Funding is provided by a specific property tax millage. 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds include enterprise funds (which provide goods or services to users in exchange for 
charges or fees) and internal service funds (which provide goods or services to other funds of the City). 
The City reports the following fund as a major enterprise funds: 

• The Water and Sewer Fund provides water to customers and disposes of sanitary sewage in exchange 
for quarterly user charges. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The City's internal service funds are used to allocate insurance costs and machinery and equipment 
purchases and maintenance to the various funds on a full accrual basis so that the full costs are 
recognized and allocated to the various funds in the year that the costs are incurred. The City has two 
internal service funds: 

• The Motor Vehicle Fund has been established to account for costs associated with vehicles purchased 
by the City and used by all department within the City. 

• The Workers' Compensation Fund is used to fund workers' compensation claims and purchase 
insurance that provides coverage for employees. The fund is financed primarily by charges to various 
departments within the City. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds include amounts held in a fiduciary capacity for others. These amounts are not used to 
operate the City's programs. Activities that are reported as fiduciary include the following: 

• The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds account for the activities of the employee 
benefit plans, which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to retirees and other 
postemployment benefit payments to qualified retirees. 

• The agency funds primarily record tax collections received and remitted to other units of government 
(the County of Wayne, Michigan; community colleges; school districts; etc.), as well as building bonds 
and deposits held for temporary periods. The agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal 
liabilities) and do not involve the measurement or results of operations. 

Interfund Activity 

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual 
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other 
funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in 
the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in 
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the 
net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances 
between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that 
only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column. 

Furthermore, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In 
fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While 
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-
wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated 
so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, 
balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount 
is included as transfers in the business-type activities column. 

Specific Balances and Transactions 

Cash and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted 
market prices. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements, when applicable. Prepaid items are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Restricted Assets 

The capital improvement fund has unspent bond proceeds of $290,135 at June 30, 2020, and these have 
been restricted. 

The revenue bonds of the Water and Sewer Fund require amounts to be set aside for debt service. These 
amounts have been classified as restricted assets. The balance of the restricted asset account for 
revenue bond restriction for debt payments is $198,090 at June 30, 2020. These amounts have also been 
classified as restricted net position. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, intangible assets, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City 
as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Capital Asset Class 
Depreciable Life -

Years 

Infrastructure 10-50 
Buildings 25 
Water and sewer lines 50 
Equipment 5 
Vehicles 3-7 
Land improvements 10-40 

Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net position. Bond 
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest 
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance 
costs are expensed at the time they are incurred. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund 
types recognize bond issuances and premiums as other financing sources and bond discounts as other 
financing uses. The General Fund and debt service funds generally are used to liquidate governmental 
long-term debt, and the Water and Sewer Fund is generally used to liquidate business-type long-term 
debt. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. 

The City reports the following deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources: 

Inflows 	Outflows 

Unavailable revenue (those not collected within the period of 
availability) - Reported only at the modified accrual level 

Deferred pension costs (or cost reductions) 
Deferred OPEB costs (or cost reductions) 

Net Position 

Net position of the City is classified in three components. Net  investment in capital assets consists of 
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and is reduced by the current balances of any outstanding 
borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets. The restricted component of net 
position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to 
those assets. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net position that does not meet the definition of 
invested in capital or restricted. 

Net Position Flow Assumption  

The City will sometimes fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 
resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net 
position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be 
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to 
consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied. 

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions 

The City will sometimes fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the 
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental 
fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are 
considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted 
before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Furthermore, when the components of 
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, 
followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 

Fund Balance Policies 

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any 
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The nonspendable fund balance 
component represents amounts that are not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact. Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside 
parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation for use for a specific purpose. The City itself can 
establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an 
assignment (assigned fund balance). 

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific 
purposes determined by a formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making authority. The City 
Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can, by passing a resolution prior 
to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once passed, the limitation imposed by the resolution 
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the passing of another resolution) to remove or revise the 
limitation. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for 
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The City has, by resolution, 
authorized the finance director to assign fund balance. The City Council may also assign fund balance as 
it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in 
the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist 
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an 
assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a 
commitment. 

Property Tax Revenue 

Property taxes are levied on each December 31. The related property taxes are billed and become a lien 
on July 1 of the following year. Taxes are considered delinquent on February 28 of the following year, at 
which time they are added to the county tax rolls. 

The City's 2019 property tax revenue was levied and collectible on July 1, 2019 and was recognized as 
revenue in the year ended June 30, 2020 when the proceeds of the levy were budgeted and available for 
the financing of operations. 

The 2019 taxable valuation of the City totaled $723 million. Taxes were levied as follows: 

Purpose Millage Rate Revenue 

General operating 13.4300 $ 9,703,000 
Public relations 0.0690 49,000 
Solid waste disposal 2.5674 1,853,000 
Road bond debt 1.5000 1,082,000 
Grosse-Gratiot Drain 3.9550 2,852,000 

Total 15,539,000 

Pension  

The City offers a defined benefit pension plan to its employees. The City records a net pension liability for 
the difference between the total pension liability calculated by the actuary and the pension plan's fiduciary 
net position. For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the pension plan and additions to/deductions from the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the pension plan. For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Other Postemployment Benefit Costs 

The City offers retiree health care benefits to retirees. The City records a net OPEB liability for the 
difference between the total OPEB liability calculated by the actuary and the OPEB plan's fiduciary net 
position. For the purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the OPEB plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB plan. For this purpose, benefit payments 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave)  

It is the City's policy that employees earn vacation pay benefits on their anniversary date and sick benefits 
monthly. The government-wide and proprietary fund statements accrue all vacation and sick pay as it is 
used or vested (whichever is earlier). A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds as it 
comes due for payment (when the time is taken off or employees terminate). The General Fund, Water 
and Sewer Fund, and each nonmajor proprietary fund are generally used to liquidate compensated 
absences. 

Proprietary Funds Operating Classification 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of 
proprietary funds is charges to customers for sales or services. In addition, the Water and Sewer Fund 
recognizes the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the 
system. Operating expenses for these funds include the cost of sales or services and administrative 
expenses and may include depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This statement establishes 
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. An activity meeting the criteria 
should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. The City is currently evaluating the 
impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement 
are effective for the City's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2021. 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which improves accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single 
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to 
use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred 
inflow of resources. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial 
statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the City's financial statements 
for the year ending June 30, 2022. 

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests. This statement improves 
the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization and improves the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. 
The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when 
adopted for the year ending June 30, 2021. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which clarifies the existing 
definition of conduit debt, provides a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers, and 
eliminates diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures. As a result, issuers should not 
recognize a liability for items meeting the definition of conduit debt; however, a liability should be recorded 
for additional or voluntary commitments to support debt service if certain recognition criteria are met. The 
standard also addresses the treatment of arrangements where capital assets are constructed or acquired 
with the proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by a third-party obligor. The requirements of the 
standard will be applied retrospectively and are effective for the City's financial statements for the June 30, 
2022 fiscal year. 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements, to bring a uniform guidance on how to report public-private and public-
public partnership arrangements. As a result, transferors in public-private or public-public arrangements 
will recognize receivables for installment payments, deferred inflows of resources, and, when applicable, 
capital assets. Operators will recognize liabilities for installment payments and intangible right-to-use 
assets and, when applicable, deferred outflows of resources and liabilities for assets being transferred. 
This statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment 
arrangements in which a government compensates an operator for services such as designing, 
constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying asset for a period of time in an exchange 
or exchange-like transaction. The provisions of this statement are effective for the City's financial 
statements for the year ending June 30, 2023. 

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements (SBITAs), which defines SBITAs and provides accounting and financial reporting for 
SBITAs by governments. This statement requires a government to recognize a subscription liability and an 
intangible right-to-use subscription asset for SBITAs. The City is currently evaluating the impact this 
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are 
effective for the City's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2023. 

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. While this 
standard had certain aspects impacting defined contribution pension and OPEB plans and other employee 
benefit plans that were effective immediately, it also clarifies when a 457 should be considered a pension 
plan or an other employee benefit plan to assist in the application of GASB Statement No. 84 to these 
types of plans. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial 
statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement related to 457 plans are effective for the City's 
financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
Construction Code Fees 

The City oversees building construction, in accordance with the State's Construction Code Act, including 
inspection of building construction and renovation to ensure compliance with the building codes. The City 
charges fees for these services. The law requires that collection of these fees be used only for 
construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead costs. A summary of the current 
year activity and the cumulative surplus or shortfall generated since January 1, 2000 is as follows: 

Cumulative shortfall at July 1, 2019 $ 	(742,062) 

Current year permit revenue 393,752 
Related expenses - Direct costs (478,532) 

Current year net loss (84,780) 

Cumulative shortfall June 30, 2020 $ 	(826,842) 

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments 
Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local 
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions, 
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The law also allows investments outside 
the state of Michigan when fully insured. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other 
direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase 
agreements; bankers' acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest 
classifications that matures no more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State of 
Michigan or its political subdivisions that are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds composed of 
investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. 

The pension trust fund and retiree health care fund are also authorized by Michigan Public Act 314 of 
1965, as amended, to invest in certain reverse repurchase agreements, stocks, diversified investment 
companies, annuity investment contracts, real estate leased to public entities, mortgages, real estate, debt 
or equity of certain small businesses, certain state and local government obligations, and certain other 
specified investment vehicles. 

The City has designated five banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy adopted by the City 
Council in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment in all of the state statutory 
authorities listed above, except for obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions. Also, 
the City's investment policy allows the City to invest no more than 50 percent of any one fund in 
commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three highest classifications established by no 
fewer than two standard rating services. The City's deposits and investments are in accordance with 
statutory authority. 

The City's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined in more detail 
below: 

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned 
to it. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the City had $6,752,568 
of bank deposits (certificates of deposit and checking and savings accounts) that were uninsured and 
uncollateralized. The City believes that, due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC 
insurance, it is impractical to insure all deposits. As a result, the City evaluates each financial institution 
with which it deposits funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an 
acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories. 
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Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in interest rates. 
The City's investment policy minimizes interest rate risk by restricting investment maturities to securities 
maturing three years or less from the date of purchase, unless matched to a specific cash flow 
requirement. However, the repurchase agreements may be collateralized using longer-dated investments 
not to exceed 30 years to maturity. Additionally, no more than 40 percent of the City's total investment 
portfolio, as of June 30 of the preceding year, shall be placed in securities maturing in more than three 
years. 

At year end, the City had the following investments and maturities: 

Primary Government Carrying Value 0-5 Years 

Municipal bonds $ 	753,075 $ 	753,075 
Negotiable certificates of deposit 500,903 500,903 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 707,478 707,478 
Federal National Mortgage Association 256,210 256,210 
Federal Farm Credit Bank 2,256,730 2,256,730 

Total $ 	4,474,396 $ 	4,474,396 

More Than 
Fiduciary Funds 
	

Carrying Value 	0-5 Years 	5-15 Years 
	

15 Years 

Loomis Sayles Bond Fund 
	

$ 	6,733,884 $ 	6,733,884 $ 

Credit Risk 

State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized 
statistical rating organizations. The City has no investment policy that would further limit its investment 
choices. As of June 30, 2020, the credit quality ratings of debt securities (other than the U.S. government) 
are as follows: 

Investment Carrying Value Rating 
Rating 

Organization 

Primary Government 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation $ 	707,478 AAA Moody's 
Federal National Mortgage Association - Fixed 756,255 AAA Moody's 
Federal Farm Credit Bank 1,756,685 AAA Moody's 
Municipal bonds 500,070 AAA Moody's 
Municipal bonds 253,005 AA Moody's 

Rating 
Investment Carrying Value Rating Organization 

Fiduciary Funds 

Loomis Sayles Bond Fund $ 	6,733,884 Not rated N/A 
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Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The City's investment policy minimizes concentration of credit risk by placing limits on the amount that the 
City may invest in any one issuer or security type to no more than 50 percent of the total investment 
portfolio invested in a single security type or 25 percent invested with a single financial institution. The City 
has more than 5 percent of its investments in the following: 

Primary Government 	 Percent 

Federal National Mortgage Association 5.73 % 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 15.81 
Federal Farm Credit Bank 39.26 

Fiduciary Funds Percent 

iShares 32.60 % 
DFA Emerging Markets 7.01 
American Fund Europacific 10.93 
Vanguard S&P Small Cap 7.63 
Templeton Inst foreign 5.40 

Fair Value Measurements 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair 
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs 
are significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
Investments that are measured at fair value using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a 
practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below. 

In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value 
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the valuation. The City's assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value 
measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset. 
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The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020: 

Assets Measured at Carrying Value on a Recurring Basis at 
June 30, 2020 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 	Balance at 
(Level 3) 	June 30, 2020 

Debt securities - Bond funds $ 	6,733,884 $ 	 $ $ 	6,733,884 

Equity securities: 
Money market funds 121,840 121,840 
Equity funds 31,421,375 31,421,375 

Total equity securities 31,543,215 31,543,215 

Governmental securities: 
U.S. governmental bonds 3,220,418 3,220,418 
Municipal bonds 753,075 753,075 

Total governmental 
securities 3,973,493 3,973,493 

Certificates of deposit 5,676,792 5,676,792 

Total investments by fair 
value $ 	38,277,099 $ 	9,650,285 	$ - 	$ 	47,927,384 

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those 
securities. 

The fair value of governmental securities and certificates of deposit at June 30, 2020 was determined 
primarily based on Level 2 inputs. The City estimates the fair value of these investments using other 
inputs, such as interest rates and yield curves, that are observable at commonly quoted intervals. 

The valuation method for investments measured at net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) is 
presented in the table below. 

Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value per Share 

The City holds shares or interests in investment companies where the fair value of the investments is 
measured on a recurring basis using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) of the investment 
companies as a practical expedient. 

At June 30, 2020, the fair value of those investments is as follows: 

Carrying Value  

Comerica J Fund 	 $ 	19,171,700 

The Comerica J Fund is not registered with the SEC and does not issue a separate report. The fair value 
of the position in the pool is not the same as the value of the pool shares since the pool does not meet the 
requirements under GASB Statement No. 79 to report its value for financial reporting purposes at 
amortized cost. 

There were no unfunded commitments or redemptions associated with these investments. 
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Note 4 - Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity of the City's governmental and business-type activities was as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

Balance 
July 1, 2019 Reclassifications Additions 

Disposals and 
Adjustments 

Balance 
June 30, 2020 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 

Land 	 $ 	1,547,967 $ 	 - $ 	 - $ $ 	1,547,967 
Construction in progress 	 12,944,059 (97,733) 6,614,528 19,460,854 

Subtotal 	 14,492,026 (97,733) 6,614,528 21,008,821 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 	 41,205,506 97,733 3,106,533 44,409,772 
Buildings 	 11,391,958 842,728 12,234,686 
Equipment and vehicles 	 8,388,588 749,253 (342,682) 8,795,159 
Land improvements 	 703,344 9,862 713,206 

Subtotal 	 61,689,396 97,733 4,708,376 (342,682) 66,152,823 

Accumulated depreciation: 
Infrastructure 	 11,472,846 1,078,096 12,550,942 
Buildings 	 5,550,571 387,215 5,937,786 
Equipment and vehicles 	 7,104,817 537,625 (342,682) 7,299,760 
Land improvements 	 305,138 35,437 340,575 

Subtotal 	 24,433,372 2,038,373 (342,682) 26,129,063 

Net capital assets being 
depreciated 	 37,256,024 97,733 2,670,003 40,023,760 

Net governmental activities 
capital assets 	 $ 	51,748,050 $ $ 	9,284,531 $ $ 	61,032,581 

Business-type Activities 

Balance Disposals and Balance 
July 1, 2019 Reclassifications Additions Adjustments June 30, 2020 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated - Construction in 
progress 53,200 $ (53,200) $ 	82,460 $ $ 	82,460 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Water and sewer lines 43,998,863 53,200 1,499,225 45,551,288 
Land improvements 2,419,928 37,132 2,457,060 

Subtotal 46,418,791 53,200 1,536,357 48,008,348 

Accumulated depreciation: 
Water and sewer lines 15,876,616 879,442 16,756,058 
Land improvements 1,248,104 126,066 1,374,170 

Subtotal 17,124,720 1,005,508 18,130,228 

Net capital assets being 
depreciated 29,294,071 53,200 530,849 29,878,120 

Net business-type activities 
capital assets $ 	29,347,271 $ 613,309 $ $ 	29,960,580 
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Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 	 187,597 
Public safety 	 82,809 
Public works 	 1,189,179 
Recreation and culture 	 266,594 
Internal service funds 	 312,194 

Total governmental activities 	 $ 	2,038,373 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer 	 879,442 
Parking utility 	 48,377 
Boat dock 	 77,689 

Total business-type activities 	 $ 	1,005,508 

Construction Commitments 

The City has active construction projects at year end. At June 30, 2020, the City has spent $16,144,807 in 
connection with active construction projects, and the City's commitment with contractors was $1,177,278. 

Note 5 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

The City has made the following long-term advances between funds: 

Fund Borrowed From 
	

Fund Loaned To 	 Amount 

General Fund 	 Nonmajor governmental funds 	 201,828 

The advance is being repaid over a period of five years at an interest rate of 2.00 percent. 

The composition of interfund balances in the fund statements is as follows: 

Receivable 
	

Payable 	 Amount 

General Fund Nonmajor governmental funds 	 20,000 
Nonmajor enterprise funds 	 31,065 
Internal service funds 	 1,807 

   

Total General Fund 	 52,872 

Nonmajor governmental funds 	 General Fund 	 7,322 
Internal service funds 	 121 

Total nonmajor governmental funds 	 7,443 

Water and Sewer Fund 	 Internal service funds 	 91 

Nonmajor enterprise funds 	 Internal service funds 	 62 

Internal service funds 	 General Fund 	 3,700 
Internal service funds 	 34 

Total internal service funds 	 3,734 

Total 	 64,202 
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Note 5 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (Continued) 

These balances result from the time lag between the dates that goods and services are provided or 
reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments 
between funds are made. 

Interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements are composed of the following: 

Paying Fund (Transfer Out) 
	

Receiving Fund (Transfer In) 	 Amount 

General Fund 	 Nonmajor governmental funds 	 $ 	1,320,549 

Nonmajor governmental funds 	 General Fund 	 519,346 

The transfers from General Fund represent transfers of unrestricted resources to finance operations of the 
various departments in accordance with budgetary authorizations. The transfers from nonmajor 
governmental funds represent transfers for capital projects. 

Note 6 - Long-term Debt 

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 can be summarized as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

Bonds and contracts payable: 
Direct borrowings and direct placements: 

State Revolving Fund, Series 5446-01 

Interest Rate 
Ranges 

Principal 
Maturity 
Ranges 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due within 
One Year 

$740,996 - 
- Maturing through 2039 2.50% $1,164,056 $ 	12,846,326 $ 	5,701,651 $ 	(723,048) $ 	17,824,929 $ 	740,996 

Installment loan - Comerica vehicle 
loans 62,096 (62,096) 

Total direct borrowings and direct 
placements principal 
outstanding 12,908,422 5,701,651 (785,144) 17,824,929 740,996 

Other debt: 
General obligation bonds - 2015 Road 

Construction bonds: 
Amount of issue - $6,600,000 $500,000 - 
Maturing through 2025 2.00% - 4.00% $1,000,000 4,350,000 (500,000) 3,850,000 500,000 

General obligation bonds - 2017 Road 
Construction bonds: 
Amount of issue - $2,875,000 $300,000 - 
Maturing through 2028 2.36% $345,000 2,875,000 (295,000) 2,580,000 300,000 

General obligation bonds - 2018 
Capital Improvement bonds: 
Amount of issue - $2,500,000 $135,000 - 
Maturing through 2033 3.50% $210,000 2,500,000 (130,000) 2,370,000 135,000 

Total other debt principal 
outstanding 9,725,000 (925,000) 8,800,000 935,000 

Unamortized bond premiums 452,189 (62,269) 389,920 62,269 

Total bonds and contracts 
payable 23,085,611 5,701,651 (1,772,413) 27,014,849 1,738,265 

Employee compensated absences 900,447 792,062 (714,396) 978,113 776,015 
Estimated liability for workers' compensation 

and health claims (Note 14) 423,972 1,212,072 (1,507,338) 128,706 128,706 

Total governmental activities 
long-term debt $ 	24,410,030 $ 	7,705,785 $ 	(3,994,147) $ 	28,121,668 $ 	2,642,986 

35 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2020 

Note 6 - Long-term Debt (Continued) 
Business-type Activities 

Bonds and contracts payable: 
Direct borrowings and direct placements: 

2010 Drinking Water Revolving Fund 
Bond-7301-01: 
Amount of issue - $2,095,606 

Interest Rate 
Ranges 

Principal 
Maturity 
Ranges 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due within 
One Year 

$105,000 - 
Maturing through 2030 2.50% $130,606 $ 	1,265,606 $ $ 	(100,000) $ 	1,165,606 $ 	105,000 

2010 Drinking Water Revolving Fund -
7332-01: 
Amount of issue - $3,531,192 $170,000 - 
Maturing through 2029 2.50% $221,393 2,526,393 (165,000) 2,361,393 170,000 

2012 State Revolving Fund Bond -
5365-01: 
Amount of issue - $2,922,065 $130,000 - 
Maturing through 2033 2.50% $177,065 2,252,065 (125,000) 2,127,065 130,000 

Total direct borrowings and direct 
placements principal 
outstanding 6,044,064 (390,000) 5,654,064 405,000 

Other debt- 2013 Revenue Refunding 
Bond: 
Amount of refunding - $3,190,000 $375,000 - 
Maturing through 2023 2.00% - 4.00% $415,000 1,550,000 (365,000) 1,185,000 375,000 

Unamortized bond premiums 113,082 (28,271) 84,811 28,271 

Total bonds and contracts payable 7,707,146 (783,271) 6,923,875 808,271 

Employee compensated absences 63,538 53,775 (51,490) 65,823 53,342 
Estimated liability for workers' compensation and 

health claims (Note 14) 19,076 93,201 (112,277) 

Total business-type activities long-
term debt $ 	7,789,760 $ 	146,976 $ 	(947,038) $ 	6,989,698 $ 	861,613 

General Obligation Bonds and Contracts 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide for the construction of roads and other capital 
improvements. General obligations have been issued for governmental activities. General obligation 
bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. County contractual agreements 
and installment purchase agreements are also general obligations of the City. 

Other Long-term Liabilities 

For the governmental activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally 
liquidated by the General Fund related to employee salaries and fringes. Additionally, for the business-
type activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the Water 
and Sewer Fund for employee salaries and fringes. Net  pension obligations and net OPEB obligations 
typically are paid from the funds from which the individual employee's salaries and wages are paid, which 
are mainly the General Fund, the Major Streets Fund, the Water and Sewer Fund, and the Parking Utility 
Fund. The City has pledged substantially all revenue of the Water and Sewer Fund, net of operating 
expenses, to repay the above water and sewer 2013 Revenue Refunding Bonds. The bonds are payable 
solely from the net revenue of the water and sewer system. The remaining principal and interest to be paid 
on the bonds total $1,251,775. During the current year, net revenue of the system was $1,768,784 
compared to the annual debt requirements of $410,950. 
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Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note obligations are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

Years Ending 
June 30 

Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements Other Debt 

Total Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2021 $ 	740,996 $ 	398,539 $ 	935,000 $ 	237,572 $ 	2,312,107 
2022 761,508 385,792 1,045,000 204,319 2,396,619 
2023 779,456 366,755 1,205,000 165,785 2,516,996 
2024 799,968 347,268 1,470,000 128,916 2,746,152 
2025 820,480 327,269 1,480,000 96,088 2,723,837 

2026-2030 4,422,900 1,318,153 1,870,000 248,037 7,859,090 
Thereafter 9,499,621 854,992 795,000 56,788 11,206,401 

Total $ 	17,824,929 $ 	3,998,768 $ 	8,800,000 $ 	1,137,505 $ 	31,761,202 

Business-type Activities 

Years Ending 
June 30 

Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements Other Debt 

Total Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2021 $ 	405,000 $ 	139,729 $ 	375,000 $ 	35,950 $ 	955,679 
2022 410,000 129,604 395,000 22,525 957,129 
2023 425,000 119,292 415,000 8,300 967,592 
2024 435,000 108,604 - 543,604 
2025 445,000 97,729 - 542,729 

2026-2030 2,405,606 314,583 2,720,189 
Thereafter 1,128,458 51,438 1,179,896 

Total $ 	5,654,064 $ 	960,979 $ 	1,185,000 $ 	66,775 $ 	7,866,818 

Note 7 - Milk River Drainage District 

The City is member of the Milk River Drainage District, administered by Wayne County, Michigan. The 
drainage district serves Wayne County, Michigan; the State of Michigan; and the cities of Grosse Pointe 
Woods, Harper Woods, and St. Clair Shores, Michigan. At June 30, 2020, the drainage district had issued 
$32,948,007 of debt to make improvements to the system. The total cost of the project as of June 30, 
2020 is $38,536,345, and it is expected to be completed by June 30, 2022. The City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods, Michigan is responsible for funding 50.5 percent of the project. As of June 30, 2020, the City has 
recorded $19,460,854 for its share of the completed capital improvements and $17,824,929 for its share 
of the debt. In addition to the debt, the City has recorded $215,745 in payables due to cost overruns as of 
June 30, 2020. The City records the activity in the Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund. 
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Plan Description 

The City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan provides a monthly retirement benefit to employees who meet 
the eligibility requirements, including age and years of service. The benefits are provided through the City 
of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan (the "Pension Plan") and the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension 
Plan Supplemental Annuity (the "Supplemental Annuity"), which are single-employer plans administered 
by the Pension Board. 

The financial statements of each pension system are included in these financial statements as a pension 
and other employee benefit trust fund (a fiduciary fund). 

Management of the plans is vested in the pension board, which consists of five members, the mayor, one 
member of City Council, a resident appointed by the mayor, and two employees - one general and one 
public safety. The city treasurer serves as the treasurer of the retirement system and is the custodian of 
the cash and investments. The city attorney is the legal advisor to the pension board. 

Benefits Provided 

The City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan and the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan 
Supplemental Annuity provide retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit terms for the Pension Plan 
are established by negotiation with the City's competitive bargaining units and the Retirement System 
Ordinance. Benefit terms for the Supplemental Annuity are established as a negotiable item within various 
union contracts. Retirement benefits for plan members range from $3,000 annually for 10 years of 
services to a maximum of $4,800 annually for 25 years of service. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

The following members were covered by the benefit terms: 

City of Grosse 
Pointe Woods 

City of Grosse 	Pension Plan 
Pointe Woods 	Supplemental 
Pension Plan 	Annuity 

Date of member count June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 97 55 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 14 
Active plan members 77 48 

Total employees covered by the plan 188 103 

Contributions 

State law requires public employers to make pension contributions in accordance with an actuarial 
valuation. The City hires an independent actuary for this purpose and annually contributes the amount 
determined to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Employees are required to make pension contributions 
based on the City's collective bargaining units. The City's required contribution is determined after 
consideration of the required contribution rate of employees. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the 
average active employee contribution rate was 5.5 percent and 0.0 percent of covered payroll, and the 
City's contribution rate was 29.4 percent and 13.6 percent of covered payroll for the various employee 
groups for the Pension Plan and the Supplemental Annuity, respectively. 
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Net Pension Liability 

The City chooses a date for each pension plan to measure its net pension liability. This is based on the 
measurement date of each pension plan, which may be based on a comprehensive valuation as of that 
date or based on an earlier valuation that has used procedures to roll the information forward to the 
measurement date. 

City of Grosse 
Pointe Woods 
Pension Plan 

City of Grosse 
Pointe Woods 
Pension Plan 
Supplemental 

Annuity 

Measurement date used for the City's net pension liability 
	

June 30, 2020 
	

June 30, 2020 

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows: 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan 

Changes in Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total Pension 

Liability 
Plan Net 	Net Pension 
Position 	Liability 

Balance at July 1, 2019 $ 	80,869,588 $ 	37,194,936 $ 	43,674,652 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 1,381,734 1,381,734 
Interest 4,160,628 4,160,628 
Differences between expected and actual 

experience (2,041,992) (2,041,992) 
Changes in assumptions 1,372,928 1,372,928 
Contributions - Employer 1,406,409 (1,406,409) 
Contributions - Employee 262,296 (262,296) 
Net investment income 157,140 (157,140) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,403,902) (3,403,902) 
Administrative expenses (70,669) 70,669 

Net changes 1,469,396 (1,648,726) 3,118,122 

Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 	82,338,984 $ 	35,546,210 $ 	46,792,774 

The plan's fiduciary net position represents 43.17 percent of the total pension liability. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan Supplemental Annuity 

Changes in Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total Pension 	Plan Net 	Net Pension 

Liability 	Position 	Liability 

Balance at July 1, 2019 $ 	4,086,831 $ 	1,845,209 $ 	2,241,622 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 51,793 51,793 
Interest 272,594 272,594 
Differences between expected and actual 

experience (151,559) (151,559) 
Changes in assumptions (198,496) (198,496) 
Contributions - Employer 335,830 (335,830) 
Net investment income 7,796 (7,796) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (278,103) (278,103) 
Administrative expenses (3,506) 3,506 

Net changes (303,771) 62,017 (365,788) 

Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 	3,783,060 $ 	1,907,226 $ 	1,875,834 

The plan's fiduciary net position represents 50.41 percent of the total pension liability. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City Council recognized pension expense of $7,213,753 from the 
Pension Plan and $293,830 from the Supplemental Annuity. 

At June 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the Pension Plan from the following sources: 

Deferred 	Deferred 
Outflows of 	Inflows of 
Resources 	Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience 504,446 $ 	(1,531,494) 
Changes in assumptions 5,499,112 (1,330,306) 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 

investments 3,086,348 

Total $ 	9,089,906 $ 	(2,861,800) 

At June 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the Supplemental Annuity from the following sources: 

Deferred 	Deferred 
Outflows of 	Inflows of 
Resources 	Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience 116,146 $ 	(121,872) 
Changes in assumptions 152,365 (182,960) 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 

investments 160,817 

Total 429,328 $ 	(304,832) 
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows (note that employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will reduce the net pension liability and, therefore, will not be included in future pension 
expense): 

Years Ending 	 Supplemental 
June 30 	Pension Plan 	Annuity 

2021 	$ 	4,816,529 $ 	149,677 
2022 	 203,529 	4,773 
2023 	 676,949 	(32,990) 
2024 	531,099 	3,036 

Total $ 	6,228,106  $ 	124,496  

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in each actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
Pension Plan 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
Pension Plan Supplemental 

Annuity 

Inflation 2.5% 2.5% 
Salary increases (including 

inflation) 3.5% - 7.3% 0.00% 
Investment rate of return (net of 

investment expenses) 7.50% 7.50% 
Mortality rates Pub 2010 Mortality Tables with MP Pub 2010 Mortality Tables with MP 

2018 	 2018 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension 
Plan and City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan Supplemental Annuity was 5.06 and 7.46 percent, 
respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that city contributions will be made at rates 
equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plans' fiduciary net position was not projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the 
discount rate incorporates a municipal bond rate, which was 2.45 percent. The source of that bond rate 
was the Fidelity Index 20 Year GO AA Index as of June 30, 2020. The long-term expected rate of return 
was applied to projected benefit payments for the periods in which the plan maintains a positive fiduciary 
net position: from June 30, 2020 through July 1, 2054 and from June 30, 2020 through July 1, 2090, for 
the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan and City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan 
Supplemental Annuity, respectively. 

The long-term expected rate of return on both plans' investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
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Note 8 - Pension Plans (Continued) 
Investment Rate of Return 

Best estimates of geometric real rates of return as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date for each major 
asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation, as disclosed in the investment footnote, 
for both the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan and City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan 
Supplemental Annuity are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

U.S. large-cap equity 23.00 % 6.00 % 
U.S. mid-cap equity 5.00 6.50 
U.S. small-cap equity 7.00 7.50 
International developed equity 10.00 7.50 
International developed small cap 5.00 7.50 
International emerging markets 10.00 9.50 
U.S. core bonds 10.00 1.40 
Public real estate (REITS) 3.00 6.00 
High-yield bonds 10.00 6.00 
Commodities 3.00 3.50 
Energy/MLPs 3.00 8.00 
Liquid diversifying strategies 10.00 4.00 
Cash or cash equivalents 1.00 1.60 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the current discount rate, as 
well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 
percentage point lower (4.06 or 6.46 percent for the Pension Plan or Supplemental Annuity, respectively) 
or 1 percentage point higher (6.06 or 8.46 percent for the Pension Plan or Supplemental Annuity, 
respectively) than the current rate: 

 

1 Percentage 	Current 	1 Percentage 
Point Decrease Discount Rate 	Point Increase  

Net pension liability of the City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods Pension Plan 

Net pension liability of the City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods Pension Plan Supplemental Annuity 

$ 	59,949,392 $ 	46,792,774 $ 	36,274,917 

	

2,299,513 	1,875,834 	1,521,592 

Assumption Changes 

The investment rate of return was changed to 7.50 percent. The discount rate was updated to reflect the 
current and expected economic conditions. The mortality tables were updated to reflect current mortality 
expectations. 
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Note 8 - Pension Plans (Continued) 

Investment Policy 

The Pension Plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be 
amended by the pension board by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the pension board to 
pursue an investment strategy that manages risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across 
a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The Pension Plan's investment policy discourages the use of 
cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class 
allocations over short time spans. The following was the pension board's adopted asset allocation policy 
as of June 30, 2020: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 

U.S. large-cap equity 23.00 % 
U.S. mid-cap equity 5.00 
U.S. small-cap equity 7.00 
International developed equity 10.00 
International developed small cap 5.00 
International emerging markets 10.00 
U.S. core bonds 10.00 
Public real estate (REITS) 3.00 
High-yield bonds 10.00 
Commodities 3.00 
Energy/MLPs 3.00 
Liquid diversifying strategies 10.00 
Cash or cash equivalents 1.00 

Total 100.00 % 

Rate of Return 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments 
and the supplemental annuity investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 1.52 percent. 
The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Note 9 - Aggregate Pension Related Balances 

The following table presents the aggregate balances for the net pension liability, deferred inflows related to 
pensions, deferred outflows related to pensions, and pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
Detailed information for each pension plan can be found in Note 8. 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Total 
Pension 
Liability 

Plan Net 
Position 

Net Pension 
Liability 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Pension 
Expense 

Pension Plan $82,338,984 $35,546,210 $46,792,774 $ 9,089,906 $ 2,861,800 $ 7,213,753 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Pension Plan Supplemental 
Annuity 3,783,060 1,907,226 1,875,834 429,328 304,832 293,830 

Total $86,122,044 $37,453,436 $48,668,608 $ 9,519,234 $ 3,166,632 $ 7,507,583 
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Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan 

Plan Description 

The City provides the Grosse Pointe Woods Retiree Healthcare Plan (the "Plan"), a single-employer 
defined benefit OPEB plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) 
for all eligible general, public safety, and fire plan members and their beneficiaries. The Plan is 
administered by the Grosse Pointe Woods Retiree Health Plan Board. 

The financial statements of the OPEB plan are included in these financial statements as a pension and 
other employee benefit trust fund (a fiduciary fund). 

Management of the Plan is vested in the Retiree Health Plan Board, which consists of five members - the 
mayor, one member of the City Council, a resident appointed by the mayor, and two employees - one 
general and one public safety. The city treasurer shall be the treasurer of the Retiree Healthcare Plan and 
shall be the custodian of the cash and investments. The city attorney shall be legal advisor to the Retiree 
Health Plan Board. 

Benefits Provided 

The Grosse Pointe Woods Retiree Healthcare Plan provides health care, dental, prescription, and vision 
benefits for retirees hired prior to 2012 and their dependents. Members are vested at 10 years of service. 
Benefits are provided through a third-party insurer, and the full cost of benefits is covered by the Plan. 

City Ordinance 543 grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the board. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

The following members were covered by the benefit terms: 

Grosse Pointe 
Woods Retiree 
Healthcare Plan 

Date of member count 
	

June 30, 2020 

Inactive plan members currently receiving benefits and members entitled to but not yet 
receiving benefits 	 111 

Active plan members 	 44 

Total plan members 	 155 

Contributions 

City Ordinance 543 grants the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements of the City 
and employees to the board. The board establishes contribution rates based on an actuarially determined 
rate per a funding valuation. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City's contribution was $1,401,986. 
Certain plan members are required to contribute based on the terms of their union contact. Total 
employee contributions were $58,919. 

Net OPEB Liability 

The City has chosen to use the June 30 measurement date as its measurement date for the net OPEB 
liability. The June 30, 2020 fiscal year end reported net OPEB liability was determined using a measure of 
the total OPEB liability and the OPEB net position as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date. The June 
30, 2020 measurement date total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of 
June 30, 2020. 
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Changes in the net OPEB liability during the measurement year were as follows: 

Changes in Net OPEB Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total OPEB 

Liability 
Plan Net 	Net OPEB 
Position 	Liability 

Balance at July 1, 2019 $ 	35,154,782 $ 	862,902 $ 	34,291,880 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 416,661 416,661 
Interest 2,428,098 2,428,098 
Differences between expected and actual 

experience (551,667) (551,667) 
Changes in assumptions 290,589 290,589 
Contributions - Employer 1,401,986 (1,401,986) 
Contributions - Employee 58,919 (58,919) 
Net investment income 29,551 (29,551) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,351,986) (1,351,986) 

Net changes 1,231,695 138,470 1,093,225 

Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 	36,386,477 $ 	1,001,372 $ 	35,385,105 

The plan's fiduciary net position represents 2.75 percent of the total OPEB liability. 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB recovery of $5,859,735. 

At June 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred 
	

Deferred 
Outflows of 
	

Inflows of 
Resources 
	

Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience - $ 	(586,834) 
Changes in assumptions 164,246 (209,246) 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan 

investments 16,557 

Total 180,803 $ 	(796,080) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows (note that employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will reduce the net OPEB liability and, therefore, will not be included in future OPEB 
expense): 

Years Ending 
June 30 Amount 

2021 (593,386) 
2022 (29,660) 
2023 835 
2024 6,934 

Total $ 	(615,277) 
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Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using an investment rate 
of return (net of investment expenses) of 7.0 percent; a health care cost trend rate of 6.0 percent for the 
first year, decreasing 0.1 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent; and the Publication 2010 
Mortality Table with MP 2018 improvement scale. These assumptions were applied to all periods included 
in the measurement. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.0 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that city contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 

Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

Investment Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. Best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date for each major asset class 
included in the OPEB plan's target asset allocation, as disclosed in the investment footnote, are 
summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

U.S. large-cap equity 25.00 % 6.00 % 
U.S. mid-cap equity 15.00 6.50 
U.S. small-cap equity 10.00 6.50 
International developed equity 15.00 7.50 
Emerging markets equity 5.00 9.50 
U.S. core bonds 25.00 1.40 
TI Ps 5.00 1.50 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.0 percent, 
as well as what the City's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 

1 Percentage 
	

Current 
	

1 Percentage 
Point Decrease Discount Rate 

	
Point Increase 

(6.0%) 
	

(7.0%) 
	

(8.0%) 

Net OPEB liability of the Grosse Pointe Woods 
Retiree Healthcare Plan 	 $ 	41,272,542 $ 	35,385,105 $ 	30,701,596 
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the health care cost trend rate of 
6.0 percent the first year, decreasing in 0.1 percent increments over the following 10 years to an ultimate 
assumed rate of 5.0 percent, as well as what the City's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a health care cost trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the 
current rate: 

Current Health 
1 Percentage 
	

Care Cost 
	

1 Percentage 
Point Decrease 
	

Trend Rate 
	

Point Increase 
(5.0 - 4.0%) 
	

(6.0 - 5.0%) 
	

(7.0 - 6.0%) 

Net OPEB liability of the Grosse Pointe Woods 
Retiree Healthcare Plan 	 $ 	31,100,430 $ 	35,385,105 $ 	42,160,888 

Assumption Changes 

The mortality table was updated to the Publication 2010 Mortality Table with MP 2018 improvement scale. 

Investment Policy 

The OPEB plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended 
by the OPEB board by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the OPEB board to pursue an 
investment strategy that manages risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad 
selection of distinct asset classes. The OPEB plan's investment policy discourages the use of cash 
equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class 
allocations over short time spans. The following was the OPEB board's adopted asset allocation policy as 
of June 30, 2020: 

Grosse Pointe Woods Retiree Healthcare Plan 

Asset Class Target Allocation 

U.S. large-cap equity 25.00 (Y0 
U.S. mid-cap equity 15.00 
U.S. small-cap equity 10.00 
International developed equity 15.00 
Emerging markets equity 5.00 
U.S. core bonds 25.00 
TIPS 5.00 

Total 100.00 % 

Rate of Return 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the annual money-weighted rate of return on OPEB plan investments, 
net of OPEB plan investment expense, was 3.1 percent. The money-weighted rate of return expresses 
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Note 11 - Deferred Compensation 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the "DC Plan") created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The DC Plan is available to all full-time city employees, which permits 
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years, and is administered by ICMA. Payment of the 
deferred compensation is not available to employees until retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 
As of June 30, 2020, employees who had elected to participate in the DC Plan had total assets of 
$5,109,631. 
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All amounts of compensation deferred under the DC Plan, all property and rights purchased with those 
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are solely the property and 
rights of the individual participants. 

Note 12 - Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds 

The following are condensed financial statements for the individual pension plans and postemployment 
health care plan: 

Statement of Net Position 

Pension Trust 
Fund 

Supplementary 
Annuity Fund 

OPEB Trust 
Fund 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	215,144 $ 	11,543 $ 	72,836 
Stocks 14,636,978 785,345 
Corporate bonds 6,390,978 342,907 - 
Bonds 14,303,086 767,430 928,536 
Other assets 24 1 - 

Net position $ 	35,546,210 $ 	1,907,226 $ 	1,001,372 

Statement of Changes in Net Position 
Investment income $ 	157,140 $ 	7,796 $ 	29,551 
Contributions 1,668,705 335,830 1,460,905 
Benefit payments 3,403,902 278,103 1,351,986 
Other deductions 70,669 3,506 - 

Net change in net position $ 	(1,648,726) $ 	62,017 $ 	138,470 

Note 13 - Joint Venture 

The City is a member of the Grosse Pointes-Clinton Refuse Disposal Authority joint venture (the 
"Authority"), which provides refuse disposal services to participating municipalities in the counties of 
Wayne and Macomb, Michigan. Other members include the cities of Grosse Pointe Farms, Grosse Pointe 
Park, Grosse Pointe, Harper Woods, Mount Clemens, and Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan and the 
Township of Clinton. The City Council appoints one member to the Authority's governing board, which 
then approves its budget. The Authority currently contracts with a commercial refuse disposal company 
and bills members for their proportionate share of the costs. 

The City's interest in the net position of the Authority totaled $55,348 at June 30, 2020 and is reported as 
part of the governmental activities in the statement of net position. The City is unaware of any 
circumstances, including potential environmental remediation, that would cause an additional burden to 
the participating municipalities in the near future. Complete financial statements for the Authority can be 
obtained from its administrative offices at 27941 Harper Avenue, Suite 106, St. Clair Shores, MI 48081. 

Note 14 - Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, and 
employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The City 
has purchased commercial insurance for claims relating to property loss claims, torts, and errors and 
omissions. The City is self-insured for workers' compensation claims and participates in a self-funding 
program for medical claims with other communities. Under the workers' compensation program and 
medical program, the City is held liable for the first $400,000 and $25,000, respectively, of any occurrence. 
Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage 
in any of the past three fiscal years. 
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Note 14 - Risk Management (Continued) 
The City is self-funding medical benefits up to a retention amount, at which time the City's reinsurance 
coverage begins. The self-funding program is done in conjunction with the cities of Grosse Pointe Park, 
Grosse Pointe Farms, and Grosse Pointe, Michigan and the Village of Grosse Pointe Shores, Michigan. 
The City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan serves as the administrative agent for the program; however, 
each municipality is responsible for its individual claims. 

The City estimates the liability for medical benefits claims that have been incurred through the end of the 
fiscal year, including both those claims that have been reported, as well as those that have not yet been 
reported. The City's liability is based on individual claims and management's evaluation of experience with 
respect to the probable number and nature of claims. 

The City estimates the liability for workers' compensation and medical benefits that have been incurred 
through the end of the fiscal year, including claims that have been reported, as well as those that have not 
yet been reported, which includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claim 
adjustment expense, both allocated and unallocated. The liability is based on individual claims and 
management's evaluation of experience with respect to the probable number and nature of claims. Any 
adjustments resulting from the settlement of losses will be reflected in earnings at the time the 
adjustments are determined. These estimates are recorded in the Workers' Compensation Fund and 
within the governmental activities and business-type activities columns of the statement of net position for 
workers' compensation and in the modified accrual funds for medical claims. 

Changes in the estimated liability for the past two fiscal years were as follows: 

Workers' Compensation Medical Claims 
2020 2019 2020 2019 

Estimated liability - Beginning of year $ 	196,475 $ 	275,915 $ 	246,573 $ 	210,999 
Estimated claims incurred, including 

changes in estimates 100,574 179,888 1,204,699 1,184,810 
Claim payments (168,343) (259,328) (1,451,272) (1,149,236) 

Estimated liability - End of year $ 	128,706 $ 	196,475 $ 	- 	$ 	246,573 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund 

Revenue 
Property taxes: 

Original Budget Amended Budget 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance with 
Actual 	 Amended Budget 

Property taxes $ 10,312,780 $ 	10,302,051 $ 10,241,873 $ (60,178) 
Franchise fees 310,000 335,000 369,566 34,566 

Intergovernmental - 
State and local sources: 

State-shared revenue 1,727,473 1,901,962 1,624,696 (277,266) 
Other state grants 20,000 20,000 30,068 10,068 

Charges for services 604,377 578,368 600,775 22,407 
Fines and forfeitures 400,000 248,500 253,797 5,297 
Investment income 60,000 162,000 175,747 13,747 
Other revenue 254,368 240,384 242,058 1,674 

Total revenue 13,688,998 13,788,265 13,538,580 (249,685) 

Expenditures 
Current services: 

General government: 
City Council 63,710 40,526 43,384 (2,858) 
City comptroller 420,735 374,683 367,255 7,428 
Commission 21,417 9,962 11,494 (1,532) 
Municipal court 433,652 345,113 344,186 927 
Assessing 139,539 95,468 91,968 3,500 
Clerk 390,570 386,206 390,522 (4,316) 
Building inspection 535,354 479,450 471,006 8,444 
Attorney 242,000 165,884 195,863 (29,979) 
Administration 262,322 258,204 257,537 667 
Fringe benefits 303,000 225,369 211,386 13,983 
Other services and charges 178,666 155,682 153,373 2,309 

Public safety: 
Police service 3,488,782 3,331,036 3,335,827 (4,791) 
Fire prevention and inspeCtion 93,635 74,710 73,279 1,431 
Fringe benefits 1,696,530 1,419,725 1,232,640 187,085 
Support services 145,744 124,958 127,500 (2,542) 
Administration 375,992 314,249 332,482 (18,233) 
Other services and charges 423,642 407,123 400,621 6,502 

Public works: 
Streets 422,071 330,567 351,557 (20,990) 
Street maintenance 221,933 400,514 391,408 9,106 
Other services and charges 909,732 757,662 839,151 (81,489) 
Supervision and engineering 150,009 110,171 125,566 (15,395) 
Forestry services 226,219 258,596 313,840 (55,244) 
Fringe benefits 245,881 222,516 182,561 39,955 
City building and grounds 207,242 195,237 194,569 668 

Parks and recreation: 
Other services and charges 48,879 48,343 48,343 - 
Supervision and engineering 14,355 13,241 14,059 (818) 
Lake Front Park 1,554,138 1,087,445 1,084,543 2,902 
Fringe benefits 118,744 91,472 86,416 5,056 
Community center 332,768 236,127 221,315 14,812 
City parks 49,328 55,698 43,433 12,265 

Total expenditures 13,716,589 12,015,937 11,937,084 78,853 

Excess of Revenue (Under) Over Expenditures (27,591) 1,772,328 1,601,496 (170,832) 

Other Financing (Uses) Sources 
Transfers out (1,238,334) (2,224,703) (2,204,703) 20,000 
Insurance recoveries 625,528 672,501 46,973 

Total other financing uses (1,238,334) (1,599,175) (1,532,202) 66,973 

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,265,925) 173,153 69,294 (103,859) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 6,446,633 6,446,633 6,446,633 

Fund Balance - End of year 
$ 5,180,708 	$  6,619,786 $ 6,515,927 $ (103,859) 
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Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

Pension Plan 

Last Seven Fiscal Years 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Total Pension Liability 
Service cost $ 	1,381,734 $ 	1,419,981 $ 	872,705 $ 	812,794 $ 	893,380 $ 	692,961 $ 	675,799 
Interest 4,160,628 4,115,769 3,739,452 3,713,413 3,802,189 3,521,128 3,499,326 
Differences between expected and actual 

experience (2,041,992) 61,396 1,898,141 (1,943,674) (509,341) 501,262 (579,977) 
Changes in assumptions 1,372,928 (2,730,629) 17,877,664 (3,946,934) 7,000,034 5,686,156 - 
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,403,902) (3,346,109) (3,354,997) (3,215,776) (3,187,512) (3,315,548) (3,092,014) 

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1,469,396 (479,592) 21,032,965 (4,580,177) 7,998,750 7,085,959 503,134 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning of year 80,869,588 81,349,180 60,316,215 64,896,392 56,897,642 49,811,683 49,308,549 

Total Pension Liability - End of year $ 	82,338,984 $ 	80,869,588 $ 	81,349,180 $ 	60,316,215 $ 	64,896,392 $ 	56,897,642 $ 	49,811,683 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - Employer $ 	1,406,409 $ 	1,215,450 $ 	1,230,649 $ 	1,076,052 $ 	925,683 $ 	889,829 $ 	888,696 
Contributions - Member 262,296 263,799 249,835 243,096 252,579 258,967 275,808 
Net investment income (loss) 157,140 1,291,520 2,128,175 3,992,724 (1,359,930) 15,073 6,669,874 
Administrative expenses (70,669) (3,346,109) (62,843) (37,168) (51,765) (69,537) (44,753) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,403,902) (58,125) (3,354,997) (3,215,776) (3,187,512) (3,315,548) (3,092,015) 
Other - 22,728 12,254 - 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (1,648,726) (633,465) 213,547 2,071,182 (3,420,945) (2,221,216) 4,697,610 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of 
year 37,194,936 37,828,401 37,614,854 35,543,672 38,964,617 41,185,833 36,488,223 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of year $ 	35,546,210 $ 	37,194,936 $ 	37,828,401 $ 	37,614,854 $ 	35,543,672 $ 	38,964,617 $ 	41,185,833 

City's Net Pension Liability- Ending $ 	46,792,774 $ 	43,674,652 $ 	43,520,779 $ 	22,701,361 $ 	29,352,720 $ 	17,933,025 $ 	8,625,850 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
of Total Pension Liability 43.17 % 45.99 % 46.50 % 62.36 % 55.02 % 68.48 % 82.69 % 

Covered Payroll $ 	4,791,109 $ 	4,716,600 $ 	4,544,155 $ 	4,493,845 $ 	4,592,611 $ 	4,651,563 $ 	4,411,702 

City's Net Pension Liability as a Percentage 
of Covered Payroll 976.66 % 925.98 % 957.73 % 505.17 % 632.60 % 385.53 % 195.50 % 

GASB Statement No. 67 was implemented for the FYE June 30, 2014 and does not required retroactive implementation. The required supplemental information is 
intended to show information for 10 years, and additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available. 

Assumption Changes 

Assumption changes were made for each year as follows: 

2015: Changed from the 1994 uninsured pension mortality table to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, and the discount rate from 8.0 to 6.82 percent 
2016: Changed the investment rate of return from 8.0 to 7.8 percent, inflation from 4.0 to 3.5 percent, and the discount rate to 5.83 percent 
2017: Changed the discount rate to 6.33 percent 
2018: Changed the investment rate of return to 7.75 percent, inflation to 2.5 percent, the mortality table to the RP-2014 Mortality Table with MP 2017, and the 
discount rate to 5.12 percent 
2019: Changed the discount rate to 5.21 percent 
2020: Changed the investment rate of return to 7.50 percent, mortality table to the Publication 2010 Mortality Table with MP 2018 improvement scale, and the 
discount rate to 5.06 percent 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Pension Investment Returns 

Pension Plan and Pension Plan Supplemental Annuity 

Last Seven Fiscal Years 

Years Ended June 30 

2020 	2019 	2018 	2017 	2016 	2015 	2014 

Annual money-weighted rate of 
return - Net of investment 
expense 
	

1.52 % 	4.89 % 	4.84 % 11.60 % (3.50)% 	0.10 % 	8.00 % 

GASB Statement No. 67 was implemented for the FYE June 30, 2014 and does not required retroactive 
implementation. The required supplemental information is intended to show information for 10 years, and 
additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Pension Contributions 

Pension Plan 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Years Ended June 30 

2020 	2019 	2018 	2017  2016 	2015 	2014 	2013 2012 	2011 

$ 1,406,000 $ 1,215,000 $ 1,231,000 $ 1,076,000 $ 926,000 $ 890,000 $ 889,000 $ 768,000 $ 743,000 $ 786,000 

1,406,000 1,215,000 1,231,000 1,076,000 926,000 890,000 889,000 768,000 743,000 786,000 

$ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 

Actuarially determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the 

actuarially determined 
contribution 

Contribution Deficiency 

Covered Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 	 29.35 % 	25.76 

Notes to Schedule of Pension Contributions - Pension Plan 

27.09 `)/0 	23.94 % 	20.17 % 	19.13 % 	17.06 % 	14.63 % 	13.40 % 	12.65 % 

$ 4,791,109 $ 4,716,600 $ 4,544,155 $ 4,494,000 $ 4,592,000 $ 4,652,000 $ 5,210,000 $ 5,249,000 $ 5,546,000 $ 6,214,000 

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 

Valuation date 	 Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the 
contributions are reported. Covered payroll is as of June 30 of the current fiscal year 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Inflation 
Salary increase 
Investment rate of return 
Mortality 

Entry age 
Level percentage of payroll - Open 
25 years 
5-year smoothed market 
2.5 percent 
7.3 - 3.5 percent, including inflation 
7.75 percent - Net of expense 
RP-2014 Mortality Table with MP 2017 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

Supplemental Annuity 

Total Pension Liability 

2020 2019 2018 2017 

Last Seven Fiscal Years 

2016 	2015 	2014 

Service cost $ 	51,793 $ 	47,748 $ 	59,640 $ 	39,299 $ 	37,233 $ 	28,387 $ 	33,212 
Interest 272,594 259,909 239,740 254,061 269,224 234,285 236,533 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience (151,559) 136,155 161,463 (227,980) (232,788) (399,452) (42,908) 
Changes in assumptions (198,496) (57,257) 567,907 86,953 831,276 
Benefit payments, including refunds (278,103) (275,592) (242,921) (257,534) (263,715) (247,158) (257,888) 

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (303,771) 110,963 785,829 (192,154) (103,093) 447,338 (31,051) 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning of 
year 4,086,831 3,975,868 3,190,039 3,382,193 3,485,286 3,037,948 3,068,999 

Total Pension Liability - End of year $ 3,783,060 $ 4,086,831 $ 3,975,868 $ 3,190,039 $ 3,382,193 $ 3,485,286 $ 3,037,948 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - Employer $ 	335,830 $ 	311,792 $ 	298,389 $ 	290,000 $ 	297,360 $ 	286,439 $ 	277,776 
Net investment income (loss) 7,796 59,811 91,098 159,415 3,963 (9,093) 230,642 
Administrative expenses (3,506) (2,693) (5,768) (995) - (22,140) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (278,103) (275,592) (242,921) (257,534) (263,715) (247,158) (257,888) 
Other - 960 - 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position 62,017 93,318 141,758 190,886 37,608 8,048 250,530 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 
of year 1,845,209 1,751,891 1,610,133 1,419,247 1,381,639 1,373,591 1,123,061 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of 
year $ 1,907,226 $ 1,845,209 $ 1,751,891 $ 1,610,133 $ 1,419,247 $ 1,381,639 $ 1,373,591 

City's Net Pension Liability- Ending $ 1,875,834 $ 2,241,622 $ 2,223,977 $ 1,579,906 $ 1,962,946 $ 2,103,647 $ 1,664,357 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of Total Pension Liability 50.41 % 45.15 % 44.06 % 50.47 % 41.96 % 39.64 % 45.21 % 

Covered Payroll $ 2,475,978 $ 2,525,337 $ 2,231,884 $ 2,258,831 $ 2,347,151 $ 2,358,679 $ 2,196,932 

City's Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of Covered Payroll 75.76 % 88.77 % 99.65 % 69.94 % 83.63 % 89.19 % 75.76 % 

GASB Statement No. 67 was implemented for the FYE June 30, 2014 and does not required retroactive implementation. The required 
supplemental information is intended to show information for 10 years, and additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes 
available. 

Assumption Changes 

Assumption changes were made for each year as follows: 

2015: Changed from the 1994 uninsured pension mortality table to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, inflation from 0.0 to 4.0 
percent, and the discount rate from 8.0 to 7.98 percent 
2016: Changed the investment rate of return from 8.0 to 7.8 percent, inflation to 3.5 percent, and the discount rate to 7.71 percent 
2018: Changed the investment rate of return to 7.75 percent, inflation to 2.5 percent, the mortality table to the RP-2014 Mortality Table with 
MP 2017, and the discount rate to 6.73 percent 
2019: Changed the discount rate to 6.86 percent 
2020: Changed the investment rate of return to 7.50 percent, mortality table to the Publication 2010 Mortality Table with MP 2018 
improvement scale, and the discount rate to 7.46 percent 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Pension Contributions 

Supplemental Annuity 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Years Ended June 30 

2020 	2019 	2018 
	

2017 	2016 	2015 	2014 	2013 	2012 	2011 

$ 335,830 $ 311,792 $ 298,000 $ 290,000 $ 297,360 $ 286,439 $ 277,776 $ 245,862 $ 238,579 $ 227,345 

335,830 	311,792 	298,000 	290,000 	297,360 	286,439 	277,776 	245,862 	238,579 	227,345 

- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 

Actuarially determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the 

actuarially determined 
contribution 

Contribution Deficiency 

12.35 % 	13.35 % 

Covered Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 	 13.56  12.84 % 	12.67 % 	12.14 % 	12.64 % 	10.35 % 	9.05 % 	8.21 % 

$ 2,475,978 $ 2,525,337 $ 2,231,884 $ 2,258,831 $ 2,347,151 $ 2,358,679 $ 2,196,932 $ 2,376,609 $ 2,636,547 $ 2,769,200 

Notes to Schedule of Pension Contributions - Supplemental Annuity 

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 

Valuation date 
	

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which 
contributions are reported. Covered payroll is as of June 30 of the current fiscal year. Public safety members retiring after 
December 31, 1994 are not covered. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Inflation 
Salary increase 
Investment rate of return 
Mortality 

Entry age 
Level dollar 
10 years open 
Market 
2.5 percent 
0.0 percent 
7.75 percent - Net of expense 
RP-2014 Mortality Table with MP 2017 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Total OPEB Liability 
Service cost 
Interest 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments, including refunds 

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning of year 

2020 

Last Three Fiscal Years 

2019 	 2018 

416,661 
2,428,098 
(551,667) 
290,589 

(1,351,986) 

$ 448,946 
2,426,171 

(1,375,107) 
(1,046,230) 
(1,507,028) 

$ 	1,861,554 
1,973,036 

(3,809,187) 
(25,133,680) 
(1,578,411) 

1,231,695 

35,154,782 

(1,053,248) 

36,208,030 

(26,686,688) 

62,894,718 

Total OPEB Liability - End of year $ 	36,386,477 $ 	35,154,782 $ 	36,208,030 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - Employer $ 	1,401,986 $ 1,557,027 $ 	1,628,411 
Contributions - Active and inactive plan members not 

yet receiving benefits 58,919 54,911 63,942 
Net investment income 29,551 56,866 4,590 
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,351,986) (1,507,028) (1,578,411) 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 138,470 161,776 118,532 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of year 862,902 701,126 582,594 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of year $ 	1,001,372 $ 862,902 $ 	701,126 

Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 	35,385,105 $ 	34,291,880 $ 	35,506,904 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total 
OPEB Liability 
	

2.75 )̀/0 	2.45 % 
	

1.94 % 

Covered Payroll 
	

$ 	3,247,655 $ 
	

3,618,888 $ 
	

3,333,571 

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 
	

1,089.56 % 
	

947.58 % 
	

1,065.13 % 

The required supplemental information is intended to show information for 10 years, and additional years' 
information will be displayed as it becomes available. 

Assumption Changes 

2018: Changed the mortality assumptions to the RP-2014 fully generational mortality using projection scale MP 
2017; the health care trend rate to 6.0 percent, graded down to 5.0 percent in 0.1 percent increments; and the 
long-term rate of return and the discount rate from 3.50 percent to 6.80 percent due to a change in investment 
portfolio 
2019: Changed the long-term rate of return and the discount rate to 7.00 percent 
2020: Changed the mortality table to the Publication 2010 Mortality Table with MP 2018 improvement scale 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of OPEB Contributions 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Years Ended June 30 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 

Actuarially determined contribution $ 	3,125,991 $ 	3,125,991 $ 	3,083,916 $ 	3,230,383 $ 	3,767,017 $ 	3,622,132 $ 	3,482,819 $ 	4,192,613 $ 	4,031,359 $ 	5,093,267 
Contributions in relation to the 

actuarially determined contribution 1,401,986 1,557,027 1,628,411 1,472,713 1,675,660 1,618,057 1,332,162 1,457,623 1,148,356 1,781,070 

Contribution Deficiency $ (1,724,005) $ (1,568,964) $ (1,455,505) $ (1,757,670) $ (2,091,357) $ (2,004,075) $ (2,150,657) $ (2,734,990) $ (2,883,003) $ (3,312,197) 

Covered Payroll $ 	3,247,655 $ 	3,618,888 $ 	3,333,571 $ 	4,493,845 $ 	4,592,000 $ 	4,652,000 $ 	5,210,000 $ 	5,249,000 $ 	5,546,000 $ 	6,214,000 

Contributions as a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 43.17 % 43.03 % 48.85 % 32.77 % 36.49 % 34.78 % 25.57 % 27.77 % 20.71 % 28.66 % 

Notes to Schedule of Contributions 

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 

Valuation date 	 Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are 
reported. Covered payroll is as of June 30 of the current fiscal year. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Health care cost trend rates 
Investment rate of return 
Mortality 

Entry age 
Level percentage of payroll - Open 
30 years 
Market 
6.0 percent, graded down to 5.0 percent in 0.1 percent increments 
6.80 percent 
RP-2014 Mortality Table with MP 2017 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of OPEB Investment Returns 

Last Three Fiscal Years 

Years Ended June 30 

2020 
	

2019 	 2018 

Annual money-weighted rate of return - Net of investment 
expense 	 3.10 % 	6.68 % 	0.68 % 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Required Supplemental Information 

June 30, 2020 

Budgetary Information 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the General 
Fund, all special revenue funds, and debt service funds, except for operating transfers, which are budgeted as 
revenue and expenditures and not other financing sources and uses. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year 
end; encumbrances are not included as expenditures. During the year, the budget was amended in a legally 
permissible manner. 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1. On or before the first council meeting in April, the city treasurer/comptroller and the city administrator prepare a 
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing July 1 and submit it to the City Council. The budget 
must be adopted through a passage of a budget resolution no later than the third Monday in May. 

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments. 

3. The legislative budget is adopted by fund on a departmental basis. Line item detail is provided as a general 
guideline. Throughout the year, the City Council receives requests to amend the activity budget. All 
amendments must be approved by a vote of the City Council. Changes in line items within an activity may be 
made with the approval of the city comptroller. 

Amounts encumbered for purchase orders, contracts, etc. are not tracked during the year. Budget appropriations 
are considered to be spent once the goods are delivered or the services rendered. 

As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, the Local Street Fund and the Cable Franchise Fund are now merged with 
the General Fund for reporting purposes. The General Fund is budgeted for as a separate fund. The following 
table reconciles the balances presented in the operating statement with the balances presented in the General 
Fund's budgetary comparison schedule: 

Total Revenue 
Total 

Expenditures 
Other Financing 

Uses 

Amounts per operating statement $ 	14,010,729 $ 	14,403,322 $ 	(128,702) 
Local Street Fund budgeted separately from the General Fund (467,593) (2,465,413) (1,403,500) 
Cable Franchise Fund budgeted separately from the General Fund (4,556) (825) 

Amounts per budget statement $ 	13,538,580 $ 	11,937,084 $ 	(1,532,202) 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgeted Funds 

During the year, the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan incurred significant expenditures that were in excess 
of the amounts budgeted, as follows: 

Budget 
	

Actual 	Variance 

Public works 	 $ 	2,275,263 $ 	2,398,652 $ 	(123,389) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Fund Descriptions 

Special Revenue Funds 

These funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specific functions or activities. Restrictions may be imposed by state statute, the state constitution, the city board 
resolution of action, or the electorate through the approval of special dedicated millages. 

Major Street Fund 

This fund accounts for the maintenance and replacement of all major streets within the City. Funding is provided 
by distribution of gas tax proceeds. 

Solid Waste Fund 

This fund is used to account for the collection, disposal, and recycling of all residential and commercial waste 
within the City. Financing is provided by a separate tax millage. 

Act 302 Training Fund 

This fund accounts for the costs of training courses for the police department. Financing is provided by state 
grants. 

Grants Fund 

This fund is used to account for the activity of the Community Development Block Grant Program and other 
federal grants. Financing is provided by the Wayne County Economic Development Grant Program. 

911 Emergency Service Fund 

This fund accounts for moneys expended to maintain and operate an emergency response system. Moneys are 
received from the AT&T phone company, which levies a surcharge on all phone users within the community. 

Drug Enforcement Fund 

This fund is used to account for moneys seized in arrests for illegal drug activities and from various grants issued 
to the police department. Functions and activities include drug enforcement and education, departmental training, 
and expenses associated with the grants received. 

Parkway Beautification Fund 

This fund was created to account for moneys provided by donors to finance parkway beautification activities 

2015 Road Bond Construction Fund 

This fund accounts for the construction of roads related to the 2015 Road Bonds. 

MIDC Grant Fund 

The Michigan Indigent Defense Commission Grant Fund (MIDC Grant Fund) was created to account for grants 
received related to the court. 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt service funds are used to account for the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt. 

2015 Road Bond Debt Service Fund 

This fund accounts for the debt service of the 2015 Road Bonds. 

2018 Capital Improvement Bond Fund 

This fund accounts for the debt service related to 2018 capital improvements. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Fund Descriptions (Continued) 

Capital Project Funds 

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than 
those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. Revenue sources include General Fund transfers, grants from 
other units of government, private contributions, and bond proceeds. 

Municipal Improvement Fund 

This fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of various construction projects in the City. 

Capital Improvement Fund 

This fund accounts for the capital outlay funded by debt proceeds. 

Budgetary Funds 

These funds are funds that were merged into the General Fund as a result of GASB Statement No. 54 but are 
budgeted as separate funds by the City Council. 

Local Street Fund 

This fund accounts for the maintenance and replacement of all local streets within the City. Funding is provided by 
distribution of gas tax proceeds. 

Cable Franchise Fund 

This fund accounts for the investment of proceeds from the sale of the City's interest in a cable company's 
earnings used for capital improvements. 

See note to other supplemental information. 	63 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Assets 

Special Revenue Funds 

Major Street 
Fund 

Solid Waste 
Fund 

Act 302 
Training Fund Grants Fund 

911 
Emergency 

Service Fund 

Drug 
Enforcement 

Fund 

Cash and investments $ 	905,442 $ 	533,711 $ 	218 $ 	10,044 $ 	121,516 $ 	22,943 
Receivables: 

Property taxes receivable 110 
Other receivables 7,633 
Due from other governments 149,589 20,000 4,503 

Due from other funds 90 19 7,334 
Prepaid items and other assets 6,957 2,653 1,173 
Restricted assets - Restricted cash and 

cash equivalents 

Total assets $ 	1,069,711 $ 	536,493 $ 	218 $ 	30,044 $ 	134,526 $ 	22,943 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 	23,639 $ 	29,092 $ $ 	- $ 	38,933 $ 
Due to other funds - 20,000 
Advances from other funds - 201,828 - - - 
Accrued liabilities and other 4,841 30,826 - 2,976 
Unearned revenue - - 

Total liabilities 28,480 261,746 20,000 41,909 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - 
Unavailable revenue 110 

Total liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources 28,480 261,856 20,000 41,909 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 6,957 2,653 - 1,173 - 
Restricted: 

Roads 1,034,274 - - - - 
Public safety - 218 - 29,879 22,943 
Debt service - - - - - 
Grants - 10,044 - 
Community development - - 
Solid waste - 271,984 - 
Capital improvement 

Assigned: 
Public safety - 61,565 - 
Capital projects - - - 
Parkway beautification 

Total fund balances 1,041,231 274,637 218 10,044 92,617 22,943 

Total liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, and 
fund balances $ 	1,069,711 $ 	536,493 $ 	218 $ 	30,044 $ 	134,526  22,943 
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Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2020 

Special Revenue Funds 
	

Debt Service Funds 	Capital Project Funds 

Parkway 
Beautification 

Fund 

2015 Road 
Bond 

Construction 	MIDC Grant 
Fund 	Fund 

2015 Road 
Bond Debt 

Service Fund 

2018 Capital 
Improvement 
Bond Fund 

Municipal 
Improvement 

Fund 

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund Total 

$ 	209,554 	$ 

- 
- 
- 
- 

1,000 

$ 	24,943 $ 	205,782 

- 
- 
- 
_ 
- 

$ 	6,567 $ 	375,959 $ 	20,763 

- 
- 

- 
- 

290,135 

$ 	2,437,442 

110 
7,633 

174,092 
7,443 

11,783 

290,135 

$ 	210,554 $ 24,943 $ 	205,782 $ 	6,567 $ 	375,959 $ 	310,898 $ 	2,928,638 

$ 	- 	$ $ 	125 $ 	- $ $ 	260,875 $ 	20,763 $ 	373,427 
- - - 20,000 
- - 201,828 
- 15,679 54,322 

- 	24,818 - 24,818 

24,943 15,679 260,875 20,763 674,395 

110 

24,943 15,679 260,875 20,763 674,505 

1,000 11,783 

- 1,034,274 
_ - - 53,040 

- - 190,103 6,567 196,670 
- - - 10,044 

94,397 - 94,397 
- _ - 271,984 
- - 290,135 290,135 

- _ - 61,565 
- - 115,084 115,084 

115,157 - - 115,157 

210,554 190,103 6,567 115,084 290,135 2,254,133 

$ 	210,554 $ $ 	24,943 $ 	205,782 $ 	6,567 $ 	375,959 $ 	310,898 $ 	2,928,638 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Revenue 

Special Revenue Funds 

Major Street 
Fund 

Solid Waste 
Fund 

Act 302 
Training Fund Grants Fund 

911 
Emergency 

Service Fund 

Drug 
Enforcement 

Fund 

Property taxes $ 	1,841,704 $ 	- $ 	- $ 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal grants 26,750 
State and local sources: 

State-shared revenue 8,686 - - 
Act 51 gas and weight tax 1,071,804 - - - 
Other state grants - 4,784 - 

Investment income 13,384 21,178 - - 
Other revenue 69,504 2,155 100 - 50,212 5,005 

Total revenue 1,154,692 1,873,723 4,884 26,750 50,212 5,005 

Expenditures 
Current services: 

General government - - 20,000 19,499 
Public safety - 52,072 - 84,405 7,124 
Public works 990,823 1,741,616 - - 347 
Municipal improvement - 
Parks and recreation - - 

Debt service: 
Principal - 
Interest on long-term debt - 5,042 - 

Total expenditures 990,823 1,746,658 52,072 20,000 104,251 7,124 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures 163,869 127,065 (47,188) 6,750 (54,039) (2,119) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (250,000) 

Total other financing (uses) 
sources (250,000) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (86,131) 127,065 (47,188) 6,750 (54,039) (2,119) 

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 1,127,362 147,572 47,406 3,294 146,656 25,062 

Fund Balances - End of year 
$ 	1,041,231 $ 	274,637 $ 	218 $ 	10,044 $ 	92,617 $ 	22,943 
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Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Special Revenue Funds 
	

Debt Service Funds 	Capital Project Funds 

Parkway 
Beautification 

Fund 

2015 Road 
Bond 

Construction 
Fund 

MIDC Grant 
Fund 

2015 Road 
Bond Debt 

Service Fund 

2018 Capital 
Improvement 
Bond Fund 

Municipal 
Improvement 

Fund 

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund Total 

$ 	 $ 

38,985 

$ 

- 
- 
- 

346 
- 

- 

- 
20,376 

$ 	1,076,535 

5,005 

$ 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 37,487 

- 

- 

$ 	2,918,239 

26,750 

13,691 
1,071,804 

25,160 
34,908 

203,448 

38,985 346 20,376 1,081,540 37,487 4,294,000 

26,060 - 65,559 
- 6,524 150,125 

- 6,808 2,739,594 
- - 1,095,734 86,076 1,181,810 

16,637 - - 232,746 249,383 

795,000 130,000 500 925,500 
183,818 95,863 284,723 

16,637 26,060 978,818 225,863 1,095,734 332,654 5,596,694 

22,348 346 (5,684) 102,722 (225,863) (1,058,247) (332,654) (1,302,694) 

5,684 225,863 1,089,002 1,320,549 
(269,346) (519,346) 

(269,346) 5,684 225,863 1,089,002 801,203 

22,348 (269,000) 102,722 30,755 (332,654) (501,491) 

188,206 269,000 87,381 6,567 84,329 622,789 2,755,624 

$ 	210,554 $ - 	$ $ 	190,103 $ 	6,567 $ 	115,084 $ 	290,135 $ 	2,254,133 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Major Governmental Fund 

Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Property taxes $ 	2,862,861 $ 	2,862,861 $ 2,836,373 $ (26,488) 
I ntergovernmental 5,783 5,783 11,099 5,316 
Investment income 35,485 35,485 58,876 23,391 

Total revenue 2,904,129 2,904,129 2,906,348 2,219 

Expenditures 
Current services - Public works 2,188,154 2,367,128 8,477,879 (6,110,751) 
Debt service 1,117,174 1,217,438 1,054,797 162,641 

Total expenditures 3,305,328 3,584,566 9,532,676 (5,948,110) 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (401,199) (680,437) (6,626,328) (5,945,891) 

Other Financing Sources - New debt issued 5,701,651 5,701,651 

Net Change in Fund Balance (401,199) (680,437) (924,677) (244,240) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 3,131,387 3,131,387 3,131,387 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	2,730,188  $ 	2,450,950  $  2,206,710 $  (244,240) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Major Street Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Intergovernmental $ 	1,074,585 $ 	1,074,585 $ 	1,071,804 $ 	(2,781) 
Investment income 5,000 5,000 13,384 8,384 
Other revenue 30,000 30,000 69,504 39,504 

Total revenue 1,109,585 1,109,585 1,154,692 45,107 

Expenditures 
Current services - 

Public works: 
Street construction 522,000 522,000 428,702 93,298 
Routine maintenance 367,878 367,878 174,049 193,829 
Winter maintenance 22,100 22,100 15,736 6,364 
Traffic services 3,100 3,100 1,450 1,650 
Administration 144,377 144,377 144,640 (263) 
Fringe benefits 299,847 299,847 226,246 73,601 

Total expenditures 1,359,302 1,359,302 990,823 368,479 

Excess of Revenue (Under) Over 
Expenditures (249,717) (249,717) 163,869 413,586 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers out (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (499,717) (499,717) (86,131) 413,586 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 1,127,362 1,127,362 1,127,362 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	627,645 $ 	627,645 $ 	1,041,231 $ 	413,586 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Solid Waste Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Property taxes $ 	1,857,455 $ 	1,857,455 $ 	1,841,704 $ 	(15,751) 
Intergovernmental 7,000 7,000 8,686 1,686 
Investment income 10,000 10,000 21,178 11,178 
Other revenue 1,000 1,000 2,155 1,155 

Total revenue 1,875,455 1,875,455 1,873,723 (1,732) 

Expenditures 
Current services - 

Public works: 
Other services and charges 1,607,237 1,720,452 1,623,531 96,921 
Fringe benefits 138,941 138,941 118,085 20,856 

Debt service 5,042 5,042 5,042 

Total expenditures 1,751,220 1,864,435 1,746,658 117,777 

Net Change in Fund Balance 124,235 11,020 127,065 116,045 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 147,572 147,572 147,572 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	271,807 $ 	158,592 $ 	274,637 $ 	116,045 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Act 302 Training Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Intergovernmental $ 	7,500 $ 	7,500 $ 	4,784 $ 	(2,716) 
Other revenue 200 200 100 (100) 

Total revenue 7,700 7,700 4,884 (2,816) 

Expenditures - Current - Public safety 32,700 32,700 52,072 (19,372) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (25,000) (25,000) (47,188) (22,188) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 47,406 47,406 47,406 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	22,406  $ 	22,406  $ 	218  $ 	(22,188)  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Grants Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Revenue - Federal grants 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 	26,750 $ 	6,750 

Expenditures - Current - General government 20,000 20,000 

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures 20,000 6,750 6,750 

Other Financing Sources - Transfers in 20,000 (20,000) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 20,000 20,000 6,750 (13,250) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 3,294 3,294 3,294 

Fund Balance - End of year 23,294  $  23,294 $ 	10,044  $ 	(13,250)  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
911 Emergency Service 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Revenue - Other revenue 50,000 $ 	50,000 $ 	50,212 $ 	212 

Expenditures 
Current services: 

General government 30,010 30,010 19,499 10,511 
Public safety 84,183 84,183 84,405 (222) 
Public works - - 347 (347) 

Total expenditures 114,193 114,193 104,251 9,942 

Net Change in Fund Balance (64,193) (64,193) (54,039) 10,154 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 146,656 146,656 146,656 - 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	82,463 $ 	82,463 $ 	92,617 $ 	10,154 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Drug Enforcement 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Revenue - Other revenue $ 	1,000 $ 	1,000 $ 	5,005 $ 	4,005 

Expenditures - Current services - Public safety 7,300 7,300 7,124 176 

Net Change in Fund Balance (6,300) (6,300) (2,119) 4,181 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 25,062 25,062 25,062 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	18,762  $ 	18,762  $ 	22,943  $ 	4,181  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Parkway Beautification Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue - Other revenue 

Expenditures - Current - Recreation and culture 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

57,250 

52,500 

$ 	57,250 

57,500 

$ 38,985 

16,637 

$ 	(18,265) 

40,863 

Net Change in Fund Balance 4,750 (250) 22,348 22,598 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 188,206 188,206 188,206 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	192,956 $ 	187,956 $ 210,554 $ 	22,598 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
2015 Road Bond Construction 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Revenue - Investment income $ - 	$ - $ 346 $ 	346 

Expenditures - Current - Street construction - 

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures 346 346 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers out (268,823) (268,823) (269,346) (523) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (268,823) (268,823) (269,000) (177) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 269,000 269,000 269,000 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 177 $ 177 $ $ 	(177) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
MIDC Grant Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Revenue - State grants 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 	20,376 $ 	2,376 

Expenditures - Current - General government 23,151 25,684 26,060 (376) 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (5,151) (7,684) (5,684) 2,000 

Other Financing Sources - Transfer in 3,151 5,684 5,684 

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,000) (2,000) 2,000 

Fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning of year 

Fund Balance (Deficit) - End of year (2,000) $ (2,000) $ 2,000 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
2015 Road Bond Debt Service Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Property taxes $ 	1,085,215 $ 	1,085,215 $ 	1,076,535 $ 	(8,680) 
Intergovernmental 5,005 5,005 

Total revenue 1,085,215 1,085,215 1,081,540 (3,675) 

Expenditures - 
Debt service: 

Principal 795,000 795,000 795,000 
Interest on long-term debt 183,318 183,318 183,818 (500) 

Total expenditures 978,318 978,318 978,818 (500) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 106,897 106,897 102,722 (4,175) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 87,381 87,381 87,381 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	194,278 $ 	194,278 $ 	190,103 $ 	(4,175) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
2018 Capital Improvement Bond Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Revenue - Interest income $ 	- $ $ $ 

Expenditures - 
Debt service: 

Principal 130,000 130,000 130,000 
Interest on long-term debt 95,863 95,863 95,863 

Total expenditures 225,863 225,863 225,863 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (225,863) (225,863) (225,863) 

Other Financing Sources - Transfers in 225,863 225,863 225,863 - 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 6,567 6,567 6,567 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	6,567  $ 	6,567  $ 	6,567  $  

See note to other supplemental information. 	79 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Municipal Improvement Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 

Expenditures - Current - Community and 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) 

- $ 	- $ 	37,487 $ 	37,487 

economic development 218,454 1,089,002 1,095,734 (6,732) 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (218,454) (1,089,002) (1,058,247) 30,755 

Other Financing Sources - Transfers in 218,454 1,089,002 1,089,002 - 

Net Change in Fund Balance - 30,755 30,755 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 84,329 84,329 84,329 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	84,329  $ 	84,329  $ 	115,084  $ 	30,755  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Capital Improvement Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Variance with 
Amended 
Budget 

Actual 	(Unaudited) 

Revenue - Charges for services $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- 	$ 

Expenditures 
Current services: 

General government 230,000 230,000 
Public safety 11,269 6,524 	4,745 
Public works - 6,808 	(6,808) 
Municipal improvement - 20,000 86,076 	(66,076) 
Parks and recreation - 232,746 	(232,746) 

Debt service - 500 	(500) 

Total expenditures 261,269 332,654 	(71,385) 

Net Change in Fund Balance - (261,269) (332,654) 	(71,385) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 622,789 622,789 622,789 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	622,789 $ 	361,520 $ 	290,135 $ 	(71,385) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Cable Franchise Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Revenue - Investment income $ 	3,500 $ 	3,500 $ 	4,556 $ 	1,056 

Expenditures - Current - Public works - 825 (825) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 3,500 3,500 3,731 231 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 545,888 545,888 545,888 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	549,388  $ 	549,388  $ 	549,619  $ 	231  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

(Continued) 
Local Street Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Revenue 

Original Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Amended 
Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 
(Unaudited) 

Intergovernmental $ 	440,543 $ 	440,543 $ 	439,045 $ 	(1,498) 
Investment income 4,000 4,000 15,191 11,191 
Other revenue - 13,357 13,357 

Total revenue 444,543 444,543 467,593 23,050 

Expenditures 
Current services - 

Public works: 
Streets 294,338 294,338 177,009 117,329 
Administration 168,237 168,237 170,898 (2,661) 
Traffic services 10,400 10,400 4,272 6,128 
Winter maintenance 66,200 66,200 32,524 33,676 
Fringe benefits 1,465,057 1,558,345 2,080,710 (522,365) 

Total expenditures 2,004,232 2,097,520 2,465,413 (367,893) 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (1,559,689) (1,652,977) (1,997,820) (344,843) 

Other Financing Sources - Transfers in 1,309,689 1,402,977 1,403,500 523 

Net Change in Fund Balance (250,000) (250,000) (594,320) (344,320) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 1,392,180 1,392,180 1,392,180 

Fund Balance - End of year 1,142,180  $ 	1,142,180  $ 	797,860  $ 	(344,320)  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Local Street Fund 

Fund-based Balance Sheet 

Assets 

June 30, 2020 

Local Street 
Fund 

Cash and investments 841,287 
Receivables 61,277 
Due from other funds 91 
Prepaid items and other assets 6,159 

Total assets 908,814 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 103,907 
Accrued liabilities and other 7,047 

Total liabilities 110,954 

Fund Balances - Committed - Roads 797,860 

Total liabilities and fund balances 908,814 

Note - As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, the Local Street Fund is now merged with the General Fund for 
reporting purposes. The Local Street Fund balance sheet is shown for supplemental purposes. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Nonmaj or Enterprise Funds 

Fund Descriptions 

Parking Utility Fund 

This fund accounts for the City's parking meters and costs associated with maintaining the meters. Funding is 
provided by parking meter fees and violation fees. 

Boat Dock Rental Fund 

This fund accounts for boat dock rental units that are available to the citizens of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 
Michigan on an annual basis. Boat launch ramps and other watercraft maintenance services are available. 

Commodity Sales Fund 

This fund records the purchases and sale of rubbish bags and other miscellaneous items that the municipality 
holds for resale. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Net Position 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Parking Utility 
Fund 

Boat Dock 
Rental Fund 

Commodity 
Sales Fund 

June 30, 2020 

Total Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	656,741 $ 	144,728 $ 	142,801 $ 	944,270 
Investments 734,501 734,501 
Receivables - Accrued interest 2,029 2,029 
Due from other funds 38 24 62 
Prepaid items and other assets 1,760 1,760 

Total current assets 1,395,069 144,752 142,801 1,682,622 

Noncurrent assets - Capital assets - Net 563,005 519,885 1,082,890 

Total assets 1,958,074 664,637 142,801 2,765,512 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred 
pension costs 149,367 149,367 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 2,932 245 3,177 
Due to other funds 31,065 31,065 
Accrued liabilities and other 4,965 2,907 7,872 
Compensated absences 12,802 12,802 

Total current liabilities 20,699 34,217 54,916 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 2,995 2,995 
Net pension liability 715,855 715,855 
Net OPEB liability 607,991 607,991 

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,326,841 1,326,841 

Total liabilities 1,347,540 34,217 1,381,757 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred pension cost reductions 54,007 54,007 
Deferred OPEB cost reductions 13,678 13,678 

Total deferred inflows of resources 67,685 67,685 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 563,005 519,885 - 1,082,890 
Unrestricted 129,211 110,535 142,801 382,547 

Total net position $ 	692,216 $ 	630,420 $ 	142,801 $ 	1,465,437 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Operating Revenue 

Parking Utility 
Fund 

Boat Dock 
Rental Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Total Nonmajor 
Commodity 	Enterprise 
Sales Fund 	Funds 

Fees and violations $ 	316,748 $ 	- $ 	- $ 	316,748 
Dockings and launching fees 195,382 195,382 
Commodity sales 13,795 13,795 
Other revenue 5,120 316,715 321,835 

Total operating revenue 321,868 512,097 13,795 847,760 

Operating Expenses 
General and administrative 189,946 49,039 5,279 244,264 
Operation and maintenance 194,301 5,000 199,301 
Depreciation 48,377 77,689 126,066 

Total operating expenses 432,624 131,728 5,279 569,631 

Operating (Loss) Income (110,756) 380,369 8,516 278,129 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 
Investment income 16,852 2,524 2,254 21,630 
Interest expense - (706) - (706) 

Total nonoperating revenue 16,852 1,818 2,254 20,924 

Change in Net Position (93,904) 382,187 10,770 299,053 

Net Position - Beginning of year 786,120 248,233 132,031 1,166,384 

Net Position - End of year $ 	692,216 $ 	630,420 $ 	142,801 $ 	1,465,437 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Parking Utility 
Fund 

Boat Dock 
Rental Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Total Nonmajor 
Commodity 	Enterprise 
Sales Fund 	Funds 

Receipts from customers $ 	321,868 $ 	512,097 $ 	13,795 $ 	847,760 
Payments to suppliers (79,751) (160,829) (240,580) 
Payments to employees and fringes (347,444) (369,853) (5,279) (722,576) 
Payments to other funds (33,767) (3,959) (37,726) 

Net cash and cash equivalents (used 
in) provided by operating activities (139,094) (22,544) 8,516 (153,122) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Purchase of capital assets (37,132) (37,132) 
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (706) (706) 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in 
capital and related financing activities (37,132) (706) (37,838) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest received on investments 20,896 2,952 2,254 26,102 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of 

investment securities 380,665 103,776 484,441 

Net cash and cash equivalents 
provided by investing activities 401,561 106,728 2,254 510,543 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 225,335 83,478 10,770 319,583 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of 
year 431,406 61,250 132,031 624,687 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 	656,741 $ 	144,728 $ 	142,801 $ 	944,270 

Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
- Cash and cash equivalents $ 	656,741 $ 	144,728 $ 	142,801 $ 	944,270 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Reconciliation of Operating (Loss) Income to 
Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Parking Utility 
Fund 

Boat Dock 
Rental Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Total Nonmajor 
Commodity 	Enterprise 
Sales Fund 	Funds 

Operating (loss) income $ 	(110,756) $ 	380,369 $ 	8,516 $ 	278,129 
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) 

income to net cash from operating 
activities: 

Depreciation 48,377 77,689 126,066 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Due to and from other funds (38) (3,959) (3,997) 
Prepaid and other assets (529) (529) 
Net pension or OPEB asset (61,529) (354,726) (416,255) 
Accounts payable (14,619) (121,917) (136,536) 

Total adjustments (28,338) (402,913) (431,251) 

Net cash and cash equivalents (used 
in) provided by operating activities $ 	(139,094) $ 	(22,544) $ 	8,516 $ 	(153,122) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Internal Service Funds 

Fund Descriptions 

Motor Vehicle Fund 

This fund accounts for the costs of acquiring and maintaining city-operated vehicles used by various city 
departments. The actual cost of labor and materials is reimbursed to this fund by the user department through 
fees. 

Workers' Compensation Fund 

This fund was created to identify all costs associated with operating a self-insured workers' compensation fund. 
Funds are accumulated via transfers from other governmental and proprietary fund types and interest made on 
surplus earnings. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Net Position 

Internal Service Funds 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Motor Vehicle 
Fund 

Workers' 
Compensation 

Fund 

June 30, 2020 

Total Internal 
Service Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	1,132,533 $ 	134,577 $ 	1,267,110 
Investments 1,122,083 112,864 1,234,947 
Receivables - Accrued interest receivable 8,070 3,299 11,369 
Due from other funds 3,734 3,734 
Prepaid items and other assets 107,497 61,001 168,498 

Total current assets 2,373,917 311,741 2,685,658 

Noncurrent assets - Capital assets - Net 1,795,601 - 1,795,601 

Total assets 4,169,518 311,741 4,481,259 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred pension costs 318,375 318,375 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 20,000 20,000 
Due to other funds 2,115 2,115 
Accrued liabilities and other 9,125 9,125 
Provision for claims 128,706 128,706 

Total current liabilities 29,125 130,821 159,946 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 31,508 - 31,508 
Net pension liability 1,414,347 - 1,414,347 
Net OPEB liability 923,522 - 923,522 

Total liabilities 2,398,502 130,821 2,529,323 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred pension cost reductions 133,173 133,173 
Deferred OPEB cost reductions 20,788 20,788 

Total deferred inflows of resources 153,961 153,961 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 1,795,601 1,795,601 
Unrestricted 139,829 180,920 320,749 

Total net position $ 	1,935,430 $ 	180,920 $ 	2,116,350 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Internal Service Funds 

Operating Revenue 

Motor Vehicle 
Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Workers' 
Compensation 	Total Internal 

Fund 	Service Funds 

Other revenue $ 	1,200 $ 	 - $ 	1,200 
Charges to other funds 1,399,159 107,691 1,506,850 

Total operating revenue 1,400,359 107,691 1,508,050 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of insurance claims 6,093 33,060 39,153 
General and administrative 196,887 2,703 199,590 
Vehicle operation and maintenance 271,678 271,678 
Depreciation 312,194 - 312,194 

Total operating expenses 786,852 35,763 822,615 

Operating Income 613,507 71,928 685,435 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 
Investment income 51,663 5,855 57,518 
Interest expense (1,639) (1,639) 
Loss on sale of assets 8,250 8,250 
Insurance proceeds 3,700 - 3,700 

Total nonoperating revenue 61,974 5,855 67,829 

Change in Net Position 675,481 77,783 753,264 

Net Position - Beginning of year 1,259,949 103,137 1,363,086 

Net Position - End of year $ 	1,935,430 $ 	180,920 $ 	2,116,350 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Internal Service Funds 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Motor Vehicle 
Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Workers' 
Compensation 	Total Internal 

Fund 	Service Funds 

Receipts from customers 1,200 $ - $ 	1,200 
Receipts from interfund services and reimbursements 1,395,425 109,806 1,505,231 
Payments to suppliers (379,725) (10,489) (390,214) 
Payments to employees and fringes (284,582) (7,631) (292,213) 
Claims paid (12,452) (95,901) (108,353) 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used 
in) operating activities 719,866 (4,215) 715,651 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing 
Activities 

Benefit fees 3,700 3,700 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 8,250 8,250 
Purchase of capital assets (626,122) (626,122) 
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (63,735) (63,735) 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in capital and 
related financing activities (677,907) (677,907) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest received on investments 53,851 4,345 58,196 
Purchases of investment securities (63,339) (63,339) 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment 

securities 96,515 96,515 

Net cash and cash equivalents (used in) provided 
by investing activities (9,488) 100,860 91,372 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 32,471 96,645 129,116 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 1,100,062 37,932 1,137,994 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 	1,132,533 	$ 134,577 $ 	1,267,110 

Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and 
cash equivalents $ 	1,132,533 $ 134,577 $ 	1,267,110 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 

Internal Service Funds 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash from 
Operating Activities 

Motor Vehicle 
Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Workers' 
Compensation 	Total Internal 

Fund 	Service Funds 

Operating income 613,507 $ 	71,928 $ 	685,435 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

from operating activities: 
Depreciation 312,194 312,194 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Due to and from other funds (3,734) 2,115 (1,619) 
Prepaid and other assets (104,599) (7,623) (112,222) 
Net pension or OPEB asset (90,746) (90,746) 
Accounts payable (397) (2,866) (3,263) 
Estimated claims liability (6,359) (67,769) (74,128) 

Total adjustments 106,359 (76,143) 30,216 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by 
(used in) operating activities 719,866 $ 	(4,215)  $ 	715,651  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Fiduciary Funds 

Fund Descriptions 

Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity. Agency funds are used to 
account for the assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governments, and/or other funds. 

Agency Funds 

These funds account for the deposit of moneys by the city government in a trustee capacity or as an agent for 
individuals, private organization, other governments, and/or other funds. 

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds 

The City operates one retirement system, one supplemental annuity fund, and one retiree health care account, 
which are accounted for in three separate funds. These funds cover all full-time employees of the City. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 

June 30, 2020 

Assets 

Pension Fund 
Supplementary 
Annuity Fund 

Other 
Postemployment 

Benefit Trust 
Fund 

Total Pension 
and OPEB 

Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	215,144 $ 	11,543 $ 	72,836 $ 	299,523 
Investments: 

Stocks 14,636,978 785,345 - 15,422,323 
Corporate bonds 6,390,978 342,907 - 6,733,885 
Pooled investments 14,303,086 767,430 928,536 15,999,052 

Receivables - Accrued interest receivable 24 1 - 25 

Total assets 35,546,210 1,907,226 1,001,372 38,454,808 

Liabilities 

Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other 
Employee Benefits $ 	35,546,210 $ 	1,907,226 $ 	1,001,372 $ 	38,454,808 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Additions 
Investment income (loss): 

Pension Fund 
Supplementary 
Annuity Fund 

Other 
Postemployment 

Benefit Trust 
Fund 

Total Pension 
and OPEB 

Funds 

Interest and dividends $ 	522,180 $ 	25,905 $ 	23,269 $ 	571,354 
Net increase in fair value of investments (365,040) (18,109) 6,282 (376,867) 
Investment-related expenses (70,669) (3,506) - (74,175) 

Net investment income 86,471 4,290 29,551 120,312 

Contributions: 
Employer contributions 1,406,408 335,830 1,401,986 3,144,224 
Employee contributions 262,297 - 58,919 321,216 

Total contributions 1,668,705 335,830 1,460,905 3,465,440 

Total additions 1,755,176 340,120 1,490,456 3,585,752 

Deductions - Benefit payments 3,403,902 278,103 1,351,986 5,033,991 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Net Position Held in 
Trust (1,648,726) 62,017 138,470 (1,448,239) 

Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other 
Employee Benefits - Beginning of year 37,194,936 1,845,209 862,902 39,903,047 

Net Position Restricted for Pension and Other 
Employee Benefits - End of year $ 	35,546,210 $ 	1,907,226 $ 	1,001,372 $ 	38,454,808 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Statement of Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 

June 30, 2020 

Wayne County 	Cash Bond 
Tax Fund 	Escrow Fund 

	
Total 

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents 	 2,795 $ 	2,795 

Liabilities - Court bonds payable 	 2,795  $ 	2,795 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Wayne County Tax Fund 

Assets - Cash and investments 

 

July 1, 2019 	Additions 	Deductions 	June 30, 2020  

	  $ 34,602,248  $ (34,602,248) $  

Liabilities - Due to other governmental units 	  $ 34,602,248  $ (34,602,248) $  

 

  

Cash Bond Escrow Fund 

   

     

Assets - Cash and investments 

Liabilities - Court bonds payable 

July 1, 2019 	Additions 	Deductions 	June 30, 2020  

$ 	4,200  $ 	39,676  $ 	(41,081) $ 	2,795  

$ 	4,200 $ 	39,676 $ 	(41,081) $ 	2,795 

  

      

Total Agency 
July 1, 2019 	Additions 	Deductions 	June 30, 2020 

Assets - Cash and investments 4,200 $ 	34,641,924 $ (34,643,329) $ 	2,795 

Liabilities 
Due to other governmental units - $ 	34,602,248 $ 	(34,602,248) $ 
Court bonds payable 4,200 39,676 (41,081) 2,795 

Total liabilities 4,200 $ 	34,641,924 $ (34,643,329) $ 	2,795 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Note to Other Supplemental Information 

June 30, 2020 

Budgetary Information 

As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, the Local Street Fund and Cable Franchise Fund are now merged with the 
General Fund for reporting purposes but are budgeted as separate funds. 
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Statistical Section 



Statistical Section 

This part of the comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health 

The statistical section is organized into the following main categories: 

Financial trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
government's current level of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and economic information 
These schedules help the reader understand the environment within which the 
government's financial activities take place. 

Operating information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government 

Continuing Disclosure 
Continuing disclosure information contained herein complies with Rule 15c2-12, a federal regulation 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, designed to improve disclosure 
practices in the municipal bond market. Municipal bonds issued after July 3, 1995 are subject to this 
mandatory requirement. 

Continuing disclosure requires certain annual financial information and operating data, including 
audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year. This information is generally consistent 
with the information contained or cross-referenced in the official statement relating to the bonds. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Governmental Activities 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

$ 	26,918,168 

772,268 

(2,595,090) 

$ 26,908,007 

923,644 

(4,608,002) 

$ 	27,096,926 

924,572 

(6,341,023) 

$ 26,303,935 

835,294 

(7,745,764) 

Total net position 25,095,346 $ 	23,223,649 $ 	21,680,475 $ 	19,393,465 

Business-type Activities 

Net investment in capital assets 18,345,231 $ 18,585,076 $ 	18,451,087 $ 18,458,605 

Restricted 425,500 397,500 349,500 319,000 
Unrestricted 2,461,914 3,213,270 4,232,956 5,465,819 

Total net position $ 	21,232,645 $ 	22,195,846 $ 	23,033,543 $ 	24,243,424 

Primary Government in Total 
Net investment in capital assets $ 	45,263,399 $ 45,493,083 $ 	45,548,013 $ 44,762,540 

Restricted 1,197,768 1,321,144 1,274,072 1,154,294 

Unrestricted (133,176) (1,394,732) (2,108,067) (2,279,945) 

Total net position $ 	46,327,991 $ 	45,419,495 $ 	44,714,018 $ 	43,636,889 

Source: City annual financial statements 
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Net Position by Component 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

$ 	27,569,120 $ 25,064,363 $ 	22,206,276 $ 	27,441,437 $ 	29,554,228 $ 	34,307,867 

7,500,582 2,946,510 3,380,839 3,853,062 4,675,063 3,879,012 

(28,560,231) (26,399,199) (26,770,331) (65,318,399) (62,826,090) (62,229,876) 

6,509,471 $ 	1,611,674 $ 	(1(183,216) $ 	(34,023,900) $ 	(28,596,799) $ (24,042,997) 

18,185,073 $ 18,154,537 $ 	18,507,826 $ 	18,830,410 $ 	21,640,125 $ 	23,036,705 

306,500 256,000 223,500 198,090 155,000 198,090 

5,537,757 7,005,669 9,036,011 8,144,812 7,377,799 8,078,834 

24,029,330 $ 	25,416,206 $ 	27,767,337 $ 	27,173,312 $ 	29,172,924 $ 	31,313,629 

45,754,193 $ 43,218,900 $ 	40,714,102 $ 	46,271,847 $ 	51,194,353 $ 	57,344,572 

7,807,082 3,202,510 3,604,339 $ 	4,051,152 $ 	4,830,063 $ 	4,077,102 

(23,022,474) (19,393,530) (17,734,320) (57,173,587) (55,448,291) (54,151,042) 

$ 	30,538,801  $ 	27(027,880  $ 	26,584,121  (6,850,588) $ 	576,125  $ 	7,270,632  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Expenses 
Governmental activities: 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

General government $ 	3,422,593 $ 	3,092,280 $ 	3,207,643 $ 	3,130,925 
Public safety 7,912,560 7,153,532 6,869,020 6,553,852 
Public works 5,655,876 6,016,942 5,841,495 6,091,819 
Solid waste 1,087,987 1,121,417 10,076,663 1,150,743 
Municipal improvement 130,849 191,180 63,982 307,290 
Recreation and culture 1,967,708 1,717,327 1,827,426 1,554,898 
Interest on long-term debt 72,814 40,214 17,369 830,255 

Total governmental activities 20,250,387 19,332,892 27,903,598 19,619,782 

Business-type activities: 
Water/Sewer 5,044,337 5,059,715 5,432,429 5,420,387 
Parking 198,866 237,150 207,597 195,791 
Boat dock 73,870 74,172 69,894 97,519 
Commodity sales 30,689 26,018 40,085 - 

Total business-type activities expenses 5,347,762 5,397,055 5,750,005 5,713,697 

Total primary government expenses 25,598,149 24,729,947 33,653,603 25,333,479 

Program Revenue 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services 
Municipal court 774,390 909,241 667,782 593,962 
Building inspections and related 
Recreation and culture 102,037 120,304 119,399 107,161 
Other activities 435,796 541,545 639,214 614,984 

Total charges for services 1,312,223 1,571,090 1,426,395 1,316,107 

Operating and capital grants and contributions 886,569 907,211 912,762 943,540 

Total governmental activities program revenue 2,198,792 2,478,301 2,339,157 2,259,647 

Business-type Activities 
Charges for services: 

Water/Sewer 5,405,036 5,976,950 6,144,410 6,339,551 
Parking 201,166 193,812 301,696 292,825 
Boat dock 132,715 130,778 129,805 126,052 
Commodity sales 40,225 40,918 37,922 34,214 

Capital grants and contributions 

Total business-type program revenue 5,779,142 6,342,458 6,613,833 6,792,642 

Total primary government program revenue $ 	7,977,934 $ 	8,820,759 $ 	8,952,990 $ 	9,052,289 

Net (Expense) Revenue 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total primary government net expense 

$ 	(18,051,595) $ 	(16,854,591) 

	

431,380 	 945,403  
$ 	(16,640,014) 

863,828  
$ 	(17,360,135) 

1,078,945  

$ (16,281,190) 

       

17 620 215 $ (15,909,188) $ (15,776,186) 

       

Source: City annual financial statements 
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Changes in Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, and 
Primary Government Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

$ 	2,494,362 $ 	3,586,605 $ 	3,508,241 $ 	2,132,039 $ 	739,340 $ 	518,716 
7,777,514 9,321,147 8,318,311 5,667,873 4,025,271 5,741,383 
6,126,373 6,431,753 6,720,230 5,388,938 6,164,026 6,547,959 
1,193,308 1,126,483 1,108,370 1,666,746 1,499,882 1,661,616 

554,163 575,094 260,432 811,929 1,029,092 1,283,863 
1,773,961 1,855,328 1,905,019 1,758,972 1,723,645 1,848,120 

- 207,605 158,803 186,192 539,273 560,896 

19,919,681 23,104,015 21,979,406 17,612,689 15,720,529 18,162,553 

5,919,315 6,053,295 5,897,189 6,147,744 6,351,669 6,399,751 
246,050 304,826 136,057 235,753 495,089 432,624 
96,733 104,778 89,176 432,292 279,565 132,434 
36,955 23,940 35,713 10,922 47,233 5,279 

6,299,053 6,486,839 6,158,135 6,826,711 7,173,556 6,970,088 

26,218,734 29,590,854 28,137,541 24,439,400 22,894,085 25,132,641 

455,417 401,218 489,299 452,764 410,923 403,678 

111,904 116,383 146,619 141,725 136,973 78,258 
321,151 379,099 364,232 397,502 305,384 253,907 

888,472 896,700 1,000,150 991,991 853,280 735,843 

1,091,214 1,009,509 1,306,687 1,655,576 1,756,482 2,496,185 

1,979,686 1,906,209 2,306,837 2,647,567 2,609,762 3,232,028 

6,241,351 7,202,849 7,818,095 8,763,915 8,214,871 8,021,351 
454,533 439,720 446,643 473,826 448,071 321,868 
140,986 150,625 142,843 172,091 194,478 512,097 
33,075 30,392 27,679 25,939 21,382 13,795 

6,869,945 7,823,586 8,435,260 9,435,771 8,878,802 8,869,111 

$ 	8,849,631  $ 	9,729,795  $ 	10,742,097  _$ 	12,083,338  $ 	11,488,564  $ 	12,101,139  

$ 	(17,939,995) (21,197,806) $ 	(19,672,569) $ 	(14,965,122) $ 	(13,110,767) $ 	(14,930,525) 
570,892 1,336,747 2,277,125 2,609,060 1,705,246 1,899,023 

$ (17,369,103) $ (19,861,059) $ (17,395,444) $ (12,356,062) $ (11,405,521) $ (13,031,502) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

General Revenue 
Governmental activities: 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

Property taxes $ 	13,536,960 $ 	12,817,647 $ 	12,869,618 $ 	12,971,861 
Income taxes 
State-shared revenue 1,420,431 1,482,102 1,500,662 1,521,267 
Investment earnings 63,272 63,694 27,817 46,301 
Donations 
Franchise fees 320,426 262,837 380,964 340,268 
Other 234,820 368,060 287,779 301,260 
Gain on sale of fixed assets 
Transfers 35,500 (11,446) 30,000 (107,832) 

Total governmental activities 15,611,409 14,982,894 15,096,840 15,073,125 

Business-type activities: 
Unrestricted investment earnings 7,151 6,352 3,869 21,104 
Other 2,000 
Transfers (35,500) 11,446 (30,000) 107,832 

Total business-type activities (28,349) 17,798 (26,131) 130,936 

Total primary government 15,583,060 15,000,692 15,070,709 15,204,061 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental activities (2,440,186) (1,871,697) (1,543,174) (2,287,010) 
Business-type activities 403,031 963,201 837,697 1,209,881 

Total primary government $ 	(2,037,155) $ 	(908,496) $ 	(705,477) $ 	(1,077,129) 

Source: City annual financial statements 
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Changes in Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, and 
Primary Government Net Position (Continued) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

$ 	12,089,662 $ 	13,450,544 $ 	14,229,532 $ 	14,116,610 $ 	15,161,779 $ 	15,997,173 

1,568,207 1,640,461 1,564,983 1,715,312 1,848,256 1,649,486 
43,238 82,738 38,764 171,696 438,677 338,402 

315,723 427,964 379,362 362,235 336,174 369,566 
507,807 627,485 665,038 822,143 752,982 1,129,700 

7,850 23,684 
- - - 

14,532,487 16,252,876 16,877,679 17,187,996 18,537,868 19,484,327 

28,735 50,129 74,006 147,189 294,366 241,682 

28,735 50,129 74,006 147,189 294,366 241,682 

14,561,222 16,303,005 16,951,685 17,335,185 18,832,234 19,726,009 

(3,407,508) (4,944,930) (2,794,890) 2,222,874 5,427,101 4,553,802 
599,627 1,386,876 2,351,131 2,756,249 1,999,612 2,140,705 

$ 	(2,807,881) $ 	(3,558,054) $ 	(443,759) $ 	4,979,123 $ 	7,426,713 $ 	6,694,507 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

General Fund 

As of June 30, 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

Nonspendable 6,111 4,325 121,380 138,757 
Restricted - 
Committed 125,329 143,811 207,961 317,432 
Assigned 949,395 1,198,046 1,751,490 953,821 
Unassigned 3,896,333 3,853,739 3,435,761 3,754,923 

Total general fund 4,977,168 5,199,921 5,516,592 5,164,933 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Nonspendable 19,390 17,002 
Restricted 765,921 905,950 924,572 829,037 
Committed 14,850 17,750 33,500 
Assigned 447,234 313,424 375,123 1,152,784 
Unassigned - - 

Total all other governmental funds 1,213,155 1,253,614 1,317,445 2,032,323 

Total of all governmental funds $6,190,323 $6,453,535 $6 834 037 $7,197,256 

Source: City annual financial statements 
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Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

lune 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

As of June 30, 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

104,203 79,148 94,419 24,890 405,496 290,917 

558,479 751,952 541,642 424,329 1,387,970 791,701 
1,027,515 707,910 748,464 3,391,228 1,224,769 599,619 
3,716,961 4,992,622 6,255,011 5,315,591 5,366,466 6,181,169 

5,407,158 6,531,632 7,639,536 9,156,038 8,384,701 7,863,406 

13,365 10,438 11,153 3,636 9,080 11,783 
7,488,572 2,937,106 5,816,063 3,850,363 5,552,733 4,157,254 

66,700 16,770 23,158 20,006 
935,005 1,876,521 231,432 363,125 325,198 291,806 

- (33,213) (207,026) 

8,503,642 4,840,835 6,048,593 4,030,104 5,887(011 4,460,843 

$ 	13,910,800 $ 11,372,467 $ 13,688,129 $ 13,186,142 $ 14,271,712 $ 12,324,249 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

As of June 30, 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

Revenue 
Property taxes $ 13,525,921 $ 12,816,628 $ 12,868,677 $ 12,971,026 
State and local sources 2,209,151 2,220,847 2,263,244 2,328,022 
Intergovernmental taxes - - 
Delinquent interest and collection fee income - - 
Federal financial assistance 8,083 7,621 6,800 6,483 
Other revenue 1,968,095 2,363,851 2,166,176 2,088,772 
Investment income 54,524 54,762 21,988 34,791 

Total revenue 17,765,774 17,463,709 17,326,885 17,429,094 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 2,728,228 2,726,596 2,884,058 2,773,796 
Public safety 6,067,173 5,723,312 5,453,295 5,480,645 
Public works 5,618,581 5,824,444 5,905,623 6,202,883 
Recreation and culture 1,581,537 1,353,885 1,421,895 1,337,255 
Miscellaneous - - - 

Capital outlay 247,983 209,044 124,082 334,617 
Debt service principal 1,152,522 1,185,797 1,173,754 828,847 
Debt service interest 72,597 43,949 14,676 - 

Total expenditures 17,468,621 17,067,027 16,977,383 16,958,043 

Excess of Revenue (Under) Over 
Expenditures 297,153 396,682 349,502 471,051 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Debt issuance/proceeds from sale of 

cap assets - 500 1,000 - 
Transfers in 1,525,287 1,012,880 385,501 660,919 
Transfers out (1,384,779) (1,024,326) (355,501) (768,751) 

Total other financing (uses) sources 140,508 (10,946) 31,000 (107,832) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 437,661 385,736 380,502 363,219 

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 5,630,138 6,067,799 6,453,535 6,834,037 

Fund Balances - End of year $6,067,799  $6,453,535  $6,834,037  $7,197,256  

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 
expenditures 	 7.16% 	7.30% 	7.09% 	5.01% 

Source: City annual financial statements 

111 



Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

As of June 30, 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

$ 	12,089,662 $ 	13,450,544 $ 13,942,867 $ 14,403,290 $ 15,161,779 $ 	15,996,485 
2,389,342 2,649,970 2,723,847 3,167,506 3,746,298 3,215,563 

7,693 25,227 13,777 44,670 26,750 
1,903,267 2,057,149 2,272,146 2,276,711 2,247,657 1,683,001 

26,214 70,506 27,286 146,493 397,423 289,278 

16,416,178 18,228,169 18,991,373 20,007,777 21,597,827 21,211,077 

2,864,850 2,603,109 2,645,589 2,700,380 4,501,649 2,603,533 
5,397,800 5,322,568 5,467,346 5,578,638 5,715,168 5,652,474 
6,465,890 10,813,928 8,840,961 17,925,257 12,517,740 16,082,363 
1,373,591 1,367,357 1,463,628 1,700,044 2,008,936 1,747,492 

- - 
498,095 451,935 171,937 615,005 909,337 1,181,810 
226,874 750,000 750,000 824,103 1,648,548 

207,605 211,250 237,679 531,741 616,472 

16,827,100 20,766,502 19,550,711 29,507,003 27,008,674 29,532,692 

(410,922) (2,538,333) (559,338) (9,499,226) (5,410,847) (8,321,615) 

7,124,466 2,875,000 8,997,239 6,496,417 6,374,152 
231,416 364,163 16,900 333,586 361,347 1,839,895 

(231,416) (364,163) (16,900) (333,586) (361,347) (1,839,895) 

7,124,466 - 2,875,000 8,997,239 6,496,417 6,374,152 

6,713,544 (2,538,333) 2,315,662 (501,987) 1,085,570 (1,947,463) 

7,197,256  13,910,800 	 11,372,467 	 13,688,129 	 13,186,142 14,271,712  

$13,910,800 $ 	11,372,467 $ 	13,688,129 $ 	13,186,142 $ 	14,271,712 $ 	12,324,249 

1.44% 1.34% 5.90% 3.75% 7.20% 11.47% 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

General Governmental Revenue History 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Inter- 
	

Federal 

Fiscal 
	

General 
	

governmental Licenses and Financial 	Charges for 	Interest and 

Year Property Taxes 
	

Revenue 
	

Permits 	Assistance 	Services 	Miscellaneous  Total Revenue  

2011 13,525,921 2,217,234 609,115 - 108,795 1,304,709 17,765,774 
2012 12,816,628 2,220,847 647,537 7,621 124,203 1,646,873 17,463,709 
2013 12,868,677 2,263,244 875,743 6,800 121,379 1,191,042 17,326,885 
2014 12,971,026 2,328,022 847,839 6,483 114,559 1,161,165 17,429,094 
2015 12,089,662 2,389,342 762,903 7,693 200,141 966,437 16,416,178 
2016 13,450,544 2,649,970 825,131 - 225,434 1,077,090 18,228,169 
2017 13,942,867 2,723,847 860,940 25,227 259,340 1,179,152 18,991,373 
2018 14,403,290 3,167,506 362,235 13,777 699,489 1,361,480 20,007,777 
2019 15,161,779 3,746,298 336,174 44,670 850,123 1,458,778 21,597,822 
2020 15,996,485 3,215,563 369,566 26,750 600,775 1,001,938 21,211,077 

Source: City annual financial statements 

113 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Year Ended 

Tax Year 	June 30, Total Levy 

Current 

Collections (1) 

Percent 

Collected 

Delinquent 

Collections (2) 

Total Tax 

Collections 

vercent or 

Tota I 

Collections 

to Levy 

2010 2011 12,964,347 12,565,830 96.93% 398,518 12,964,348 100.00% 
2011 2012 12,178,436 11,860,159 97.39% 318,277 12,178,436 100.00% 
2012 2013 11,994,577 11,722,371 97.73% 272,206 11,994,577 100.00% 
2013 2014 12,364,679 12,083,808 97.73% 280,870 12,364,678 100.00% 

2014 2015 11,986,716 11,460,229 95.61% 526,487 11,986,716 100.00% 
2015 2016 13,131,261 12,483,896 95.07% 647,365 13,131,261 100.00% 

2016 2017 14,037,134 13,307,362 94.80% 726,581 14,033,943 99.98% 
2017 2018 13,278,048 13,135,291 98.92% 238,023 13,373,314 100.72% 
2018 2019 14,671,703 14,371,506 97.95% 300,251 14,671,756 100.00% 

2019 2020 15,535,494 15,200,200 97.84% 335,294 15,535,494 100.00% 

(1) Figure includes delinquent taxes turned over to Wayne County for collections on March 1 of each year. 
(2) Prior to 2004, the amount reported is adjusted for delinquent taxes collected for that year in subsequent years. 
Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Tax 

Year 

Taxable Value by Property Type 

Fiscal 

Year Residential Commercial Industrial Personal Property 

2010 2011 539,673,504 63,125,634 100,695 14,263,900 
2011 2012 523,811,319 64,481,399 103,413 15,534,000 
2012 2013 523,323,200 62,355,800 105,800 15,577,600 
2013 2014 534,100,330 71,785,000 107,400 12,500,000 
2014 2015 552,991,973 72,042,025 109,177 12,808,700 
2015 2016 563,473,469 72,936,601 109,445 14,693,500 
2016 2017 578,864,599 66,717,419 110,430 13,757,547 
2017 2018 602,093,150 67,911,530 112,749 25,907,200 
2018 2019 628,785,679 68,566,360 115,454 25,084,400 
2019 2020 650,171,495 71,772,973 117,647 24,344,600 

Note: Under Michigan law, the revenue base is referred to as "Taxable Value". This 

amount represents Assessed value (50% of true cash value), limited for each property 

by the lower of 5% or inflation. Taxes levied in a particular "tax year" become revenue 

of the subsequent fiscal year. 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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Taxable Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable 
Property 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Total Value 

Tax Rate 

(mills) 

State 

Equalized Value 

Estimated 

Actual Value 

Taxable Value as a 

Percentage of Actual 

$ 	617,163,733 19.7082 636,476,684 1,272,953,368 48.48% 
603,930,131 20.4542 623,040,680 1,246,081,360 48.47% 
601,362,400 20.6834 638,890,901 1,277,781,802 47.06% 
618,492,730 18.8883 681,439,327 1,362,878,654 45.38% 
637,951,875 20.6091 742,311,865 1,484,623,730 42.97% 
651,213,015 21.5685 793,579,200 1,587,158,400 41.03% 
659,449,995 20.0671 842,847,660 1,685,695,320 39.12% 
696,024,629 20.3936 870,068,002 1,740,136,004 40.00% 
722,551,893 21.5214 950,311,765 1,900,623,530 38.02% 
746,406,715 21.3551 1,004,650,469 1,492,813,430 50.00% 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Overlapping 

Millage Rates - Direct City Taxes (1) 
	

Taxes 

Ch 20/21 

Tax 	General 	 Voted Park Voted Road Statutory Milk River Total Direct 

Year 	Operating  Voted EMS 	Bond 	Bond 	Solid Waste 	Drain 	Taxes 	County 

2011 13.0012 0.3578 - 1.8807 4.4685 19.7082 8.5120 
2012 13.5432 0.3578 - 2.0251 4.5281 20.4542 8.7120 
2013 13.5212 0.5280 - 	 - 2.0251 4.5281 20.6024 8.7120 
2014 14.1063 - - 	 - 2.0251 2.7340 18.8654 9.1220 
2015 14.1051 - - 	0.3280 2.0251 4.1509 20.6091 9.1220 
2016 13.8925 - 1.5000 2.0251 4.1509 21.5685 9.1220 
2017 13.9732 - - 	1.5300 2.0251 2.6070 20.1353 9.1220 
2018 13.6843 - - 	1.5000 2.6023 3.3250 21.1116 9.1220 
2019 13.4990 - 	1.5000 2.5674 3.9550 21.5214 9.1211 
2020 13.3568 - 	1.5000 2.5406 3.9550 21.3524 9.1211 

(1) Includes general operating, public safety, recreation, and culture 
(2) Previously termed homestead and nonhomestead 

Note: Michigan law restricts the maximum millage that may be levied by 
the City without a vote of our residents as follows: 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Overlapping Taxes Total Tax Rate (2) 

H.C.M.A. 

Community 

College 

Grosse 

Pointe 

Library 

Intermediate 

School District 

School 

District 

Principal 

School 

District 

Nonprincipal Principal Nonprincipal 

0.2146 2.2408 1.5412 3.4643 15.5790 26.6750 51.2601 62.3561 
0.2146 2.2408 2.0012 3.4643 16.0882 26.7587 53.1753 63.8458 
0.2146 3.2408 2.0412 3.4643 16.0890 26.7852 54.3643 65.0605 
0.2146 3.2408 2.0512 3.4643 15.9166 26.7550 52.8749 63.7133 
0.2146 3.2408 2.0712 3.4643 15.9166 26.7550 54.6386 65.4770 
0.2146 3.2408 2.0613 5.4643 15.3770 27.3955 55.0485 67.0670 
0.2141 3.2408 2.2186 5.4643 15.3770 27.3955 31.1500 31.1500 
0.2129 3.2408 2.1925 5.4643 14.7127 26.7127 55.0616 66.7441 
0.2117 3.2408 2.1707 5.4643 15.5975 27.5975 57.2594 69.7706 
0.2104 3.2408 2.1504 5.4643 15.9353 28.1307 57.4747 69.6701 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Principal Property Tax Payers 
Current and Ten Years Ago 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Taxpayer 

2020 Taxable 

Value 

Percentage of 

Total 

2011 Taxable 

Value 

Percentage of 

Total 

1 DRSN Real Estate GP LLC $ 	13,886,938 1.861% N/A 0.000% 
2 Michigan Cons. Gas Co. 13,410,800 1.797% 1,769,891 0.253% 
3 Health Care Reit Inc 6,820,090 0.914% 4,646,647 0.665% 
4 Pointe Plaza 5,128,423 0.687% 4,352,503 0.622% 
5 Detroit Edison 4,382,347 0.587% 2,733,300 0.391% 
6 VDG Mack Ave LLC 2,187,530 0.293% 627,892 0.090% 
7 Briarcliff 2014 LLC 1,745,130 0.234% N/A 0.000% 
8 Lochmoor Club 1,624,740 0.218% 4,222,442 0.604% 
9 A H Peters Funeral Home 1,522,521 0.204% 1,312,380 0.188% 

10 Comerica 1,384,476 0.185% 4,038,495 0.578% 
11 Kroger Co. of Mich. 1,278,441 0.171% 2,861,225 0.409% 
12 St John Health System 1,254,141 0.168% 1,500,256 0.215% 

Total $ 54,625,577 7.318% $ 28,065,031 4.013% 

Total 746,406,715 699,266,846 

Source: City of Grosse Pointe Woods Assessing Department records 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Governmental Activities 
General obligation bonds (GOB) 
GOB installment note 

As of June 30, 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

GOB contract - Wayne County Drain 2,407,892 1,222,095 
2015 Road Bonds Issue #1 
2015 Road Bonds Issue #2 
2018 Capital Improvement Bond Issue 
Installment loans - Vehicles 

Total 2,407,892 1,222,095 

Business-type Activities 
Installment purchase agreements - 
2010 DWRF Bonds 2,723,141 4,195,364 5,170,410 4,951,798 
2012 SRF Bonds 667,763 2,485,726 
Revenue bonds 4,255,000 3,975,000 3,975,000 3,190,000 
Bond premium 282,707 254,436 

Total 6,978,141 8,170,364 10,095,880 10,881,960 

Total debt of the government $ 9,386,033 $ 9,392,459 $ 10,095,880 $ 	10,881,960 

Total Taxable Value (1) $ 617,163,733 $ 	603,930,131 $ 	601,362,400 $ 	618,492,730 

Ratio of Total Debt to Personal Income 1.52% 1.56% 1.68% 1.76% 

Total Population 16,135 16,135 16,135 16,135 

Total Debt Per Capita 582 582 626 674 

(1) Personal income is not available 

Source: City annual financial statements; population data reported from demographics schedule 
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Ratios of Outstanding Debt 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

As of June 30, 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

- - 
- 
- 

- 
- 8,997,239 

- 
12,846,326 17,824,929 

7,124,469 7,072,022 6,269,575 5,467,128 4,664,681 4,112,234 
2,875,000 2,875,000 2,875,000 2,580,000 

2,637,508 2,497,686 
272,558 648,813 539,586 303,927 62,096 

7,397,027 7,720,835 9,684,161 17,643,294 23,085,611 27,014,849 

- - - 
4,696,798 4,436,798 4,166,798 4,051,999 3,791,999 3,526,999 
2,733,788 2,620,513 2,497,065 2,377,065 2,252,065 2,127,065 
2,880,000 2,560,000 2,235,000 1,900,000 1,550,000 1,185,000 

226,166 197,896 169,626 141,353 113,082 84,811 

10,536,752 9,815,207 9,068,489 8,470,417 7,707,146 6,923,875 

$17 933 779 $ 17,536,042 $ 	18,752,650 $ 	26,113,711 $ 30,792,757 $ 33,938,724 

$ 637,951,875 $ 651,213,015 $ 	659,449,995 $ 	696,024,629 $ 	723,476,987 $ 	746,406,715 

2.81% 2.69% 2.84% 3.75% 4.26% 4.55% 

16,135 16,135 16,135 16,135 16,135 16,135 

1,111 1,087 1,162 1,618 1,105 3,466 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Pledged-revenue Coverage 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Debt Service Requirements (3) 

Fiscal 

Year 

Gross 

Revenue (1) 

Applicable 

Expenses (2) Net Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage 

2011 5,405,036 4,164,564 1,240,472 275,000 151,741 426,741 290.68% 
2012 5,976,950 4,116,499 1,860,451 370,000 223,209 593,209 313.63% 
2013 6,144,410 4,447,042 1,697,368 290,000 135,279 425,279 399.12% 
2014 6,311,280 4,248,572 2,062,708 305,000 92,188 397,188 519.33% 
2015 6,213,080 4,898,622 1,314,458 310,000 87,850 397,850 330.39% 
2016 7,174,578 5,003,502 2,171,076 320,000 76,851 396,851 547.08% 
2017 7,789,824 4,826,771 2,963,053 325,000 74,850 399,850 741.04% 
2018 8,735,644 5,072,817 3,662,827 335,000 68,250 403,250 908.33% 
2019 8,186,600 5,355,540 2,831,060 350,000 59,650 409,650 691.09% 
2020 7,993,080 5,344,854 2,648,226 365,000 74,850 439,850 602.07% 

(1) Exclusive of nonoperating revenue 
(2) Exclusive of depreciation charges and nonoperating expenditures 
(3) Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only 

Source: CAFR, Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 

Year 

Population 

Per Federal 

Census 

Adjusted Taxable 

Equalized Valuation 

General Obligation 

Bond Outstanding 

Percent Debt to 

Assessed Value 

Debt Per 

Capita 

2011 16,135 (1)  617,163,733 2,407,892 0.39% 149 
2012 16,135 603,930,131 1,222,095 0.20% 76 
2013 16,135 601,362,400 0.00% 
2014 16,135 618,492,730 0.00% 
2015 16,135 (2)  637,951,875 7,124,469 1.12% 442 
2016 16,135 651,213,015 7,071,532 1.09% 438 
2017 16,135 (3)  659,449,995 6,674,748 1.01% 567 
2018 16,135 696,024,629 14,772,899 2.12% 358 
2019 16,135 (4)  722,551,893 19,798,180 1.54% 630 
2020 16,135 (4) 746,406,715 24,971,469 3.35% 570 

Debt is reported net of accumulated reserves, which total $2,403,380 in fiscal year 2020. 

(1) Based upon 2010 federal census 
(2) Road Bonds approved by voters Nov 2014 
(3) Road Bond Debt Issue #2 Added 
(4) 2018 Capital Improvement Bonds 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Governmental unit Debt Outstanding 

Estimated 

Percent 

Applicable 

Estimated 

Share of 

Overlapping Debt 

Grosse Pointe Public Library $ 	8,860,000 25.09% $ 	2,222,974 
Grosse Pointe Public Schools 79,860,000 25.09% 20,036,874 
County of Wayne Building Authority and Debt Fund 281,946,697 1.70% 4,793,094 
Wayne County Community College 2.90% 

Total overlapping debt 370,666,697 27,052,942 

Direct city debt 27,014,849 27,014,849 

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 	397,681,546 $ 54,067,791 

The estimated percentage applicable is calculated by the taxable value of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods divided by 
the taxable value of the taxing authority's district. 

Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Calculation of debt limit (1): 

As of June 30, 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

Taxable valuation $ 	617,163,733 $ 	603,930,131 $ 	601,362,400 $ 	618,492,730 
10 percent of equalized value 61,716,373 61,716,373 62,331,330 62,331,330 

Calculation of debt subject to limit: 
Total debt 9,386,033 9,392,459 10,095,880 10,881,960 
Less debt not subject to limit: 

Grosse-Gratiot Drain/Milk River Debt 2,407,892 1,222,095 
2010 DWRF Bonds 2,723,141 4,195,364 5,170,410 4,951,798 
2012 SRF Bonds 667,763 2,485,726 
Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds 2003 4,255,000 3,975,000 3,495,000 3,190,000 

Net debt subject to limit 9,386,033 9,392,459 9,333,173 10,627,524 

Total net debt (2) 762,707 254,436 

Legal debt margin 61,716,373 61,716,373 61,568,623 62,076,894 

Net debt subject to limit as percentage of 
debt limit 0.00% 0.00% 1.24% 0.41% 

(1) The legal debt limit continues to be derived from state equalized value (SEV), not Taxable Value (TV). 
(2) Amount does not include water and sewer and County contractual obligations. 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

As of June 30, 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

$ 	637,951,875 $ 	651,213,015 $ 	659,449,995 $ 	696,024,629 $ 	723,476,987 $ 	746,406,715 
74,231,187 79,357,920 84,284,766 87,006,800 94,964,167 100,465,047 

17,661,221 16,887,229 18,213,064 25,809,784 30,730,661 33,938,724 

- - 8,997,239 12,846,326 17,824,929 
4,696,798 4,436,798 4,166,798 3,911,798 3,905,081 3,611,810 
2,733,788 2,620,513 2,497,065 2,377,065 2,252,065 2,127,065 
2,880,000 2,560,000 2,235,000 1,900,000 1,550,000 1,185,000 

10,310,586 9,617,311 8,898,863 17,186,102 20,553,472 24,748,804 

7,350,635 7,269,918 9,314,201 8,623,682 10,177,189 9,189,920 

66,880,552 72,088,002 74,970,565 78,383,118 84,786,978 91,275,127 

10.99% 10.08% 12.42% 11.00% 12.00% 10.07% 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 

Year Population 

Personal 

Income 

(in 

Per Capita 

Personal Income 

Median 

Age 

Unemployment 

Rate 

School 

Enrollment 

2011 16,135 (1)  (4) $ 	89,068 44.2 6.80% 4,259 
2012 16,135 (2)  (4) 87,518 44.4 6.10% 4,254 
2013 16,135 (2) (4) 87,123 44.5 8.30% 4,187 
2014 16,135 (2) (4) 89,513 44.9 7.80% 4,025 
2015 16,135 (2) (4) 92,014 44.9 5.70% 3,992 
2016 16,135 (2) (4) 93,404 45.0 5.80% 3,900 
2017 16,135 (2) (4) 95,697 45.4 5.80% 3,662 
2018 15,785 (2) (4) 95,697 45.4 5.80% 3,662 
2019 15,412 (2) (4) 95,697 45.4 5.80% 3,662 
2020 15,332 (3)  (4)  97,711 45.8 3.70% 3,613 

(1) US Census Bureau, 2011-2015 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
(2) US Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
(3) US Census Bureau, 2018 American Community Survey Estimates 
(4) Data not available 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Principal Employers 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Employer Enterprise 

2020 

Employees 

Employer's Percentage of 

Total Employment 

1 GP Public School School 384 11.11% 
2 Van Elslander Center Medical 250 7.23% 
3 Kroger Grocery 159 4.60% 
4 Sunrise Assisted Living Medical 130 3.76% 
5 University of Liggett School 128 3.70% 
6 Great Lakes Cancer Mgt Specialist Medical 103 2.98% 
7 Lochmoor Club Country Club 100 2.89% 
8 St. John I.T. & Desktop Support Medical Business 100 2.89% 
9 City of Grosse Pointe Woods Municipal 80 2.31% 

10 Gateway Pediatric Therapy Medical 50 1.45% 

Total People Employed in City 3,456 

Source: City Business License Registry 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Full-time Government Employees (1) 

As of June 30, 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Percent 

of Total 

Department 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 for 2020 

Supervisor/Administrator 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3% 

Assessing 1 1 1 1 - - - 0% 
Clerk's Office 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4% 
Treasurer's Office 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5% 

Municipal Court 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4% 
Information Systems 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1% 
Building 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 5% 

Parks and Recreation 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3% 

Public Safety 44 43 42 39 35 34 34 35 32 36 45% 
Public Works 26 23 22 22 23 23 24 22 25 25 31% 

Total 90 86 84 81 78 77 78 76 76 80 100% 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (5) 

(1) Full-time employees reported only; data is not available for equivalent part-time positions. 
(2) PS includes EMTs since they were on payroll through 6-30-14 
(3) 2015 shows the loss of EMTs. 
(4) Public Works vacancy in the process of being filled June 30, 2018. 
(5) Public Safety vacancies (2) filled post June 30, 2019 

Source: City personnel records 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

As of June 30, 
Function/ Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Public safety (calendar year Jan 1 - Dec 31): 
Annual Calls for Service 11,910 11,225 10,577 10,980 
Police physical arrests 507 357 374 337 
Police traffic violations 3,182 1,986 1,883 1,306 
Fire runs 62 139 242 213 
Fire actual fires 12 15 14 10 
Fire basic ambulance runs 753 715 523 458 
Fire Advance Life Support ambulance runs 403 362 361 560 
Fire inspections 144 78 104 8 
Parking Meter Violations 5,551 5,837 5,333 6,793 

Parks and recreation (estimated): 
Recreation programs - Lake Front Park 362 359 267 261 
Community center programs 53 42 67 57 

Water: 
New connections (calendar year Jan 1 - Dec 31) - 1 16 
Water main breaks 22 31 34 23 
Total consumption (billed to customers - HCF) - FY 791,987 746,113 813,574 724,717 

(1) Information not applicable, as function reports operating indicators on a calendar year 

Source: City Departmental Operational Reports 
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Operating Indicators 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

As of June 30, 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

10,886 10,964 11,902 11,411 9,828 (1) 
359 309 326 177 130 (1) 

1,652 1,541 2,724 2,569 1,461 (1) 
214 199 282 219 243 (1) 

20 25 29 14 11 (1) 
433 541 544 430 582 (1) 
601 536 566 828 888 (1) 

19 14 11 8 17 (1) 
6,938 6,821 7,164 7,263 7,674 (1) 

217 217 217 195 217 (1) 
59 59 59 75 59 (1) 

5 2 9 - 3 (1) 
48 34 23 18 31 (1) 

653,545 653,901 731,328 721,131 666,821 611,777 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Capital Asset Statistics 

As of June 30, 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Public safety: 
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Patrol units 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 
Fire trucks 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Ambulances 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - 

Parks and recreation: 
Acreage 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 
Playgrounds 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Soccer fields 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Baseball/Softball diamonds 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Water: 
Mains (miles) 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 
Fire hydrants 603 603 603 608 608 608 608 608 608 608 

Sewer - Miles of sanitary sewers 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 

Source: Departmental annual reports 

132 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

State-shared Revenue 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

Modified Accrual 

and Accrual 

Basis of 

Accounting 

2011 1,452,878 
2012 1,352,529 
2013 1,363,026 
2014 1,413,776 
2015 1,431,780 
2016 1,394,687 
2017 1,389,170 
2018 1,599,713 
2019 1,670,593 
2020 1,640,435 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Gas and Weight Taxes 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Type of Street Total 

Fiscal year Major Local 

Gas and Weight 

Tax (Act 51) 

Receipts 

2011 610,993 251,206 862,199 
2012 624,586 255,891 880,477 
2013 629,291 257,655 886,946 
2014 648,809 265,806 914,615 
2015 662,419 271,424 933,843 
2016 697,972 433,599 1,131,571 
2017 802,672 364,938 1,167,610 
2018 961,831 394,264 1,356,095 
2019 1,038,109 456,650 1,494,759 
2020 1,111,874 452,402 1,564,276 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Labor Agreements 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Number of 

Employees at 

Bargaining Unit 	Expiration Date 	June 30, 2020  

Police Officers Association of Michigan 	 6/30/2022 	 20 
Represents Public Safety Officers 

Command Officers Association of Michigan 	 6/30/2022 	 9 
Represents Public Safety Sergeants and Lieutenants 

Police Officers Labor Council 	 6/30/2022 	 3 
Represents all Communications Dispatchers 

Technical, Professional, and Office Workers Assn of MI 	 6/30/2022 	 29 
Represents clerical, public works employees, building, 

and ordinance officers 

Nonunion Employees (Full-time) 
City Administrator 	 N/A 	 1 
Confidential Secretary to City Administrator 	 N/A 	 1 
City Assessor 	 N/A 	 0 
Treasurer/Comptroller 	 N/A 	 1 
Deputy Treasurer/Comptroller 	 N/A 	 1 
Water Billing Specialist 	 N/A 	 1 
City Clerk 	 N/A 	 1 
Deputy City Clerk 	 N/A 	 1 
Public Safety Director 	 N/A 	 1 
Court Clerk 	 N/A 	 1 
Deputy Court Clerk 	 N/A 	 1 
Information Technology Manager 	 N/A 	 1 
Building Official 	 N/A 	 1 
Director of Public Works 	 N/A 	 1 
Assistant Director of PW 	 N/A 	 1 
Foreman 	 N/A 	 1 
Recreation Supervisor 	 N/A 	 1 
Confidential Administrative Assistant 	 N/A 	 3 

19 
Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Water and Sewer Customers and Consumption 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Water 

Consumption 

Volume 	Percentage of 

User Type 	 Number of Meters (100 cubic feet) 	Consumption 

Residential 6,562 5,410 88.43% 
Commercial 299 518 8.47% 
Churches, schools, and government 36 190 3.11% 

Total 6,897 6,118 100% 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods  

Historical Net Earnings, Cash Flow, and Debt Service 
Coverage 
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 

Year 

Operating 

Expense 

operating 

Expenses 

Exclusive of 

Depreciation 

Net 

Operating 

Income 

Other 

Nonoperating 

Income (1) 

Annual 

Income 

Available for 

Debt Service 

Annual 

Revenue 

Debt Service 

Requirement 

Annual 

Coverage 

2011 4,837,093 4,164,564 567,943 6,192 574,135 426,741 1.35% 
2012 4,827,454 4,116,499 1,149,405 5,335 1,154,740 593,209 1.95% 
2013 5,168,865 4,447,042 975,545 3,718 979,263 425,279 2.30% 
2014 5,029,027 4,248,572 1,282,253 16,430 1,298,683 397,188 3.27% 
2015 5,640,641 4,898,622 572,439 25,876 598,315 397,850 1.50% 
2016 5,805,365 5,003,502 1,369,213 86,421 1,455,634 396,851 3.67% 
2017 5,631,186 4,826,771 2,158,639 74,058 2,232,697 399,850 5.58% 
2018 5,885,978 5,072,817 2,849,666 156,326 3,005,992 388,250 7.74% 
2019 6,197,856 5,355,540 1,988,744 260,554 2,249,298 409,650 5.49% 
2020 6,224,296 5,344,854 1,768,784 248,323 2,017,107 410,950 4.91% 

(1) Nonoperating income except connection fees net of nonoperating expenses other than interest expense 

Source: CAFR - Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 

137 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Water Usage and Revenue of the Largest Customers  
June 30, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

Customer Usage in Dollars 

Volume of 

Water Used 

(in 100 cubic feet) 

1 Grosse Pointe Board of Education 31,105 8,713 
2 The Rivers Resident Club 27,318 7,652 
3 GP University Liggett School 24,919 6,980 
4 Berkshire Condo Association 22,659 6,347 
5 Lochmoor Club 18,718 5,243 
6 Shorepointe Condos 17,868 5,005 
7 Pointe Plaza Limited 17,204 4,819 
8 Sunrise Development 14,387 4,030 
9 Original Pancake House 7,229 2,025 
10 Kroger 5,544 1,553 
11 Trattoria Corp 4,498 1,260 
12 St. John Hospital 4,291 1,202 
13 City of Grosse Pointe Woods 3,963 1,110 
14 A H Peters Funeral Home 3,734 1,046 
15 Grosse Pointe Public Library 3,549 994 

Source: City of Grosse Pointe Woods Finance 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Metered Water Rates 

Meter Size Residential 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Commercial(1) 

5/8" $ 45.67 $ 45.67 
3/4" 45.67 45.67 
1"  100.47 100.47 
1 1/2" 182.68 182.68 
2"  287.72 287.72 
3,, 657.65 657.65 
4" 977.34 977.34 
6" 1,845.07 1,845.07 
8" 2,877.21 2,877.21 
10" 4,388.89 4,388.89 

Billing Charge 2.08 2.08 

Water Rate per 100 cubic 3.57 3.57 
Sewer Rate per 100 cubic 2.60 2.60 

(1) Commercial rate includes churches, schools, and government 
Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

State Equalized Value and Taxable Value by Class and Use 

State Equalized Value 
By Class 

June 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Real property 
Personal property 

980,305,869 
24,344,600 

$ 	925,220,765 
25,091,000 

$ 	844,160,802 
25,907,200 

$ 	823,997,600 
18,850,060 

$ 	778,885,700 
14,693,500 

Total 	1,004,650,469 $ 950,311,765  $ 870,068,002  $ 8421847,660  793,579/200  

By Use 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Residential 896,921,869 $ 	851,079,365 $ 	771,792,302 $ 	753,496,300 $ 703,530,700 
Commercial 83,265,500 74,024,200 72,250,200 70,383,300 75,239,500 
Industrial 118,500 117,200 118,300 118,000 115,500 
Personal property 24,344,600 25,091,000 25,907,200 18,850,060 14,693,500 

Total 1,004,650,469 $ 950,311,765  870,068,002  842,847,660 	 793,579,200 

Taxable Value 
Class 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Real property 
Personal property 

722,062,115 
24,344,600 

$ 	698,385,987 
25,091,000 

$ 	670,117,429 
25,907,200 

$ 	645,692,448 
13,757,547 

$ 	636,519,515 
14,693,500 

Total 746,406,715 $ 723,476,987 $ 696,024,629 $ 659,449,995 $ 651,213,015 

By Use 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Residential 650,171,495 $ 	629,310,713 $ 	602,093,150 $ 578,864,599 $ 	563,473,469 
Commercial 71,772,973 68,959,820 67,911,530 66,717,419 72,936,601 
Industrial 117,647 115,454 112,749 110,430 109,445 
Personal property 24,344,600 25,091,000 25,907,200 13,757,547 14,693,500 

Total 746,406,715 $ 723,476,987 $ 696,024,629 $ 659,449,995 $ 	651,213,015 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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November 23, 2020 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

We have audited the financial statement of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court (the "Court") 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated November 23, 2020. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards  

As stated in our engagement letter dated July 22, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statement prepared by management with 
your oversight is fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statement does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the financial statement is free of material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Court. Such considerations were solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are 
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our 
letter about planning matters dated July 22, 2020. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with 
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the Court are described in Note 1 
to the financial statement. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the Court during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. 

We noted no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statement in a different 
period than when the transaction occurred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statement prepared by management and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. There were no significant balances, amounts, or disclosures in the financial statement 
based on sensitive management estimates. 

The disclosures in the financial statement are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

1 



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 	 November 23, 2020 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant 
to the financial statement or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 

We did not detect any misstatements as a result of audit procedures. 

Significant Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, business conditions affecting the Court, and business plans and strategies that may affect the 
risks of material misstatement, with management each year prior to our retention as the Court's auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and our 
responses were not a condition of our retention. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 23, 2020. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the Court's financial statement or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion 
that may be expressed on that statement, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to 
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no 
such consultations with other accountants. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

14 

William E. Brickey 
Partner 

1( 
Joshua L. Yde 
Manager 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Report on the Financial Statement 

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court, a 
component unit of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the 
related notes to the financial statement, which collectively comprise the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal 
Court's basic financial statement, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statement 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of a financial statement that is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement 
is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statement in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statement. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the basic financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court as of June 30, 2020 in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

1 



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Other Matter 

Required Supplemental Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statement. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statement, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statement in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statement, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statement. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Avett-- i 2240.1.4,K,/  P L L C 

November 23, 2020 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court's (the "Court") financial 
performance provides an overview of the Court's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 
Please read it in conjunction with the Court's financial statement. 

Using This Financial Report 

This financial report represents the activities of the funds of the Court during the year. The funds of the Court are 
agency funds. Therefore, the activities are limited to collection of amounts that are subsequently returned or paid 
to third parties. The funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of 
results of operations. 

The Court as a Whole 

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Court had $2,795 and $4,200, respectively, of cash to refund outstanding bonds 
and deposits. 

Contacting the Court's Management 

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens and customers with a general overview of the Court's 
activities and to show the Court's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report 
or need additional information, we welcome you to contact the Court directly. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2020 

Bond Account 

Assets - Cash $ 	2,795 

  

Liabilities - Returnable bonds $ 	2,795 

 

See notes to financial statement. 	 4 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Notes to Financial Statement 

June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies 
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods, Municipal Court (the "Court"): 

Reporting Entity 

The City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court is governed by an elected judge. 

The Court is a component unit of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan (the "City") and is included in 
the basic financial statements of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan at June 30, 2020. 

The operations of the Court are included as a separate activity in the General Fund of the City of Grosse 
Pointe Woods, Michigan. 

The funds of the Court are agency funds. The financial activities of the funds are limited to collections of 
amounts that are subsequently returned or paid to third parties. The funds are custodial in nature (assets 
equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations. The Court is responsible for 
traffic and moving violations, certain civil matters, and misdemeanors 

Accounting and Reporting Principles 

The Court follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as 
applicable to governmental units. Accounting and financial reporting pronouncements are promulgated by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Basis of Accounting 

Transactions of the Court are recorded using an agency fund. The agency fund is used to account for 
assets that the Court holds for others in an agency capacity. The agency fund is custodial in nature and 
does not involve the measurement of results of operations. 

Report Presentation 

The accounts of the Court are organized into one fiduciary fund, as described below: 

Fiduciary Fund 

The bond account of the Court is an agency fund. The financial activities of the fund are limited to 
collections of amounts that are subsequently returned or paid to third parties. The fund is custodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve the measurement of results of operations. 

Specific Balances and Transactions 

Cash and Bank Deposits 

Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncement 

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This statement establishes 
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. An activity meeting the criteria 
should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. The Court is currently evaluating 
the impact this standard will have on the financial statement when adopted. The provisions of this 
statement were effective for the Court's financial statement for the year ending June 30, 2020 but were 
extended to June 30, 2021 with the issuance of GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective 
Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. 

5 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Notes to Financial Statement 

June 30, 2020 

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments 

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local 
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions, 
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The law also allows investments outside 
the State of Michigan when fully insured. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other 
direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase 
agreements; bankers' acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest 
classifications that matures no more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State of 
Michigan or its political subdivisions that are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds composed of 
investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. 

The Court has designated one bank for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy adopted by the City 
of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment 
in bonds and securities of the United States government and bank accounts and CDs but not the 
remainder of state statutory authority, as listed above. The Court's deposits and investments are in 
accordance with statutory authority. 

The Court's cash and investments are subject to one type of risk, which is examined in more detail below: 

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Court's deposits may not be returned 
to it. The Court does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the Court had no 
uninsured or uncollateralized deposits. 

Note 3 - Court Operations 

All of the costs related to the operations of the Court are budgeted items of the City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods, Michigan's General Fund, and, accordingly, such costs are paid by the City's General Fund. The 
Court's personnel are considered to be employees of the City, and, as such, they participate in the City's 
pension and health care plans. The wage and fringe benefit costs for the Court's personnel are budgeted 
line items of the City. 

Note 4 - Risk Management 

The Court is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, and 
employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The Court, 
through the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan, has purchased commercial general liability insurance 
for claims relating to property loss claims, torts, and errors and omissions. The City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods, Michigan is self-insured for medical claims with other communities. Under the workers' 
compensation program and medical program, the City is held liable for the first $400,000 and $25,000, 
respectively, of any occurrence. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded 
the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
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Citizen's Recreation Commission Meeting Minut 
Virtual meeting of the Citizen's Recreation Commission was held on N 
10, 2020 at Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan. 

CALLED TO ORDER: 7:02 

PRESENT: 	 ABSENT: 
Angela Brown 	 Sarah Seger 
Lindsey Fratarolli 
Gib Heim 
Barb Janutol 
Tom Jerger 
Mark Miller 
Tony Rennpage 
Amanda York 

ALSO, PRESENT: 
Art Bryant and Nicole Gerhart 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 

Motion was made for acceptance of the agenda for November 10, 2020 by Gib Heim, 
and seconded by Angela Brown. 

Approval of motion: 

Yes: 	Brown, Fratarolli, Heim, Janutol, Jerger, Miller, Rennpage and 
York. 

No: 	None 

Absent: 	Seger 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

Motion to accept the minutes from October 13, 2020 was made by Mark Miller and 
seconded by Gib Heim. 

Approval of motion: 

Yes: 	Brown, Fratarolli, Heim, Janutol, Jerger, Miller, Rennpage, and 
York. 

No: 	None 

Absent: 	Seger 

COUNCIL MEETING REPORT: 

• Councilman Bryant reported that the car bridge over the Milk River is being 
rebuilt over the winter. It should be finished by the time the park gets busy 
in late spring. Part users may enter at the Milk River gate to access facilities 
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on the Activities Building side of the park. As of now, the walking bridge will 
remain open, during the winter, due to repairs needed for operational use. 

• Walkers will not be able to cross the river to complete the entire path. 

SUPERVISOR'S REPORT: 

• All city buildings are closed to the public until further notice, due to the 
increase of Covid cases in the area. City employees will return to working 
remotely. Payments for city services, tickets, payments, boat well deposits, 
etc. can be mailed, payed on line, or placed in the drop box in front of City 
Hall. They will be processed as usual. 

• 	The Scarecrow Contest had 10 entries. They are currently being judged. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

• Planning for the kayak storage and ramp is still in progress. 

• Events in the planning stage for virtual winter activity: 

o Holiday Lights 

■ Lindsey Fratarolli, Amanda York and Barb Janutol will meet 
this week to plan this event. 

o Snowman building contest. 

■ January/February event 

o Scavenger Hunt 

NEW BUSINESS: 

No new business. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion was made to adjourn the meeting by Tom Jerger and seconded by Mark 
Miller. 

Approval of Motion: 

Yes: 	Brown, Fratarolli, Heim, Janutol, Jerger, Miller, Rennpage, and 
York. 

No: 	None 

Absent: 	Seger 

Meeting Adjourned at 7:40 pm. 

Respectfully submitted by: Barb Janutol, Secretary of the Grosse Pointe Woods 
Citizen's Recreation Commission. 
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RECEIVED 

NOV 0 9 2020 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
CLERK'S DEPARTMENT 

/,2A,7_4,0 

5D 
Minutes of the Grosse Pointe Woods Tree Commission Meeting November 4, 2020. 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Lechner at 7:47 p.m. 

The following members were present: 

Tim Butler 

Maria Galbo 

Laura Gaskin 

George Hathaway 

Paul Lechner 

Mary Ellen Meyering 

The following members were excused: 

The following members were absent: 

Robert Greening 

Peter Groschner 

Jeff Profeta 

Randy Rennpage 

The following were also in attendance: 

George McMullen, Council Representative 

Gretchen Miotto, Moderator 

Motion by Hathaway, seconded by Galbo to approve the agenda for the meeting November 4, 

2020 passed by the following vote: 

Yes: 6 	No: 0 Excused:0 

Motion by Meyering, seconded by Butler to approve the minutes for the meeting October 7, 

2020 passed by the following vote: 

Yes: 6 	No: 0 Excused:0 

Treasurer's Report: 

The budget is $1200 for the fiscal year beginning July 2020. We have recorded no expenses for 

the year so far. Our cash reserve balance is $4069.18. 



Old Business: 

The nursery is still holding our credit for the seedlings for next year. Arbor Day is April 23, 2021. 

We will confirm the number of third graders closer to the events. 

New Business: 

Paul Lechner reported that the Memorial Tree Ceremony is tentatively scheduled for April 7, 

2021. He will confirm the room reservation and check with Jeff Profeta as to his interest in 

continuing as chair of the event. 

There was discussion on filling the vacancy left by Steve Chan's departure. Gretchen Miotto 

agreed to look at the files in the city offices and forward information about candidates to 

Lechner. Butler pointed out that he saw two applications in the Commission mailbox. Lechner 

will check on these. 

Council representative George McMullen provided an update of current city business. 

Motion to adjourn at 8:07 p.m. moved by Gaskin, and seconded by Galbo, was unanimous. 

Submitted by: Mary Ellen Meyering 	Office Held: Secretary 	Cell: 313 505 2352 
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Joseph Jarackas 

1971 Oxford 

Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

OCT 2 9 2020 

CITY OF GROSSE PTE. ‘Af0015j 
BUILDING DEPT 

I am requesting Variance of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods zoning ordinance for the installed fence 

located at 1971 Oxford. 

I would like to request this variance that the City of Grosse Pointe Woods approves my fence. As you are 

aware, on 6-11-2020 we endured a storm in which caused damage throughout the City including my 

house. Tree limbs fell in my backyard which caused damage to my Fence, Roof, Windows and Gutters. 

This has financially caused me hardship to repair all of these items. The application that I submitted had 

the neighbor's approval for this fence. By all means, this fence does not harm public safety or any 

neighbor's safety. 

As a Healthcare employee, I do not have the time to meet contractors on a daily basis. With Covid 19, 

funds are at an all-time low. To take down this fence would add an added cost that I do not have at this 

time. 

I would like to also ask the City of Grosse Pointe Woods to do their due diligence and assess all fences in 

the city, especially if I am forced to remove mine. 6 foot fences are all over the city. 

Neighbors: I approve of the fence that was installed at 1971 Oxford. 

Name and Address: 

1. 	

1.1"‘' Ck-41-‘ 	l ci b /6erit-z0f2 	
c-f tz-3 

27.9i"Th/L-7,- 
 

<et/ id ‘PtJ Vk 2 6 

Special circumstances. Applications meeting the requirements of this article and subsections (a)(1), (2) or 
(3) above do not require a public hearing, and shall be approved by the building inspector if the application 
otherwise meets the requirements of this chapter. All other exceptions from the provisions of this article 
require a public hearing and approval from the city council. The council may consider any or all of the 
following, along with other information: 

a. Balancing the relative hardships between the property owner and adjacent property owners; 

b. Whether special circumstances or conditions exist; 

c. Whether pedestrian or vehicular vision will be affected; 

d. The general health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood 



Address: 

Fleight of Fence: ri 

r Signature Address 

Neighbor Signat e 

Neigh,bpr Signature 

Address 

77 °c' 
Address 

Office Use Only 

Approved Denied 

Buildin$2, Inspector's Si natur 
10-18-1S 

FENCE PElogr FEE (includes 1 open post holes inspcetion) - $50 
REINSITCTION PEE - $50 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
Building Department 

20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

313.343.2426 / buildi ng@gpwini . us 

RECEIVED ?al- 

OC-1,24 2020 
CITY OF GROS.1'. Fi'L. WOODS 

BUILDING DEPT 

Application For Fence (Zoning Compliance Permit) 
In Compliance With Article IX — Fences (Recent Ord Chg, #879 eff 10/25/18) 

PROVIDE: 1) Mortgage survey/site plan with highlighted area where fence is to be placed; 
and, 2) Brochure/picture of proposed fence to be installed. 

Fence Placement Address: 	t 'q 	  

Owner's Name: Jzp4 4-Age4 .41-;  Owner's Address: /V) 

Phone: bck-- 67-253/  
frnf 	 e-mail: 41,4 	/CA/ca. ov'Tec.r  

	 Length of Fence:  —)7e,3 	6‘1:37-  14.4."--/ob  

Style of of Fence: 

Material of of Fence: 

Location of Fence 

Owner's Phone #:    Owner's e-mail: 

Contractor: 
	

aipf,f/  

'1"--  :/1";/14;272;..r;77P)  

K.  Wood Vinyl 

*74  Nifel•//-D 	& 17  

Owner/i ,ent,S gnattire 

1Date 
,.„ 

Date 

Date 

'7- 

Date 

Hy affixing my signature hereto, I certify that I am the owner or acting as the owner's agent, and I understand the 
regulations pertaining to the erection of a fence as described in Ordinance Sections #8-274 thru 8-284. The City of 
Grosse Pointe Woods does not guarantee the accuracy of the property lines as described herein, the accurate location 
of all property lines is the responsibility of the owner or owner agent. 

B-2-1 1(0 



46705 Erb Drive, Macomb, MI 48042 
P. (586) 468-2531 	F. (586) 468-2766 

sales(cpmichiganfenceoutlet.corn  

www.michiganfenceoutlet.corn  

MICHIGAN 
FENCE 

Customer Information 

Materials 

Aluminium 

'-', 
, 

Linear Footage 100 Height of Fence6 i Tear Out / Removal N errist Y 9 
Railing Style 4- fenc_e, A 	r,,(.... for  Color of Fence 

frsi t 	(*(df/4r 
Survey Y 0 

PVC 3/,./h/ 
P)ekeb 

Tte Ins Y 0 ,...0 
Corner Lot Y 

0 Wood x Core Digs Hard Digs 	1 	7 Waiver (9 N 'in t Removal Y 

Chainlink Gate 1 (H x W) Gate 2 Pool Hardware Y IC 

DI Steel 

'.r Hole 

Gate 3 

Hard big I Terms Available htt s//nn 

Gate 4 10A Approval y 

41 . 	--. 	' 	, irr H I D S 

7 " 

• 

Payment $ AI 3  7  

1610 

Date: Buyer Signature: 

Seller Sirmrah tre• 





Fence RequirementsEnforcement I E201087 
Property Information 

007 03 0710 000 
	

1971 OXFORD RD 	 Subdivision: 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI, 48236 	Lot: 
	

Block: 

Name Information 

Owner: 
	

JARACKAS, JOSEPH-ANGELA 
	

Phone: 

Occupant: 
	

Phone: 

Filer: 
	

Phone: 

Enforcement Information 

Date Filed: 	10/13/2020 	 Date Closed: 	 Status: Letter sent 

Complaint: 

Letter sent for solid fence installed along west property line. 

Last Action Date: 	 Last Inspection: 

Last Action: 

Compliance Inspection I Gene Tutag 

Status: 	Scheduled 	 Result: 

Scheduled: 	10/27/2020 	 Completed: 



ri I 	r, 
DEC 15 2020 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODRy oFG  
BUILDING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDIFMRK9ssit"cmviE 

PARTmeN/1-°°08 
DATE: 	December 2, 2020 

TO: 	Mayor and City Council 

FROM: 	Gene Tutag, Building Official 

SUBJECT: 	1971 Oxford, Fence Variance 

The applicant, Joseph Jarackas, owner of 1971 Oxford, is requesting two variances of the City's fence 
ordinance. First, a variance to Section 8-279 (1) which requires fences to be constructed in a manner that 
a minimum of two-inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of the fence. Second, a 
variance to Section 8-279 (3) which requires the supporting framework of the fence to face the property 
of the fence owner. 

The fence was constructed without a permit and when cited, the fence application was denied because the 
fence did not comply with Section 8-279 (1). After further review it was determined that the fence was 
also not in compliance with Section 8-279 (3). The applicant is requesting two variances so the fence can 
remain installed with the framework facing the neighbor's property (Section 8-279 3) and so the fence can 
remain solid instead of being replaced with a compliant style, which was required per the city code when 
the application was applied for in October 2020. The language of the fence ordinance was amended 
November 9, 2020 but these amendments would not affect the variance request or outcome. 

As stated on the fence application, the fence is 6 ft. in height and approximately 100 ft. in length, located 
along the rear and west yard. Neighbors located at 1960 Kenmore, 1974 Kenmore, and 1977 Oxford have 
given their approval of the fence at 1971 Oxford on the application and letter of appeal. The applicant 
states in their letter of appeal that the fence was installed after a June 2020 storm caused damage to their 

fence and other parts of the property, stating that as a healthcare worker they did not have a chance to 
meet with contractors. The applicant's property is located west of Mack Avenue. 

This exception to the fence code requires a public hearing and approval from the City Council. The City 
Council may consider any or all of the following, along with other information when deciding a variance: 

(a) Balancing the relative hardships between the property owner and adjacent property owners. 
(b) Whether special circumstances or conditions exist. 
(c) Whether pedestrian or vehicle traffic will be affected. 
(d) The general health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood. 

It is recommended that a variance of Section 8-279 (1) or Section 8-279 (3) not be granted for the following 
reasons: 

1. The situation is self-created as no permit or approvals were obtained prior to installation. 
2. No unique conditions relative to the property exist to justify the grant of the variance. 

1 



ATTACHMENTS: 

Inspection photos (3) 

Application w/ site plan, location info, and photo of fence from Applicant (denied 10-23-20) 
Enforcement (#E201087) 
Letter of Appeal from Applicant (10-29-20) 
DPW Memo 

GPW Ordinance #8-279 

APPROVED  B -7-3)---. 	MV--------- ---.„  	DATE:  \ 	\‘- .2-0-2—C2) 

Bruce Smith 
City Administrator 
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PHOTOS OF THE 1971 OXFORD FENCE FROM THE VIEW OF 1977 OXFORD DRIVEWAY 

1 



(N
 



oec 

2o 

ofk:/IVt. IA Arit,1641.  

MEMO 20-68 

TO: 	Lisa Hathaway, City Clerk 

FROM: 	Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 

DATE: 	December 2, 2020 

SUBJECT: 	Variance — Fence at 1971 Oxford, GPW, MI 48236 

I have reviewed the application from resident Joseph Jarackas requesting a fence 
variance at 1971 Oxford. The fence variance will have no impact on the Department of 
Public Works or utilities. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

cc 	Gene Tutag 
0/F 



AFFIDAVIT OF PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED 
Re: 1971 Oxford Rd. 

Joseph Jarackas 

State of Michigan ) 
) ss. 

County of Wayne ) 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the notice of Hearing was duly mailed First Class Mail on 12/11/20 to the 
following property owners within a 3 foot radius of the above property in accordance with the 
provisions of the 2017 City Code of Grosse Pointe Woods. A Hearing fee of $75.00 has been received 
with receipt # 407129. 

Lisa Kay Hathaway, MiPMC-3/MMC 
City Clerk 

See attached document for complete list. 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that in accordance with Chapter 8, Buildings and Building 
Regulations, Article IX, Fences of the 2017 City Code of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Sections 
8-284(a)(2) Exceptions and 8-284(b) Public Hearing, the City Council will hold a remote public 
hearing by Zoom on Monday, December 21, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. to hear the request of Joseph 
Jarackas, 1971 Oxford Rd., Grosse Pointe Woods, MI. A solid privacy fence has been installed 
without having obtained a permit at their property located at 1971 Oxford Rd. They are requesting 
to keep the already installed 6' solid wood privacy fence along the rear yard and west lot lines with 
the framework facing the neighbor's property. The fence application will require two (2) variances 
in accordance with Section 8-279(1) All fences shall be constructed of open lattice work of metal, 
wood, vinyl or of woven wire in such a manner so that there shall be a minimum of two-inch 
openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of the fence, and Section 8-279(3) The 
supporting framework of any fence shall not face adjacent properties or streets. The fence 
application materials are open for public scrutiny. All interested parties are invited to attend. 

Lisa Kay Hathaway, MiPMC-3/MMC 
City Clerk 



1971 Oxford Rd. - 3' Radius 

ownersname ownersna 1 ownersname2 ownerstree ownerci ownerstate ownerzipco prope 	st 
GORDON RICHARD 0 RICHARD GORDON 1974 KENMORE DR GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI 48236 1974 KENMORE DR 
SMITH TERA & QUINN TERA & QUINN SMITH 1960 KENMORE DR GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI 48236 1960 KENMORE DR 
NAVETTA STEPHEN M YIN HONG STEPHEN NAVETTA AND HONG YIN 1977 OXFORD RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI 48236 1977 OXFORD RD 
JARACKAS, JOSEPH-ANGELA JOESPH AND ANGELA JARACKAS 1971 OXFORD RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI 48236 1971 OXFORD RD 
SPANGNUOLO, ANDREW ANDREW SPANGNUOLO 1961 OXFORD RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI 48236 1961 OXFORD RD 
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Date: 
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COPYRIGHT 1999 - 2011, 
THE CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI" 
COPYRIGHT 1999 - 2011, 
WAYNE COUNTY, M1 
COPYRIGHT 1999 - 2011, 
ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN AND WESTRICK INC.- 
-ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Division 

Subject: 1971 Oxford Rd. 

11!30.,20 



Date: 12/10/2020 

2009 2040 

1952 
2049 

1953 

1976 

1 
1960 

1931 

2033 	 1930 

2017 

2030 

2020 

2037 

2013 

2005 

1931 

1923 

Sources Esn, HERE. Garmin. Intermap, increment P Corp, GEBCO. USGS, FAO. NPS, NRCAN, 
GeoBase. IGN. Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey. Esrl Japan. METI, Eon China (Hong Kong), (c) 
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community 

L 

1922 



Mr. Gene Tutag 

Building Inspector 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

RE: 1201 and 1221 Fairholme Fence-#258610 

November 18:27C21:
°1 201/20 OP 

GPOSSE 

POiArt- WOODS 
CLE'Ric'• S 

Dear Gene, 

As an amendment to my previous letter, dated July 5th, 2020, and per your request, 
I am filing a second letter to request a public hearing. The hearing will attempt to 
resolve the matter of non-conforming fencing installed first at 1201 Fairholme and 
subsequently following at 1221 Fairholme. 

Section 8-729 in the city code states, " All fences shall be constructed of open lattice 
work of metal, wood, vinyl or of woven wire in such a manner so that there shall be 
a minimum of two-inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of 
the fence." 

We are requesting a variance, that the city would allow spacing of one-inch 
openings throughout the length of the fence as installed. We feel this is the least 
intrusive option available to all parties. 

When reviewing, please consider that replacing the existing structure would cause 
significant financial hardship to both owners. Also, that the existing construction 
was done in good taste, as exemplified by the willing cooperation of all neighboring 
families. 

It should also be noted, that both the owner and builder have been working in 
good faith to resolve this matter promptly since the issue was initially raised. We 
look forward to finally resolving this issue in its' entirety. 

Jay ilo 

Sincerely, 

0 1k 

1201Fairholme Rd. 

Grosse Pointe Woods MI 

248.808.7748 



7.9" 	chece- 	C rrd 

July 5, 2020 

Mr. Gene Tutag 
Building Inspector 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

RE: 1201 and 1221 Fairholme Fence 

Dear Gene, 

As discussed in person, we would like to file for a public hearing to attempt to 
resolve this matter. 

Section 8-279 states, "All fences shall be constructed of open lattice work of metal, 
wood, vinyl or of woven wire in such a manner so that there shall be a minimum of 
two-inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of the fence." 

We are requesting a variance, that the city would allow spacing of one-inch openings 
throughout the length of the fence. 

We feel this is the least intrusive option available to all parties. 

When reviewing, please consider that replacing the existing structure, would cause 
significant financial hardship to both owners. Also, that the existing construction 
was done in good taste, as exemplified by the willing cooperation of all neighboring 
families. 

Again, the fence needed to be constructed because time was of the essence due to 
the massive renovations go g on at 1221 Fairholme. Both the nature of the work- a 
major reconstruction of the undation, and the protection of our young girls from 
having to stand face to face with grown men they do not know, required we act 
quickly. 

After the fence at 1201 was constructed, I was approached by the owners of 1221 
and asked to do a second span so that all fencing would be uniform. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Jay and Safi Pi 
; 

1201 Fkirholnie; 
Grosse Pointe Woods MI 
248.808.7748 



May 19, 2020 

Mr. Gene Tutag 

Building Inspector 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

RE: 1201 Fairholme Fence 

Dear Gene, 

REC
EIVED 

MAY 26 2020 
CITY OF GRO 1"T WOODS 

BUILD 	
EPT

E.  

I received the letter regarding our fence. As I licensed builder I fully understand a 
permit was required for construction. I have the utmost respect for your team and 
the building department, however due to the pandemic and our family's imminent 
security, this fence needed to be built immediately. The city offices were closed, and 
inspections were not taking place at this time. 

The fence needed to be constructed because of the activity going on next door. As 
I'm sure you are aware, 1221 is undergoing massive renovations. I'm not accusing 
anyone of wrongdoing, but many of the workers were looking over at my wife and 
two young daughters regularly, and making them extremely uncomfortable. My 
wife could not sleep, and the girls no longer wanted to play outside. She insisted the 
fence be built immediately, and I agreed. Young children should not be made to 
stand face to face with grown men they do not know. 

At this point, a plan was made and the neighbors were consulted. They all welcomed 
the idea and offered to help in any way they could. I can assure you the fence was 
built properly, and to code. Enclosed is a copy of the permit and application and 
fees. You are welcome any day to come inspect the fence. If you should find any 
issues with the construction, they will be remedied immediately. 

Sincerely, 

Jay and Sara Pilotto 

1201 Fairholme, 

Grosse Pointe Woods MI 



CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
20025 Mack Plaza Drive 

Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 

July 2, 2020 

PILOTTO JASON J & SARAH M 
1201 Fairholme Rd 
Grosse Pointe Woods MI 48236 

SUBJECT: FENCE INSTALLED WITHOUT PERMIT 
Code Enforcement #E200454 

Dear PILOTTO JASON J & SARAH M: 

This letter is regarding our previous letter to you dated May 8, 2020 (copy attached) and also 
regarding a voice message from the Building Department left on your phone yesterday afternoon. 

Your permit application was denied on May 29, 2020 for not meeting Fence Ordinance code, as 
per discussion with the Building Department. The illegal fence must be removed by July 7, 
2020 or a citation will be issued. 

If you plan to appeal, a variance request is required from you (per Fence Ordinance - copy 
attached) by July 7, 2020. The appeal fee is $75 and must be submitted with your letter 
addressed to the GPW City Council requesting a variance per Sections 8-276 & 8-279(1). 

, - 
Gene Tutag 
Building Inspector 

Encl: 
GPW Ltr 5/8/20 w/Ord Sec 8-274 



May 8, 2020 

PILOTTO JASON J & SARAH M 
1201 Fairholme Rd 
Grosse Pointe Woods MI 48236 

Dear PILOTTO JASON J & SARAH M: 

SUBJECT: FENCE INSTALLED WITHOUT PERMIT 

It has come to the attention of the Building Department that a fence was installed improperly 
without permit and inspection at your property 1201 Fairholme. Enclosed is a copy of the 
Grosse Pointe Woods City Fence Ordinance. 

The fence must be removed. If you have any questions, please contact me. Compliance is 
required by May 22, 2020 or a ticket will be issued. 

Gene Tutag 
Building Inspector 

End:: 
GPW Ord. Sec 8-274 
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Waiv = Violation for Which Fines/Costs Maybe Waived Authorization pend. =Authorization pending  

6 Otif-daplii.,4- Fakiyoc,-6- 

~E ern — 
virrlfed  

a) 
D--ab 
joo=ils 

CHECK CHECK IF APPROPRIATED Damage to Property 
0 Vehicle Impounded 0 Injury 
0 Traffic Crash 	0 Death 
Person in Active Military Service0 Yes 0 No  

0 Local Court Bond$ 	  
0 License Posted in Use of Bond 
0 Appearanca Certificate 
0 None 

03
.XF:___XPL.A41Ar AND INSTRUCTIONS 

coo 

0 -A rq ❑ Contact Court 
Formal Hearing Required (Court will Notify)  

Court of GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
Court Address & Phone Number 

20025 MACK PLAZA DRIVE 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI49236 

PHONE: (313) 343-2455 
❑ I served a copy of the civil infraction complaint upon the defendant (or owner/occupant by posting it applicable). 
I dealerQunderthe penalties of lerjury that the statements above are true to the best 
of 	ormatl 1, knowled 	ballet. 

UC-01 a (rev. 6/05) COURT COPY 

Press Hard - You are making five copies 
This form is available from Target Information Management, Inc. (517)337-1211 

SEE DATE BELOW. SEE BACK OF CITATI 
Appearance Date on or before 	

ar Hearing Date (If applicable) on _j 
pluvenile Traffic Misd. (Court will Notify) 0 

In the MUNICIPAL 

a 
a B 



Owner/ ent 

Address 	 Date 

\ 1--;AliZ441.4044,  
Date 

-S1P24  
Da e
/ rt. \ c-44-(F-40t-v•^< 

No ?-41 /44..el- 
Neighbor ignature 

ei 	o S nature 

re 

Address 	 Date 

10( Cii-021-1°Govi( 	'%9  

eighbo S.  ature 	 Address 

Metal 

Wt1.1.7<- 	vvt.rka- 
Material of Fence: 	X  Wood 

Location of Fence 

	Vinyl 

Art,r— 444-7-1 

FENCE PERMIT FEE (includes I open post hole/s inspection) - $50 
REINSPECTION FEE - $50 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
Building Department 
20025 Mack Plaza 

Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 
313.343.2426 / building@gpwmi.us  

Application For Fence (Zoning Compliance Permit) 
In Compliance With Article IX — Fences (Recent Ord Chg #879 eff 10/25/18) 

PROVIDE: 1) Mortgage survey/site plan with highlighted' rea where fence is to be placed; 
and, 2) Brochure/picture of proposed fence to be i stalled. 

Fence Placement Address: 	12.-• 	 lz-i> •  

Contractor: 

Address: 	  e-mail: 

Height of Fence: 	(4  cc 	Length of Fence: Avizo.( zei  
Style of Fence: 	c404:4? 	?ccffrAii" Piz-IN-4(4 'Piet-n-1/4' 

By affixing my signature hereto, I certify that I am the owner or acting as the owner's agent, and I understand the 
regulations pertaining to the erection of a fence as described in Ordinance Sections #8-274 thru 8-284. The City of 
Grosse Pointe Woods does not guarantee the accuracy of the property lines as described herein, the accurate location 
of all property lines is the responsibility of the owner or owner agent. 

Owner's Name:  J.)1144%1.44.  Pt %Air% 
Owner's Phone 4:  /...kfi .1,4100 .1146 	Owner's e-mail: 

Owner's Address: 	5 AlAkc  

-AA-t?L‘411*** 	tatty. A-t 	(..,v1.0.1, 

Phone: 

Office Use Only 

Denied 

10-18-18 
uilding Inspector's Signature 	 Date 	 

( 

e3-2))vi.- 



5/21/2020 
	

20200404_175254.jpg 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/FMfcgxwHNVzMLVTnVbNtzCXTbGLspqSC?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1 	 1/2 



Rear yard, 1201 Fairholme Rd. 

GP Woods Ml. 48236 



View of adjoining properties, amidst construction and prolonged vacancy. 



pe44. 24•1  Avoil 	1,0* 



BP - FenceEnforcement I E200453 
Property Information 

013 01 0173 000 
	

1201 FAIRHOLME RD 	 Subdivision: 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI, 48236 	Lot: 
	

Block: 

Name Information 

Owner: 
	

PILOTTO JASON J & SARAH M 
	

Phone: 	(248) 808 7748 

Occupant: 
	

Phone: 

Filer: 
	

Phone: 

Enforcement Information 

Date Filed: 	05/08/2020 	 Date Closed: 	 Status: Letter sent 

Complaint: 
GT found fence installed without permit. 10 day compliance 
Letter sent - compliance due 5-22-20 

Last Action Date: 	 Last Inspection: 

Last Action: 

Compliance Inspection l Gene Tutag 

Status: 	Scheduled 	 Result: 

Scheduled: 	05/26/2020 	 Completed: 



BP - FenceEnforcement I E200621 
Property Information 

013 01 0173 000 
	

1201 FAIRHOLME RD 	 Subdivision: 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS MI, 48236 	Lot: 
	

Block: 

Name Information 

Owner: 
	

PILOTTO JASON 3 & SARAH M 
	

Phone: 	(248) 808 7748 

Occupant: 
	

Phone: 

Filer: 
	

Phone: 

Enforcement Information 

Date Filed: 	07/10/2020 	 Date Closed: 	 Status: Citation Issued 

Complaint: 

Fence not corrected. Citation #258611 issued with 8-5-20 Court date. 

Last Action Date: 	 Last Inspection: 

Last Action: 

Court Ticket Issued Inspection I David Podeszwik 

Status: 	Scheduled 	 Result: 

Scheduled: 	08/05/2020 	 Completed: 

Comments: 

Scheduling Comment 	258611 
DP to cover for GT 



ivE CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 	 D  
BUILDING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUvMor  DEC 15 2020 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

December 11, 2020 

Mayor and City Council 

Gene Tutag, Building Official 

1201 Fairholme, Fence Variance 

, riv,•fiNT  

The applicant is requesting a variance of Section 8-279(1) of the City's fence ordinance so an existing 
fence installed in May 2020 without a permit or approval can remain in place. The applicant is requesting 
this variance so the fence can remain a solid fence instead of a semi-open fence with a minimum of two-
inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of the fence as required by city code. 

The applicant, once cited by Code Enforcement for installing without a permit or approval, provided a 
permit application and letter to the Building Department in effort to comply with the citation. The building 
permit submitted was denied due to Section 8-279(1) of the city's fence ordinance and therefore a variance 
was requested by the applicant. 

The applicant is claiming the fence is spaced by one-inch openings, however after inspection it was 
determined these openings are closer to a half-inch or less in measurement as shown by the inspection 
photos provided. 

The fence in which this variance is requested is located on the east, south and west lot lines of the property. 
A citation has been issued and has been adjourned pending the outcome of the variance request. 

This exception to the fence code requires a public hearing and approval from the City Council. The City 
Council may consider any or all of the following, along with other information when deciding a 
variance: 

(a) Balancing the relative hardships between the property owner and adjacent property owners. 
(b) Whether special circumstances or conditions exist. 
(c) Whether pedestrian or vehicle traffic will be affected. 
(d) The general health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood. 

It is recommended that a variance of Section 8-279 (1) not be granted as follows: 

1. The situation is self-created as no permit or approvals were obtained prior to installation. 
2. No unique conditions relative to the property exist to justify the grant of the variance. 

1 



DATE:  1 	1 Lk 3.t) --.. APPROVED BY: 

Bruce Smith Smith 
City Administrator 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Inspection Photos taken by Building Official (6 photos) 

Application w/ site plan & photo submitted by Applicant (denied 5-29-20) 
Citation Letter to Applicant (05-08-2020) 
Enforcement (#E200453) 

Letter from Applicant in response to Citation (05-19-2020) 
Enforcement Letter to Applicant (07-02-2020, #E200454) 
Enforcement (#E200621) 

Letter from Applicant with photos of fence (07-05-2020) 
Ticket #258611 

Letter of Appeal from Applicant (11-18-2020) 
GPW Ordinance #8-279 

2 
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Cii-;, 	De 
Op ,. C  1  6 ' MEMO 20-71 
cZe460,, , 	<Oleo 

TO: 	Lisa Hathaway, City Clerk 	 ir's6sk'po  

FROM:
------ 
.---- c 
	

"Tr/1/6-4,1poos, Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 	- 

DATE: 	December 16, 2020 

SUBJECT: 	Variance— Fence at 1201 Fairholme, GPW, MI 48236 

I have reviewed the application from resident Jay Palutto requesting a fence variance at 
1201 Fairholme. The fence variance will have no impact on the Department of Public 
Works or utilities. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

cc 	Gene Tutag 
0/F 



AFFIDAVIT OF PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED 
Re: 1201 Fairholme Rd. 

Jay and Sara Pilotto 

State of Michigan ) 
) ss. 

County of Wayne ) 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the notice of Hearing was duly mailed First Class Mail on 12/11/20 to the 
following property owners within a 3 foot radius of the above property in accordance with the 
provisions of the 2017 City Code of Grosse Pointe Woods. A Hearing fee of $75.00 has been received 
with receipt # 408945. 

Lisa Kay Hathaway, MiPMC-3/MMC 
City Clerk 

See attached document for complete list. 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that in accordance with Chapter 8, Buildings and Building 
Regulations, Article IX, Fences of the 2017 City Code of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Sections 
8-284(a)(2) Exceptions and 8-284(b) Public Hearing, the City Council will hold a remote public 
hearing by Zoom on Monday, December 21, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. to hear the request of Jay and Sara 
Pilotto, 1201 Fairholme Rd., Grosse Pointe Woods, MI. A solid privacy fence has been installed 
without having obtained a permit at their property located at 1201 Fairholme Rd. They are 
requesting to keep the already installed 6' solid wood privacy fence along the East, West, and 
South lot lines. The fence application will require a variance in accordance with Sections 8-279(1) 
All fences shall be constructed of open lattice work of metal, wood, vinyl or of woven wire in such a 
manner so that there shall be a minimum of two-inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length 
or height of the fence. The fence application materials are open for public scrutiny. All interested 
parties are invited to attend. 

Lisa Kay Hathaway, MiPMC-3/MMC 
City Clerk 



1201 Fairholme Rd. - 3' Radius 

Parcel Number Owner Name 1 Owner Name 2 Street Address City - State - Zip Code 
013 01 0173 000 PILOTTO JASON J & SARAH M JASON & SARAH PILOTTO 1201 FAIRHOLME RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 
013 01 0187 000 MAYNARD, JENNA - MATTHEWS, ZACHARY ZACHARY & JENNA-MATTHEWS MAYNARD 1200 PAGET CT GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 
013 01 0172 000 WBHD LLC WBHD LLC 766 LAKELAND ST GROSSE POINTE, MI 48230 
013 01 0172 000 OCCUPANT OCCUPANT 1221 FAIRHOLME RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 
013 01 0174 000 WINBIGLER DANE R & STEPHANIE N DANE & STEPHANIE WINBIGLER 1191 FAIRHOLME RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 
013 01 0188 000 SALADA RAYMOND T RAYMOND SALADA 1220 PAGET CT GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 

1 



4 

1231 

1261 1200 

1191 
1190 

1171 

1151 

1230 

1277 

1210 

20070 

1180 

1251 

11 

1241 

1221 

1201 

1250 

1181 

1240 

1220 

1190 

1171 

1170 

1161 

1171 
1180 

1161 
1170 

1200 

Sources Esn, HERE, Garin,Internlap—incre77—It en P Corp, GEBCO, USGS, FAO. NPS, NRCAN 
GeoEA

rn  
se, IGN. Kad.ter-Nt7—Ordnance Survey. Esji.qapan, METI, Eon Chino (Hong Kong). (c) 

OpenStreetttraP cc(ntributors, and the GIS User ymnihnity 

AZ\ 

	
Date: 12/10/2020 
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Date: 12/10/2020 



Mr. Gene Tutag 

Building Inspector 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

RE: 1201 and 1221 Fairholme Fence-#258610 
CITY OF •t 

Dear Gene, 

As an amendment to my previous letter, dated July 5th, 2020, and per your request, 
I am filing a second letter to request a public hearing, The hearing will attempt to 
resolve the matter of non-conforming fencing installed first at 1201 Fairholme and 
subsequently following at 1221 Fairholme. 

Section 8-729 in the city code states, "All fences shall be constructed of open lattice 
work of metal, wood, vinyl or of woven wire in such a manner so that there shall be 
a minimum of two-inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of 
the fence." 

We are requesting a variance, that the city would allow spacing of one-inch 
openings throughout the length of the fence as installed. We feel this is the least 
intrusive option available to all parties. 

When reviewing, please consider that replacing the existing structure would cause 
significant financial hardship to both owners. Also, that the existing construction 
was done in good taste, as exemplified by the willing cooperation of all neighboring 
families. 

It should also be noted, that both the owner and builder have been working in 
good faith to resolve this matter promptly since the issue was initially raised. We 
look forward to finally resolving this issue in its' entirety. 

Sincerely, 

Jay

'

o 

1201 Fairholme Rd. 

Grosse Pointe Woods MI 

248.808.7748 



Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Jay and SA Pil 

• ." 	L 1201 Falrholnie, 
Grosse -Pointe Woods MI 
248.808.7748 

Cry, 1̀0  
' 

4,0  .ufej  
L 
 • , 

to o 

79" 75 char;4 a creel 

July 5,2020 

Mr. Gene Tutag 
Building Inspector 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

RE: 1201 and 1221 Fairholme Fence 

Dear Gene, 

As discussed in person, we would like to file for a public hearing to attempt to 
resolve this matter. 

Section 8-279 states, "All fences shall be constructed of open lattice work of metal, 
wood, vinyl or of woven wire in such a manner so that there shall be a minimum of 
two-inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of the fence." 

We are requesting a variance, that the city would allow spacing of one-inch openings 
throughout the length of the fence. 

We feel this is the least intrusive option available to all parties. 

When reviewing, please consider that replacing the existing structure, would cause 
significant financial hardship to both owners. Also, that the existing construction 
was done in good taste, as exemplified by the willing cooperation of all neighboring 
families. 

Again, the fence needed to be constructed because time was of the essence due to 
the massive renovations go g on at 1221 Fairholme. Both the nature of the work- a 
major reconstruction of the undation, and the protection of our young girls from 
having to stand face to face with grown men they do not know, required we act 
quickly. 

After the fence at 1201 was constructed, I was approached by the owners of 1221 
and asked to do a second span so that all fencing would be uniform. 



ilitcmG0 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
20025 Mack Plaza Drive 

Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 

July 2, 2020 

WBHD, LLC 
ATTN: Jay Palutto (JPS Residential) 
1221 Fairholme Rd 
Grosse Pointe Woods MI 48236 

SUBJECT: FENCE INSTALLED WITHOUT PERMIT 
Code Enforcement #E200454 

Dear Mr. Palutto: 

This letter is regarding our previous letter to you dated May 8, 2020 (copy attached) and also 
regarding a voice message from the Building Department left on your phone yesterday afternoon. 

Your permit application was denied on May 29, 2020 for not meeting Fence Ordinance code, as 
per discussion with the Building Department. The illegal fence must be removed by July 7, 
2020 or a citation will be issued. 

If you plan to appeal, a variance request is required from you (per Fence Ordinance— copy 
attached) by July 7, 2020. The appeal fee is $75 and must be submitted with your letter 
addressed to the GPW City Council requesting a variance per Sections 8-276 & 8-279(1). 

FYI — Another letter was sent to you at 1201 Fairholme on this date (NAME difference?). 

Building Inspector 

Encl: 
GPW Us 5/8/20 w/Ord Sec 8-274 



May 8, 2020 

WBHD LLC 
766 LAKELAND 
Grosse Pointe MI 48230 

Dear WBHD LLC 

SUBJECT: FENCE INSTALLED WITHOUT PERMIT 

It has come to the attention of the Building Department that a fence was installed improperly 
without permit and inspection at your property 1221 Fairholme. Enclosed is a copy of the 
Grosse Pointe Woods City Fence Ordinance. 

The fence must be removed. If you have any questions, please contact me. Compliance is 
required by May 22, 2020 or a ticket will be issued. 

Gene Tutag 
Building Inspector 

Encl: 
GPW Ord. Sec 8-274 



\icy( lav-IL 

'( Yv\ C 	fer2.  

krecc't c-.) 	/ 

Name (First, Middle, Last) , 

Ay 	P it .4%.1 .77-  CI 
Street 	1  tagoie 	,.,,,,,p,,,,  j.. ,,y,  .6.7  

City ,'" 	6... 	poi 	  toe  ti ts  State in  	zi 	Zip Code ....7........7............„....44,y  

Vehicle Plate No. 	Year 	State Vehicle Description (Year, Make, Col:i? 	Veh.Type 

THE PERSON NAMED ABOVE, in violation of 0 Local Ordinance 1:1State Law DAdminIstrative Rule 

UPON 	1 	FAi 04;416'  

State of Michigan 
Uniform Law Citation Ticke  2 5 8 6 No 1 0 

10 Victin ❑ 

Involver 
US DOT # 

'@e -397q 

Incident No. Dept. No. 

The People of:0 the State of Michigan 
OTownship gi City 0 Village 0 County 

Local Use/Arrest No. Detection Device 

OF: GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
BAC 

of 

THE UNDERSIGNED 
SAYS THAT ON; 

Month 

-7 
DayYear 

IC `C) 
Atapproximately Okm.  

0 P.M. 

Date Month 
of 
Birth 

Day Veal 

State 0 Oper/Chauff. 

0 CDL 

Driver License Number SSN (last 4 digits) 

Race Sex Heigh Weight Hair Eyes Occupation/Employer 

09 
a  
Ql 

AT OR NEAR 	  

WITHIN ®CITY 0 VILLAGE 0 TOWNSHIP OF  GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
COUNTY OF 	WAYNE 	DID THE FOLLOWING 

MCL Clte/PACC Code/ 	 Charge 
ype 	 Ordinance 	Description 	bond amount collected on each dwoel 	No. 

2t/l 0Wam 
Dmisd 0 Fug 
['Fel 

DAuthorization pond ,c6-.. c , 	,g.... a 70 
I 

pa, ruyvir 	P.S. 0 (.3 i e ei'; b 
2t,/1 
Dmisd 0 
OFel OWaiv 

HWaiv 
Wam 
Fug 

0Autholizakon pend ,s-- 	e... , 	s - a7 q 
2 

C. 4-"a)e...="ItoN is 	ilk- 6 U.) ft c,r,ww-r-S- 
DC/I 0 Wam 
DMisd 0 Fug 
flFel 	[Maly 

0Authorization pond. 
3 

TO THE COURT: Do not arraign on a felony charge until an authorized complaint Is filed.  
Offense Code(s) 
1 	 2 

	
3 

Key for Type: C/I = Civil Infraction Mind = Misdemeanor Fel = Felony Warn = Warning Fug = Fugitive 
Waiv = Violation for Which Fines/Costs May be Waived Authorization pond.= Authorization pending  

P 	0 ,po •0(2iy? w 6 fiFiat. 
.44 4-6-b 	(A) ;71)4!..t t 

CHECK IF APPROPRIATED Damage to Property 0 LOCel Court Bond $ 	  
0 Vehicle Impounded 0 Injury 	 0 License Posted in Lieu of Bond 
0 Traffic Crash 	0 Death 	 El Appearance Certificate 
Person in Active Military Service 0 Yes 0 No 0 Nona 

SEE DATE BELOW. SEE BACK OF CITATI N Foe EXRLANATION AND INSTRUCTIONS 

Appearance Date on or before 	e„„ 	0 
Hearing Date (if applicable) on 	7— 	: 3 a ,./R.1_  0 Contact Court 
OJuvenile Traffic Mind. (Court will Notify) E Formal Heering Required. (Court will Notify)  

In the MUNICIPAL 	 cow-tor GROSSE POINTE_ WOODS 

Court Address c Phone Number 
20025 MACK PLAZA DRIVE 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI43236 

PHONE: (313) 343-2455 

Remarks: 

U I served a copy of the civil infraction complaint upon the defendant (or ownedoccupant by posting it applicable). 
CI 	er the penalties of perjury that the statements above are true to the best 

of 

-41 

 on, kno ed 	ci belief. 

Ys S natu 	id receipt if applicable Co 

 

Month I Day 

/ 	r 

Year 

Agency ORI 

MI- 8245000 
UC-01 a (rev. 6/05) 

Office Nam ) isj4tArie  
e=arle 

Agency Nam 

Officers ID No. 

GROSSE POINTE VeThiC4  
DEPT. OF PUBLIC SAFETY  

COURT COPY 

Press Hard - You are making five copies 
This form is available from Target Information Management, Inc. (517)337-1211 



Metal 	Vinyl 

100  Length of Fence: 75 Feet Height of Fence: 

Style of Fence: 

Material of Fence: 

Location of Fence 

Feet is  ( 

Wood 

Address 
	

Date 

;OA 0 

Office Use Only 

Approved 	  Denied 

Building nspector's Signature 

FENCE PERMIT FEE (includes I open post holds inspection) -$50 
REINSPECTION FEE - $50 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
Building Department 

20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

313.3412426 / building@gpwmi.us  

Application For Fence (Zoning Compliance Permit) 
In Compliance With Article IX — Fences (Recent Ord Chg #879 eff 10/25/18) 

PROVIDE: 1) Mortgage survey/site plan with highlighted area where fence is to be placed; 
and, 2) Brochure/picture of proposed fence to be installed. 

Fence Placement Address: 1221  Fairholme 

Owner's Name: WBHD, LLC Owner's Address: 766 Lakeland St, Grosse Pointe MI 

  

Owner's Phone #: 313.5703299  Owner's e-mail: jc@lgraceproperties.com  

Contractor: Jay Palutto - JPS Residential Phone: 248.808.7748 

 

   

Address: 

  

jpsresidential@gmail.c.om  

 

    

     

12.k c-)AANdLkA.0 

 

  

Address Date 

 

        

        

 

Neighbor Signature 

 

Address 	 Date 

 

        

        

        

eighbo Signature 

ex 	gent Signature 
	 Date 

By affixing my signature hereto, I certify that I am the owner or acting as the owner's agent, and I understand the 
regulations pertaining to the erection of a fence as described in Ordinance Sections #8-274 thru 8-284. The City of 
Grosse Pointe Woods does not guarantee the accuracy of the property lines as described herein, the accurate location 
of all property lines is the responsibility of the owner or owner agent. 

10-18-18 
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CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 	DES 4. 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT MEMORANWUrpi,,uss: 2020 

DATE: 	December 11, 2020 	
1-ERK's DE  PpZtElvvoos  

TO: 	Mayor and City Council 

FROM: 	Gene Tutag, Building Official 

SUBJECT: 	1221 Fairholme, Fence Variance 

The applicant is requesting a variance of Section 8-279(1) of the City's fence ordinance so an existing 
fence installed in May 2020 without a permit or approval can remain in place. The applicant is requesting 
this variance so the fence can remain a solid fence instead of a semi-open fence with a minimum of two-

inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of the fence as required by city code. 

The applicant, once cited by Code Enforcement for installing without a permit or approval, provided a 
permit application and letter to the Building Department in effort to comply with the citation. The building 
permit submitted was denied due to Section 8-279(1) of the city's fence ordinance and therefore a variance 
was requested by the applicant. 

The applicant is claiming the fence is spaced by one-inch openings, however after inspection it was 
determined these openings are closer to a half-inch or less in measurement as shown by the inspection 
photos provided. 

The fence in which this variance is requested is located on the south lot line of the property. A citation has 
been issued and has been adjourned pending the outcome of the variance request. 

This exception to the fence code requires a public hearing and approval from the City Council. The City 
Council may consider any or all of the following, along with other information when deciding a 
variance: 

(a) Balancing the relative hardships between the property owner and adjacent property owners. 
(b) Whether special circumstances or conditions exist. 
(c) Whether pedestrian or vehicle traffic will be affected. 
(d) The general health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood. 

It is recommended that a variance of Section 8-279 (1) not be granted as follows: 

1. The situation is self-created as no permit or approvals were obtained prior to installation. 
2. No unique conditions relative to the property exist to justify the grant of the variance. 

In the event that a variance is granted, the petitioner would have to acquire a signature from the 

adjoining neighbor property at 1220 Paget Court. 

1 



ATTACHMENTS: 

Inspection Photos taken by Building Official (6 photos) 
Application w/ site plan & photo submitted by Applicant (denied 5-29-20) 
Citation Letter to Applicant (05-08-2020) 
Enforcement Letter to Applicant (07-02-2020, #E200454) 
Letter from Applicant with photos of fence (07-05-2020) 
Ticket #258610 

Letter of Appeal from Applicant (11-18-2020) 
GPW Ordinance #8-279 

APPROVED BY: 

    

  

DATE: 

 

     

 

Bruce Smith 
City Administrator 
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MEMO 20-70 

TO: 	Lisa Hathaway, City Clerk 

FROM: 	Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 

DATE: 	December 16, 2020 

SUBJECT: 	Variance — Fence at 1221 Fairholme, GPW, MI 48236 

I have reviewed the application from resident Jay Palutto requesting a fence variance at 
1221 Fairholme. The fence variance will have no impact on the Department of Public 
Works or utilities. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

cc 	Gene Tutag 
0/F 



AFFIDAVIT OF PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED 
Re: 1221 Fairholme Rd. 

Jay and Sara Pilotto 

State of Michigan ) 
) ss. 

County of Wayne ) 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the notice of Hearing was duly mailed First Class Mail on 12/11/20 to the 
following property owners within a 3 foot radius of the above property in accordance with the 
provisions of the 2017 City Code of Grosse Pointe Woods. A Hearing fee of $75.00 has been received 
with receipt # 408946. 

Lisa Kay Hathaway, MiPMC-3/1VIMC 
City Clerk 

See attached document for complete list. 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that in accordance with Chapter 8, Buildings and Building 
Regulations, Article IX, Fences of the 2017 City Code of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Sections 
8-284(a)(2) Exceptions and 8-284(b) Public Hearing, the City Council will hold a remote public 
hearing by Zoom on Monday, December 21, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. to hear the request of Jay and Sara 
Pilotto, 1201 Fairholme Rd., Grosse Pointe Woods, MI. A solid privacy fence has been installed 
without having obtained a permit at their property located at 1221 Fairholme Rd. They are 
requesting to keep the already installed 6' solid wood privacy fence along the South lot line. The 
fence application will require a variance in accordance with Sections 8-279(1) All fences shall be 
constructed of open lattice work of metal, wood, vinyl or of woven wire in such a manner so that 
there shall be a minimum of two-inch openings throughout 50 percent of the length or height of 
the fence. The fence application materials are open for public scrutiny. All interested parties are 
invited to attend. 

Lisa Kay Hathaway, MiPMC-3/MMC 
City Clerk 



1221 Fairholme Rd. - 3' Radius 

Parcel Number 	Owner Name 1 Owner Name 2 Street Address City - State - Zip Code 
013 01 0173 000 PILOTTO JASON J & SARAH M JASON & SARAH PILOTTO 1201 FAIRHOLME RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 
013 01 0172 000 WBHD LLC WBHD LLC/OCCUPANT 1221 FAIRHOLME RD GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48230 
013 01 0188 000 SALADA RAYMOND T RAYMOND SALADA 1220 PAGET CT GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 

1 
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CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: December 14, 2020 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Bruce J. Smith, City Administrator 

Subject: Replace Full-time Position in the I.T. Depa ment 

DEC i 6 2020 
C1 TV OP GliO&S 

pollvrE 
w000s 

DE-p4
Firilvivr  

Approximately three years ago there was a separation of an employee in the I.T. Department. When this occurred it was 
hoped that the position could be eliminated and replaced with the use of contractual services to do the work of the 
employee. Funds were budgeted for these services for the I.T. Director, Gary Capps, to hire private contractors to do 
work assigned for the department. While there was success with some of the daily work, there was also a gap in things 
requiring institutional knowledge to perform duties without close supervision. There were many times when Mr. Capps 
had to work closely with a contractor or spend so much time supervising that he was unable to do other things that 
required his attention. 

Having only one person in the department creates issues when it comes to vacations and sick leave. This results in Mr. 
Capps often has to field calls and resolve computer related issues via telephone and using remote access solutions. 
Even though this solves most issues, it is problematic for him to really get away from his work responsibilities. This 
was not a problem when there was a second person working in the department. Should a prolonged injury or illness 
occur there would be a learning curve for any person or any company coming in to assume Mr. Capps duties. 

There is not a single department within the city that does not utilize the I.T. Department (City Hall, the Torrey Road 
Pump Station, DPW, DPS, the Municipal Court, Lake Front Park, and the Community Center). Also, this requires 
traveling to the different buildings within the city. Additionally, the IT Department was called upon to research and 
facilitate the purchase of the city's new telephone system, oversee the video camera installations in the new lockup and 
throughout the city, maintain security over the I.T. systems, and handle computer, server, and multi-use copier 
purchases. Maintaining security over the entire I.T. spectrum is a critical function that requires hyper-vigilance on a 
daily basis due to the recent ransomware attacks launched at municipalities. 

Over the past three years, it has become apparent that a staff of one in the I.T. Department has created problems in 
many areas and it is my recommendation to restore the second position to the department. The amount of work that 
the city requires of the I.T. staff is beyond the capabilities of a single person and utilizing contractual services did not 
negate the need for a second position in the department. 

In December of 2019, council approved a position for the I.T. Department and a job offer was made, however, the 
candidate did not pass the final hiring requirements. Shortly after, the pandemic struck and all hiring activities were 
put on hold. When the current budget was prepared, it was very conservative due to the uncertainties of the 
pandemic's financial effects. The financial picture is clearer and I believe the funding for this position is available. 

I am proposing the starting wages, as before, to be in the $50,000 - $60,000 range depending on qualifications, 
experience, and education. For FY2021/22 the funding for this position (salary and benefits) will equate to 
approximately $98,000. The funding required to fill this position for the remaining of the FY 20/2021 budget is 
$52,738.00 and will require a budget amendment. 



The funding required to fill this position for the remaining of the FY 20/2021 budget is $52,738.00 and will require 

budget transfers from Account No. 101-000-699.000 into the following verified accounts: 

101-855-702.000 Salaries and Wages 30,000.00 
101-855-715.000 Social Security ....  9,.... 	. 995 00 
101-855-717.000 Retire Health Care 900.00 
101-855-722.000 Retirement 8,112,50 
101-855-723.000 Supplemental Annuity 3,365.50 
101-855-718.000 Health Savings Account 1,000.00 
101-860-719.000 Hosp./Dental/Vision 6,484.50 
101-860-720.000 Life and LTD Insurance 205.50 
101-860-721.000 Worker's Compensation 375.00 

TOTAL $52,738.00 

%.(\akon 	ho,  
Treasurer/Comptroller igna ure 



COUNCIL EXCERPT 
12-16 -19 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Granger, regarding replace full-time position in the Information 
Technology Department/budget amendment, that the City Council approve the hire of a full-time 
Information Systems Technician setting a wage of $50,000.00-60,000.00 annually, and to approve a budget 
amendment from the General Fund into I.T. Salaries and Wages Account No. 101-855-702.000 at a prorated 
amount based upon hiring wage and date of hire. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 



Date: 	November 25, 2020 

To: Bruce Smith, City Administrator 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY hot, 

Dee  
C44-0P00  9 20 61 

14/0006,  

gA 

From: 	Joh 	Kosanke 'rector of Public Safety 

Subject: 	S eant Brian Conigliaro's military leave — second extension 

A resolution was adopted by City Council on April 01, 2019 regarding a 
supplemental agreement for Sergeant Brian Conigliaro who was activated to full-
time military status as of May 10, 2019. The resolution expired on June 27, 2020 
and was extended for an additional six months at a Council meeting on June 1, 
2020. At this time, Sergeant Conigliaro has not yet been released from active duty 
and may not return before the current expiration of the supplemental agreement on 
December 27, 2020. Sergeant Conigliaro is currently stationed in Virginia, having 
returned from his assignment in Djibouti, Africa a short while ago. The exact date 
of his release from the military is yet to be determined. 

As a result, I am requesting a second six - month extension of the supplemental 
agreement with an expiration date of June 27, 2021. If Sergeant Conigliaro is 
released from active duty before that date, the extended supplemental agreement 
would expire upon his return to work. Sergeant Conigliaro has been advised that 
this will be his last extension. 

I am requesting that Mayor and Council once again pass a resolution to extend the 
supplement of his net pay less the amtiunt of his military pay and to continue the 
health benefits for his family Thank you for your consideration. 



COUNCIL EXCERPT 
06-01-20 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Bryant, regarding Military Leave Extension - Sgt. Brian 
Conigliaro, that the City Council concur with the Director of Public Safety and approve the 
extension of supplemental pay to Sgt. Brian Conigliaro less the amount of military pay, to continue 
health benefits for his family, and to authorize the City Administrator to sign the Supplemental 
Agreement as revised. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Bryant, to amend the previous motion by inserting, "for a period 
of up to six months or when Sgt. Conigliaro returns from service, whichever comes first." 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Gafa, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, Novitke 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

Council Excerpt 
04/01/19 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Shetler, regarding Military Leave Request — Brian 
Conigliaro, that City Council adopt the Resolution for military leave-Brian Conigliaro, and 
authorize the City Administrator to sign the Supplemental Agreement. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 



12.41)  

24/1. j2-0 20 	Dated: 	  Dated: 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 

RECEIVED  
DEC 1 6  2020 

CITY F
OSSE. PoiNTE 

WOODS CLERK'S DEPARTMENT 

It is hereby agreed by and between the City of Grosse Pointe Woods (hereinafter referred to as the 
"City") and the Police Officers Labor Council (hereinafter referred to as the "Union") as follows: 

WHEREAS, bargaining unit member Brian Conigliaro has been, or will be in the immediate future, 
called to active service from his reservist position; and 

WHEREAS, the Union has requested consideration by the City in these unique circumstances for 
the provision of certain benefits to Bnan Conigliaro which are not provided in the parties' 
collective bargaining agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has elected to honor the Union's request, the parties hereby agree: 

i. 	That while he is on active military duty and for a period not to exceed six (6) months or 
until June 30, 202 I (subject to subsequent consideration and adjustment by the City 
Council), the City will provide to Brian Conigliaro the following: 

a. The same net pay after taxes he received immediately prior to his call to active duty. 
Such payment will be made on the same time schedule as for other unit members. 

b. The net health benefits for him and his dependents will remain the same. 
c. There shall be no charge to his vacation time. 

2. The Union agrees that this Supplemental Agreement is based on the unique 
circumstances in this case and will not set precedent in any future case. 

3. The parties agree that there shall be no further extensions of this Supplemental Agreement. 

4. This Supplemental Agreement is signed by the parties authorized representatives. 

UNION 	 CITY 



9/A 

CHARLES T. BERSCHBACK 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

24053 EAST JEFFERSON AVENUE 

ST. CLAIR SHORES, MICHIGAN 4B080-1530 

(586) 777-0400 
FAX (586) 777-0430 
blbwlaw@yahoo.com  

December 15, 2020 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

RE: 	Revision to Generator Ordinance 
First Reading December 21, 2020 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

Dec VFW i 
6 2020 

cIry 
oP GROS8 

/ATE 	

Os 
CQ;cik'S OFP4Ar4fIVIP° 

Based on a number of factors (increased demand for generators, technological advances, 
and numerous variance requests), the Council directed Mr. Tutag and I to prepare 
proposed revisions to the generator ordinance. It would be the prerogative of the City 
Council to schedule this ordinance for a second reading and posting of appropriate 
notices. Thank you, 

Very truly yours, 

•!../ 471- 	 _ 

CHARLES T. BERSCHBACK 

CTB:gmr 
cc: 	Bruce Smith 

Lisa K. Hathaway 
Gene Tutag 



ORDINANCE # 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 8 BUILDINGS AND 
BUILDING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE XVI EMERGENCY 

ELECTRICAL GENERATORS, TO MODIFY SEC. 8-463 
PERMANENT LOCATION, TO ALLOW SIDEYARD PLACEMENT 

BASED ON CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS 

THE CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS ORDAINS: 

ARTICLE XVI. - EMERGENCY ELECTRICAL GENERATORS 

Sec. 8-460. - Installation and definition. 

Emergency generators may be permanently installed and utilized in all residential zoning 
districts within the city, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this article. This article 
regulates permanently installed emergency generators, defined as a generator that is intended to 
remain outside of a residence for a lengthy or continuous period of time, regardless of the length 
of time of any power outage, as opposed to portable generators. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Sec. 8-461. - Permit required. 

Permits shall be obtained from the city building department prior to the commencement of 
any construction or installation of a generator. Applicants shall submit two copies of the 
following: 

(1) The application form, and the permit fee, that may be modified by the council by 
resolution periodically. 

(2) A dimensioned site plan indicating compliance with this section and the 
manufacturer's specifications. 

(3) The manufacturer's specifications/cut sheets for the generator, the ATS (automatic 
transfer switch) and any fuel storage tanks, showing listings from a nationally 
recognized testing laboratory. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Sec. 8-462. - Final inspection. 

As soon as construction of a generator has been completed, a final inspection shall be 
requested by the applicant to ensure compliance with all terms and conditions of this article, and 
the generator shall not be used prior to receiving final inspection approval. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 



Sec. 8-463. - Permanent location. 

1. The generator must be permanently affixed on a concrete slab or prefabricated 

(Ord. No. 860, 2 23 2015) 

(1) Generators shall be considered a permitted use when located in the rear yard. The location of 
generators in the rear yard are the preferred location of the city. However, if no suitable rear yard  
location is available, the building department may permit the generator to be placed in the side  
yard, as rearward as practical. Applicable requirements shall be met for any installation. All  
generator(s) shall be opaquely screened from adjacent properties and public ways with 
landscaping or fencing as approved by the building department.  

If placed within the side yard, the following shall apply:  

(a) The unit(s) shall be located within two feet of a residential structure. The building 
department may grant an exception based on proof of a physical hindrance such as 
existing utility lines, openable doors or windows or exterior equipment.  

(b) The unit shall not be permitted to be placed directly across from a bedroom on the first 
floor of the neighboring residence, unless the neighbor approves, in writing. The applicant 
shall provide correspondence from the neighbor(s) whose residence abuts the side yard in 
question, indicating approval of the location that is across from the neighbor's first floor 
bedroom. If the neighbor is unwilling to provide such correspondence or is not otherwise 
available, the applicant shall submit a letter indicating efforts to obtain such 
correspondence and shall seek a variance as specified within this section.  

(c) The placement of a unit in other side yard locations may be approved by the building 
department without the need for neighbor approval.  

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Sec. 8-464. - Enclosure; production of sounds; service doors; exhaust gases. 

(a) The generating unit and muffler must be enclosed within a sound attenuated cabinet. The 
enclosure service doors on the cabinet must be locked to prevent access by unauthorized 
persons. 

(b) Sound produced at full load is to be less than 85 dBA as measured at any and all property 
lines. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 



Sec. 8-465. - Fuels. 

Acceptable fuels include natural gas, gasoline or diesel. Connections made to a natural gas 
line of a residence must be in accordance with all applicable codes. Other fuel sources must meet 
all state and local code requirements. Portable fuel sources are not permitted. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Sec. 8-466. - Electrical. 

Only a fully automatic transfer switch (ATS) gear (double throw disconnect switch gear) is 
to be installed. Transfer panels must be locked to prevent unauthorized access to the switch gear. 
Panels must be approved by a recognized certification agency, such as UL or CSA, and must 
comply with all applicable electrical requirements adopted by the State of Michigan and the City 
of Grosse Pointe Woods. A warning sign shall be placed at the service entrance equipment 
indicating type and location of an on-site emergency power source. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Sec. 8-467. - Maintenance. 

Property owners are responsible for keeping the electrical installation and operation within 
all applicable code and ordinance requirements. Automatic maintenance exercise testing is 
limited to not more than ten minutes each week, Monday - Friday, between the hours of 9:00 
a.m. - 6:00 p.m. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Sec. 8-468. - Landscaping. 

Appropriate landscaping must be installed around a generator unit in order to screen the unit 
and to assist in muffling or reducing sound levels. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Sec. 8-469. - Use. 

Generators are to be used only in emergencies where the normal power source to the 
residence has been disrupted. As soon as normal power has been restored, the owner shall cease 
operation of the generator. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 



Sec. 8-470. - Appeals. 

Permit denials may be appealed to the city council based on an appeal fee of $250.00 that 
may be modified by the council by resolution periodically. Adjoining property owners shall be 
notified of the appeal by regular mail within seven days prior to the hearing. In determining 
whether or not to grant an exception to the requirements of the article, the city council may 
consider the following: 

(1) The practical difficulties faced by the applicant in adhering to the requirements of the 
article. 

(2) The nature and extent of any adverse impact upon adjoining properties and the 
surrounding neighborhood. 

(3) Whether or not approval based on conditions will appropriately minimize the impact 
of the request to adjoining property owners. 

(Ord. No. 860, 2-23-2015) 

Secs. 8-471-8-500. - Reserved. 
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ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK, INC. 
CIVIL ENGINEERS 	SURVEYORS 	ARCHITECTS 
51301 Schuatherr Road 	 586.726.1234 
Shelby Township, MI 48315 	 www.aew,v inc.com  

 

December 3, 2020 

Shawn Murphy 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Avenue 
Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 

Reference: 2020 Concrete Pavement and Parking Repair Program 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
AEW Project No. 0160-0428 

Dear Mrs. Murphy: 

Enclosed please find Construction Pay Estimate No. 3 for the above referenced 
project. For work performed through November 29, 2020 we recommend issuing 
payment for the Net Earnings this Period (see Page 3) in the amount of $180,450.58 
to L. Anthony Construction Inc., 11085 Lisa Ln., Shelby Twp., Mi., 48316 

If you have questions or require additional information, please contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

4"'..../=:,--- •-,/,- c..--1.€4.4-7-6 • 

Frank D. Varicalli 
Project Manager 

- 11605 11 

02 	 . l or S 3 Li, (-26  •, I 

• c, 3 - 	-7 Li. 1. 00  

cc: 	Bruce Smith, City Administrator 
Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 
Jeanne Duffy 
Susan Como 
L. Anthony Construction Inc. 

(-6-or\ ta)s  12_020 

   

Engineering Strong Communities Since 1968 



Estimate 
No. 

3 

Estimate 
Date 

11/29/2020 

Entered 
By 

Michelle Ankawi 

Estimate 
Type 

Semi-Monthly 

Managing 
Office 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

All Contract 
Work Completed 

Construction 
Started Date 

9/16/2020 

Prime Contractor 

L Anthony Construction 

11085 Lisa Lane 

Shelby Township MI 48316 

Construction Pay Estimate Report 

 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

 

12/3/2020 12:30 PM 

FieldManager 5.3c 

Contract: .0160-0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 

Comments 
Current Contract Amount: $661,000.00 
% Completed: 85% 

Item Usage Summary 
Project: 0160-0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 
Category: 0001, Parking Lots 

Item Description 	 Unit 

Dr Structure, Rem 	 Ea 

Sewer, Rem, Less than 24 inch Ft 

Curb and Gutter, Rem 	Ft 

Sidewalk, Rem 	 Syd 

_ Driveway, Conc, Rem 	Syd 

_ Full Depth Sawcutting through Ft 
Existing P avement, Sidewalk, 
Driveway or Curb 

_ Sewer, SDR 23.5 PVC, 12 inch, Ft 
Tr Det B 

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 Ea 

Dr Structure, 24 inch dia 	Ea 

Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 	Ft 

Dr Structure Frame and Cover, Ea 
Storm Catch Basin 

Dr Structure Frame and Cover, Ea 

_ Dr Structure, 36 inch dia 	Ea 

Item Code 

	

Prop. Project Item 	Mod. 
Ln. 	Line No. Type 	No. Quantity Item Price Dollar Amount 

2040055 0005 0005 00 000 128.400 5.00 $642.00 

2047011 0010 0010 00 000 22.900 7.00 $160.30 

4040071 0050 0050 00 000 444.300 13.00 $5,775.90 

8010007 0080 0080 00 000 22.900 56.00 $1,282.40 

8030044 0085 0085 00 000 1,154.400 5.50 $6,349.20 

Subtotal for Category 0001: $14,209.80 

Prop. Project Item 	Mod. 
Item Code No. Type 	No. Ln. 	Line Quantity Item Price Dollar Amount 

2030011 0095 0095 00 000 4.000 300.00 $1,200.00 

2030015 0100 0100 00 000 50.000 10.00 $500.00 

2040020 0105 0105 00 000 25.000 8.00 $200.00 

2040055 0110 0110 00 000 256.700 5.00 $1,283.50 

2047011 0115 0115 00 000 20.100 7.00 $140.70 

3047001 0125 0125 00 000 1,779.900 1.30 $2,313.87 

4027001 0140 0140 00 000 52.000 50.00 $2,600.00 

4030005 0160 0160 00 000 26.000 200.00 $5,200.00 

4030200 0170 0170 00 000 1.000 1,750.00 $1,750.00 

4030280 0175 0175 00 000 4.000 150.00 $600.00 

4037050 0185 0185 00 000 4.000 500.00 $2,000.00 

4037050 0190 
Storm Manh ole 

 0190 00 000 2.000 500.00 $1,000.00 

4037050 0195 0195 00 000 4.000 2,500.00 $10,000.00 

Item Description 	 Unit 

Sidewalk, Rem 	 Syd 

_ Driveway, Conc, Rem 	Syd 

Underdrain, Subgrade, 4 inch 	Ft 

Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch Syd 

Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 	Sft 

Category: 0002, Misc CPR 

Contract ID: .0160-0428 
	

Estimate: 3 	 Page 1 of 3 



Site Method 	Days Charged 	Liq. Damages Site Site Description 

00 	SITE NUMBERS SHOULD BE CODED 00 Completion Date 	 $0 

Stockpile 
Voucher No. 	Item Payment 	Adjustment 	Dollar Amount Project 

0160-0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 0003 $0.00 	$174,699.70 $174,699.70 

Total Liquidated Damages: 	 $0 

Pre-Voucher Summary 

Voucher Total: 	$174,699.70 

t
if 

	
Construction Pay Estimate Report 

1213/202012:30 PM 
Anderson, Eckstein and VVestrick, Inc. 

FieldManager 5.3c 

Item Usage Summary 
Project: 0160.0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 
Category: 0002, Misc CPR 

Item Description Unit Item Code 

	

Prop. Project Item 	Mod. 
Ln. 	Line No. Type 	No. Quantity Item Price Dollar Amount 

Underdrain, Subgrade, 4 inch Ft 4040071 0200 0200 00 000 13.000 13.00 $169.00 

_ Joint, Expansion, Erg, Modified Ft 6027001 0215 0215 00 000 102.600 20.00 $2,052.00 

Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored Ea 6030030 0225 0225 00 000 611.000 5.00 $3,055.00 

Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch Syd 6030044 0230 0230 00 000 1,468.480 56.00 $82,234.88 

_ Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified Syd 6037011 0240 0240 00 000 1,468.480 10.00 $14,684.80 

Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch Syd 8010005 0250 0250 00 000 20.100 54.00 $1,085.40 

_ Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 8 inch Syd 8017011 0255 0255 00 000 271.100 8.00 $2,168.80 

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 Ft 8020038 0260 0260 00 000 25.000 22.00 $550.00 

Detectable Warning Surface Ft 8030010 0265 0265 00 000 40.000 30.00 $1,200.00 

Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch Sft 8030044 0270 0270 00 000 3,039.900 5.50 $16,719.45 

Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch Sft 8030046 0275 0275 00 000 516.750 6.00 $3,100.50 

_ Traffic Maintenance and Control LS 8127051 0280 0280 00 000 0.500 6,000.00 $3,000.00 

_ Surface Restoration, Seeding Syd 8167011 0285 0285 00 000 336.400 5.00 $1,682.00 

Subtotal for Category 0002: $160,489.90 

Subtotal for Project 0160-0428: $174,699.70 

Total Estimated Item Payment: $174,699.70 

Time Charges 

Contract ID: .0160-0428 	 Estimate: 3 	 Page 2 of 3 



Construction Pay Estimate Report 

 

Anderson, Eckstein and Vtiestrick, Inc. 

 

12/3/2020 12:30 PM 

FieldManager 5.3c 

Summary 

Current Voucher Total: $174,699.70 Earnings to date: $562,708.48 

-Current Retainage: ($5,750.88) - Retainage to date: $33,050.00 

-Current Liquidated Damages: $0.00 - Liquidated Damages to date: $0.00 

-Current Adjustments: $0.00 - Adjustments to date: $0.00 

Total Estimated Payment: $180,450.58 Net Earnings to date: $529,658.48 

- Payments to date: $349,207.90 

Net Earnings this period: $180,450.58 

Estimate Certification 

I certify the items included on this report constitute my estimate of work completed and due the contractor 
as of the date of this document. 

(Date) 

/2-,?.41) 
. 	. 

Frank D. Vance111, AEW, Inc. 

Contract ID: .0160-0428 	 Estimate: 3 	 Page 3 of 3 



wConstruction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
A 	 Estimate: 3 

12/3/2020 12:30 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Contract .0160-0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 

Project: 0160-0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 

Category: 

Prop. 
Line 

0001, Parking Lots 

Item 
Item Description 	 Code 

Authorized 
Qty. 	Unit 

Quantity This 
Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0005 Sidewalk, Rem 	 2040055 180.000 Syd 128.400 167.700 167.700 93% 5.00000 $833.50 
0010 _ Driveway, Conc, Rem 	 2047011 150.000 Syd 22.900 142.700 142.700 95% 7.00000 $998.90 
0015 _ Full Depth Sawcutting through Existing 	3047001 2,800.000 Ft 2,539.400 2,539.400 91% 1.30000 $3,301.22 

P avement, Sidewalk, Driveway or Curb 
0020 _ Dr Structure, Tap, 4 inch - 12 inch 	4027050 12.000 Ea 4.000 4.000 33% 500.00000 $2,000.00 
0025 _ External Structure Wrap, 18 inch 	4027050 11.000 Ea 0.000 425.00000 
0030 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, Modifie 	4030004 11.000 Ea 7.000 7.000 64% 200.00000 $1,400.00 
0035 Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 	 4030280 22.000 Ft 2.000 2.000 9% 150.00000 $300.00 
0040 _ Dr Structure Frame and Cover, Sanitary 4037050 9.000 Ea 3.000 3.000 33% 500.00000 $1,500.00 

M anhole 
0045 _ Dr Structure Frame and Cover, Storm 	4037050 2.000 Ea 0.000 500.00000 

Catc h Basin 
0050 Underdrain, Subgrade, 4 inch 	 4040071 1,550.000 Ft 444.300 1,994.300 1,994.300 129% 13.00000 $25,925.90 
0055 Joint, Expansion, E2 	 6020207 20.000 Ft 8.700 8.700 44% 15.00000 $130.50 
0060 Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 	 6030030 945.000 Ea 833.000 833.000 88% 5.00000 $4,165.00 
0065 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 	6030044 4,200.000 Syd 3,833.700 3,833.700 91% 56.00000 $214,687.20 
0070 _ Joint, Expansion, Erg, Modified 	6037001 130.000 Ft 113.300 113.300 87% 20.00000 52,266.00 
0075 _ Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 	 6037011 4,200.000 Syd 3,836.500 3,836.500 91% 10.00000 538,365.00 
0080 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 	8010007 160.000 Syd 22.900 172.400 172.400 108% 56.00000 $9,654.40 
008$ Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 	 8030044 1,600.000 Sft 1,154.400 1,428.300 1,428.300 89% 5.50000 $7,855.65 
0090 _ Traffic Maintenance and Control 	8127051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 2,500.00000 $2,500.00 

Subtotal for Category 0001: 315888.27 

Category: 0002, Misc CPR 

Prop. 	 Item 	Authorized 	 Quantity This 	Qty. Paid 	Total Qty. 	 Dollar Amt. 
Line 	 Item Description 	 Code 	Qty. 	Unit 	Estimate 	To Date 	Placed 	% Cpt 	Unit Price 	 Paid To Date 

0095 Dr Structure, Rem 2030011 25.000 Ea 4.000 4.000 4.000 16% 300.00000 $1,200.00 
0100 Sewer, Rem, Less than 24 inch 2030015 300.000 Ft 50.000 50.000 50.000 17% 10.00000 $500.00 
0105 Curb and Gutter, Rem 2040020 35.000 Ft 25.000 25.000 25.000 71% 8.00000 $200.00 

Contract: 0160-0428 	 Estimate: 3 
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tailf 	
Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 

L 	 Estimate: 3 

12/3/2020 12:30 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: 0160-0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 

Category: 

Prop. 
Line 

0002, Misc CPR 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 
Qty. 	Unit 

Quantity This 
Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0110 Sidewalk, Rem 2040055 226.000 Syd 256.700 390.600 390,600 173% 5.00000 $1,953.00 
0115 _ Driveway, Conc, Rem 2047011 100.000 Syd 20.100 20.100 20.100 20% 7.00000 $140.70 
0120 _ Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 2057021 36.000 Cyd 6.500 6.500 18% 20.00000 $130.00 
0125Full Depth Sawcutting through Existing 

1:,  avement, Sidewalk, Driveway or Curb 
3047001 2,500.000 Ft 1,779.900 3,133.600 3,133.600 125% 1.30000 $4,073.68 

0130 Maintenance Gravel, LM 3060021 50.000 Cyd 0.000 1.00000 
0135 _ Sewer, SDR 23.5 PVC, 10 inch, Tr Det 4027001 100.000 Ft 0.000 50.00000 

B 
0140 _ Sewer, SDR 23.5 PVC, 12 inch, Tr Det 4027001 200.000 Ft 52.000 52.000 52.000 26% 50.00000 $2,600.00 

B 
0145 _ Dr Structure, Tap, 4 inch - 12 inch 4027050 4.000 Ea 0.000 500.00000 
0150 _ External Structure Wrap, 12 inch 4027050 1.000 Ea 0.000 350.00000 
0155 _ External Structure Wrap, 18 inch 4027050 24.000 Ea 0.000 425.00000 
0160 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 4030005 1.000 Ea 26.000 27.000 27.000 2700% 200.00000 $5,400.00 
0165 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 2 4030006 1.000 Ea 0.000 200.00000 
0170 Dr Structure, 24 inch dia 4030200 10.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 1.000 10% 1,750.00000 $1,750.00 
0175 Cr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 4030280 2.000 Ft 4.000 5.000 5.000 250% 150.00000 $750.00 
0180 _ Catch Basin Trap 4037050 15.000 Ea 0.000 500.00000 
0185 _ Dr Structure Frame and Cover, Storm 4037050 25.000 Ea 4.000 5.000 5.000 20% 500.00000 $2,500.00 

Catc h Basin 
0190 _ Dr Structure Frame and Cover, Storm 4037050 2.000 Ea 2.000 4.000 4.000 200% 500.00000 $2,000.00 

Manh ole 
0195 _ Dr Structure, 36 inch dia 4037050 15.000 Ea 4.000 4.000 4.000 27% 2,500.00000 $10,000.00 
0200 Underdrain, Subgrade, 4 inch 4040071 500.000 Ft 13.000 13.000 13.000 3% 13.00000 $169.00 
0205 HMA, 13A 5010033 25.000 Ton 0.000 200.00000 

0210 Joint, Expansion, E2 6020207 40.000 Ft 0.000 15.00000 

0215 _ Joint. Expansion, Erg, Modified 6027001 40.000 Ft 102.600 115.100 115.100 288% 20.00000 $2,302.00 
0220 Cement 6030005 2.000 Ton 0.000 100.00000 
0225 Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 6030030 1,100.000 Ea 611.000 987.000 987.000 90% 5.00000 $4,935.00 
0230 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 6030044 2,000.000 Syd 1,468.480 2,506.980 2,506.980 125% 56.00000 $140,390.88 
0235 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 9 inch 6030046 100.000 Syd 0.000 60.00000 

Contract: .0160-0428 	 Estimate: 3 
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Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
A 	IL 	 Estimate: 3 

12/3/202012:30 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: 0160-0428, 2020 Concrete Pavement Repair Program 

Category: 

Prop. 
Line 

0002, Misc CPR 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 
Qty. 	Unit 

Quantity This 
Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0240 _ Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 6037011 2,100.000 Syd 1,468.480 2,506.980 2,506.980 119% 10.00000 $25,069.80 
0245 _ Curb Casting 7177050 1.000 Ea 0.000 700.00000 
0250 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch 8010005 100.000 Syd 20.100 20.100 20.100 20% 54.00000 $1,085.40 
0255 _ Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 8 inch 8017011 500.000 Syd 271.100 271.100 271.100 54% 8.00000 $2,168.80 
0260 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 8020038 35.000 Ft 25.000 25.000 25.000 71% 22.00000 $550.00 
0265 Detectable Warning Surface 8030010 30.000 Ft 40.000 40.000 40.000 133% 30.00000 $1,200.00 
0270 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 8030044 1,500.000 Sft 3,039.900 4,539.900 4,539.900 303% 5.50000 $24,969.45 
0275 Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch 8030046 500.000 Sft 516.750 516.750 516.750 103% 6.00000 $3,100,50 
0280 _ Traffic Maintenance and Control 8127051 1.000 LS 0.500 1.000 1.000 100% 6,000.00000 $6,000.00 
0285 _ Surface Restoration, Seeding 8167011 200.000 Syd 336.400 336.400 336.400 168% 5.00000 $1,682,00 

Subtotal for Category 0002: 246820.21 

Subtotal for Project 0160-0428: 562708.48 

Percentage of Contract Completed(curr): 85% 

(total earned to date / total of all authorized work) 

Total Amount Earned This Estimate: 	 $174,699.70 

Total Amount Earned To Date: 	$562,708.48 

Contract: .0160-0428 	 Estimate: 3 
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ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK, INC. 
CIVIL ENGINEERS 	SURVEYORS 	ARCHITECTS 
51301 Schoenlien.  Road 	 586.726.1231 

Shelby Township, MI 4{1315 	 www.aEminc.com  

December 3, 2020 

Shawn Murphy, Deputy Controller 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Avenue 
Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 

Reference: 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
AEW Project No. 0160-0413 

Dear Ms. Murphy: 

Enclosed please find Construction Pay Estimate No. 6 for the above referenced 
project. For work performed through November 29, 2020 we recommend issuing 
payment for the Net Earnings this Period (see Page 2) in the amount of $9,450.40 
to Fontana Construction Services, 6340 Sims Drive, Sterling Heights, MI 48313 

If you have questions or require additional information, please contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

0 ) 
	.„ 

Frank D. Varicalli 
-) • 

Project Manager 

cc: 	Bruce Smith, City Administrator 
Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 
Jeanne Duffy 
Susan Como 
Fontana Construction Services 

.5)0A. o- s 

  

Engineering Strong Communities Since 1968 



Estimate 
No. 

6 

Estimate 
Date 

11/29/2020 

Entered 
By 

Michelle Ankawi 

Estimate 
Type 

Semi-Monthly 

Managing 
Office 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

All Contract 
Work Completed 

Construction 
Started Date 

Prime Contractor 

Fontana Construction, Inc. 

6340 Sims Drive 

Sterling Heights MI 48313 

*if 	Construction Pay Estimate Report 

12/3/2020 2:12 PM 
Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

FieldManager 5.3c 

Contract: .0160-0413, 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 

Comments 
Current Contract Amount: $519,779.00 
% Completed: 83% 

Item Usage Summary 
Project: 0160-0413, 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 
Category: 0000, 

Item Description Unit Item Code 

	

Prop. Project Item 	Mod. 
Ln. 	Line No. Type 	No. 	Quantity 	Item Price Dollar Amount 

_ Cold Patch Ton 5017031 0155 0155 00 000 	24.010 	200.00 $4,802.00 

_ Full Depth Sawcutting Ft 6037001 0190 0190 00 000 	25.200 	2.00 $50.40 

Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored Ea 6030030 0175 0175 00 000 	22.000 	5.00 $110.00 

Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch Syd 6030044 0180 0180 00 000 	52.800 	75.00 $3,960.00 

Pavt Repr, Rem Syd 6030080 0185 0185 00 000 	52.800 	10.00 $528.00 

Subtotal for Category 0000: $9,450.40 

Subtotal for Project 0160-0413: $9,450.40 

Total Estimated Item Payment: $9,450.40 

Time Charges 

Site Site Description 

00 	SITE NUMBERS SHOULD BE CODED 00 

 

Site Method 	Days Charged 	Liq. Damages  

Completion Date 	 $0 

 

    

Total Liquidated Damages: 	 $0 

 

Pre-Voucher Summary 
Stockpile 

Project 
	

Voucher No. 	Item Payment 	Adjustment 	Dollar Amount 

 

 

0160-0413, 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 	0006 	 $9,450.40 	 $0.00 	 $9,450.40 

 

 

Voucher Total: 	 $9,450.40 

 

   

Contract ID: .0160-0413 	 Estimate: 6 	 Page 1 of 2 



Construction Pay Estimate Report 

 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

 

12/3/2020 2:12 PM 

FieldManager 5.3c 

Summary 

Current Voucher Total: $9,450.40 Earnings to date: $432,028.60 

-Current Retainage: $0.00 - Retainage to date: $20,000.00 

-Current Liquidated Damages: $0.00 - Liquidated Damages to date: $0.00 

-Current Adjustments: $0.00 - Adjustments to date: $0.00 

Total Estimated Payment: $9,450.40 Net Earnings to date: $412,028.60 

- Payments to date: $402,578.20 

Net Earnings this period: $9,450.40 

Estimate Certification 

I certify the items included on this report constitute my estimate of work completed and due the contractor 
as of the date of this document. 

 

Frank DI'Varicalli, AEW (Date) 

Contract ID: .0160-0413 	 Estimate: 6 
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Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
Estimate: 6 

 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

 

12/3/2020 2:12 PM 

FieldManager 5.3c 

Contract: .0160-0413, 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 
Project: 0160-0413, 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 

Category: 0000, 

Prop. 	 Item 	Authorized Qty.
o 
  Paid

at e 	
Total Qty. 	 Dollar Amt. 

Unit Line 	 Item Description 	 Code 	Qty. 	
Quantity This 

Estimate 	 D 	 Placed 	% Cpt 	Unit Price 	 Paid To Date  

3,245.00000 0005 	_ Audio Visual Record of all Construction 1027051 	 1.000 LS 	 1.000 	 $3,245.00 
Influence Areas 

$14,500.00 0010 	_Bonds, Insurance & Mobilization 	1027051 	 1.000 LS 	 1.000 	

1.000 	100% 

14,500.00000 
Expense- (3% Max) 

0015 	_Tree, Rem 	 2027050 	 2.000 Ea 	 5.000 	

1.000 	100% 

500.00000 

	

300.00000 	
$2,500.00 

24.000 0020 	Dr Structure, Rem 	 2030011 	 23.000 Ea 	

5.000 	250% 

$7,200.00 
0025 	Sewer, Rem, Less than 24 inch 	2030015 	 600.000 Ft 	 754.500

24.000 	104% 

$11,317.50 
116.000 0030 	Sewer, Rem, 24 inch to 48 inch 	2030016 	 60.000 Ft 	

754.500 	126% 	 15.00000 

	

20.00000 	$2,320.00 
5.00000 0035 	Curb and Gutter, Rem 	 2040020 	 100.000 Ft 	 0.000 	

116.000 	193% 

5.00000 0040 	Sidewalk, Rem 	 2040055 	 325.000 Syd 	 $639.00 127.800 

	

275.000 Syd 	

127.800 	39% 

	

9.00000 	$1,242.90 0045 	_ Driveway, Conc, Rem 	 2047011 

0050 	_ Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 	2057021 	 100.000 Cyd 	

138.100 	138.100 	50% 

20.700 9.00000 
0055 	Maintenance Gravel, LM 	 3060021 	 250.000 Cyd 

	

122.200 	

20.700 	21% 

	

15.00000 	
$16,813836..0300 

0060 	Sewer, CI IV, 36 inch, Tr Det B 	4020995 	 60.000 Ft 	 58.000 	

122.200 	49% 

	

10.00000 	
$11,020.00 

0065 	_ Sewer, Post-Construction, CCTV 	4027001 	 1,350.000 Ft 	 0.000 	

58.000 	97% 	 190.00000  

191.50000 0070 	_ Sewer, SDR 23.5 PVC, 10 inch, Tr Det 4027001 	 400.000 Ft 	 695.367.00 
B 	

498.000 	498.000 125% 

0075 	_Sewer, SDR 23.5 PVC, 12 inch, Tr Det 4027001 	 175.000 Ft 	 135.00000 	$29,700.00 220.000 
B 	

220.000 126% 

0080 	_ Dr Structure, Tap, 4 inch - 12 inch 	4027050 	 5.000 Ea 	 5.000 5.000 	100% 	 500.00000 	$2,500.00 
0085 	_External Structure Wrap, 18 inch 	4027050 	 36.000 Ea 	 0.000  520.00000 
0090 	_ Sewer Bulkhead, 6 inch - 12 inch 	4027050 	 10.000 Ea 9.000 	 9.000 	90% 	 200.00000 	$1,800.00 

1 0095 	Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, Modifie 4030004 	 11.000 Ea 	 15.000 	136% 	 200.00000 5.000 $3,000.00 
0100 	Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 2 	4030006 	 1.000 Ea 0.000 	 500.00000 
0105 	Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 	 4030280 	 40.000 Ft  

	

5% 	 1.00000 	 $2.00 
0110 	_ Dr Structure Cover, Catch Basin 	4037050 	 27.000 Ea 	

2.000 

	

29.000 	

2.000 

	

551.00000 	$15,979.00 

$4,080.00 0115 	_ Dr Structure Cover, Manhole 	4037050 	 7.000 Ea 	 8.000 	

29.000 	107% 

510.00000 
0120 	_ Dr Structure Trap, 10 inch 	 4037050 	 16.000 Ea 	 330.00000 

	

4037050 	 6.000 Ea 	

14.000 	
8.000 	114% 

	

14.000 	88% 	 $4,620.00 
0125 	_ Dr Structure Trap, 12 inch 	 8.000 361.00000 	$2,888.00 

4.000 0130 	_ Dr Structure, 24 inch dia w/ Sump 	4037050 	 5.000 Ea 	 4.0008000 	13803%/ 	 1,840.00000 	$7,360.00 
0135 	_ Dr Structure, 36 inch dia IN/ Sump 	4037050 	 18.000 Ea 

	

19.000 19.000 106% 	 2,500.00000 $49,400.00 

Contract: .0160-0413 	 Estimate: 6 
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tkif 	 Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
A 	 Estimate: 6 

12/3/2020 2:12 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: 0160-0413, 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 

Category: 

Prop. 
Line 

0000, 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 
Qty. 	Unit 

Quantity This 
Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0140 _ Dr Structure, Manhole, 48 inch dia 4037050 2.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 100% 2,953.00000 $5,906.00 
0145 Underdrain, Subgrade, 4 inch 4040071 675.000 Ft 218.000 218.000 32% 10.00000 $2,180.00 
0150 HMA, 13A 5010033 30.000 Ton 0.000 270.00000 
0155 _ Cold Patch 5017031 100.000 Ton 24.010 24.010 24.010 24% 200.00000 $4,802.00 
0160 _Joint, Expansion, E2 6027001 50.000 Ft 5.500 5.500 11% 25.00000 $137.50 
0165 _Joint, Expansion, ERG, Modified 6027001 50.000 Ft 26.200 26.200 52% 25.00000 $655.00 
0170 Cement 6030005 1.000 Ton 0.000 50.00000 
0175 Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 6030030 600.000 Ea 22.000 592.000 592.000 99% 5.00000 $2,960.00 
0180 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 6030044 1,450.000 Syd 52.800 1,374.000 1,374.000 95% 75.00000 $103,050.00 
0185 Pavt Repr, Rem 6030080 1,600.000 Syd 52.800 1,374.000 1,374.000 86% 10.00000 $13,740.00 
0190 _ Full Depth Sawcutting 6037001 1,200.000 Ft 25.200 2,106.000 2,106.000 176% 2.00000 $4,212.00 
0195 _Curb Casting 7177050 1.000 Ea 0.000 150.00000 
0200 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch 8010005 275.000 Syd 106.200 106.200 39% 60.00000 $6,372.00 
0205 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 8010007 100.000 Syd 0.000 70.00000 
0210 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 8020038 100.000 Ft 0.000 25.00000 
0215 Detectable Warning Surface 8030010 25.000 Ft 15.000 15.000 60% 40.00000 $600.00 
0220 Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 4 inch 8030034 200.000 Sft 0.000 7.00000 

0225 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 8030044 2,050.000 Sft 1,005.700 1,005.700 49% 6.00000 $6,034.20 
0230 Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch 8030046 600.000 Sft 42.500 42.500 7% 6.00000 $255.00 
0235 Sidewalk, Conc, 8 inch 8030048 100.000 Sft 0.000 8.00000 

0240 _ Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 8 inch 8037010 250.000 Sft 102.800 102.800 41% 9.00000 5925.20 
0245 _ Traffic Control and Maintenance 8127051 1.000 LS 0.750 0.750 75% 10,000.00000 $7,500.00 
0250 _ Surface Restoration, Seeding 8167011 750.000 Syd 0.000 9.00000 

0255 _ Surface Restoration, Sodding 8167011 250.000 Syd 0.000 10.00000 

0260 _ Deliverables - Post CCTV 8267051 1.000 LS 0.000 500.00000 

Contract .0160-0413 	 Estimate: 6 
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Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
Estimate: 6 

 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

 

12/3/2020 2:12 PM 

FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: 0160-0413, 2019 Sewer Open Cut Repair Program 

Category: 0000, 

Prop. 	 Item 	Authorized 
Line 	 Item Description 

	
Code 	Qty. 

0265 	_ Fencing, Remove and Reinstall 	8507050 

Percentage of Contract Completed(curr): 83% 
(total earned to date I total of all authorized work) 

Quantity This 	Qty. Paid 	Total Qty. 	 Dollar Amt. 
Unit 	Estimate 	To Date 	Placed 	% Cpt 	Unit Price 	 Paid To Date  

2.000 Ea 
	

0.000 	 500.00000 

Subtotal for Category 0000: 	432028.60 

Subtotal for Project 0160-0413: 	432028.60 

Total Amount Earned This Estimate: 	 $9,450.40 

Total Amount Earned To Date: 	$432,028.60 

Contract: .0160-0413 
	

Estimate: 6 	 Page 3 of 3 



Sincerely, 

ti kik 	 ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK, INC.  /°C 
CIVIL ENGINEERS 	SURVEYORS 	ARCHITECTS 

,_Qckib„2.37-2e2e- 	c  e. 1-) e C 	o 	Sec.  

Shawn Murphy, Deputy Controller 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Avenue 
Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 

Cons -c Cl-i0 PCI Esf; 

Iii 10 r 

Reference: Bournemouth Water Main Replacement 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
AEW Project No. 0160-0417 

Dear Mrs. Murphy: 

Enclosed please find Construction Pay Estimate No. 4 for the above referenced 
project. For work performed through November 29, 2020 we recommend issuing 
payment for the Net Earnings this Period (see Page 2) in the amount of 
$54,217.65 to Fontana Construction Services, 6340 Sims Drive, Sterling Heights, MI 
48313 

If you have questions or require additional information, please contact our office. 

Ross l'.-Wilberdidg-;-"PE 
Project Manager 

cc: 	Bruce Smith, City Administrator 
Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 
Jeanne Duffy 
Susan Como 
Fontana Construction Services 

-.7 

cksm 612s-r21. 

Engineering Strong Communities Since 1968 



Estimate Estimate Entered Estimate Managing 
No. Date By Type Office 

4 11/29/2020 Michelle Ankawi Semi-Monthly Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

All Contract 
Work Completed 

Construction 
Started Date 

7/24/2020 

Prime Contractor 

Fontana Construction, Inc. 

6340 Sims Drive 

Sterling Heights MI 48313 

Comments 
Current Contract Amount: $850,658.10 
% Completed: 79% 

Construction Pay Estimate Report 

12/3/2020 12:43 PM 
Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	

FieldManager 5.3c 

Contract: .0160-0417, Bournemouth Water Main Replacement 

Item Usage Summary 
Project: Bournemouth, Bournemouth, Raymond & Linville 

Category: 0000, 

Item Description Unit 	Item Code 

	

Prop. Project Item 	Mod. 
Ln. 	Line No. Type 	No. Quantity Item Price Dollar Amount 

_ Proposed Trees Ea 	8157050 0180 	0180 	00 	000 58.000 500.00 $29,000.00 

Sodding Syd 	8160055 0185 	0185 	00 	000 1,941.800 5.00 $9,709.00 

Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch Syd 	8160061 0190 	0190 	00 	000 1,941.800 4.00 $7,767.20 

Water, Sodding/Seeding Unit 	8160090 0195 	0195 	00 	000 1.000 75.00 $75.00 

Subtotal for Category 0000: $46,551.20 

Subtotal for Project Bournemouth: $46,551.20 

Project: 	Easement WMs, 

Category: 	0001, Saddle Ln-Cook 

Prop. Project Item 	Mod. 

Item Description Unit 	Item Code Ln. 	Line No. Type 	No. Quantity Item Price Dollar Amount 

Sidewalk, Rem Syd 	2040055 0325 	0325 	00 	000 18.600 9.00 $167.40 

Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch Sft 	8030044 0350 	0350 	00 	000 167.500 4.50 $753.75 

Sodding Syd 	8160055 0360 	0360 	00 	000 106.600 5.00 $533.00 

Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch Syd 	8160061 0365 	0365 	00 	000 106.600 4.00 $426.40 

Subtotal for Category 0001: $1,880.55 

Category: 	0002, Lakeshore-Shoreham 

Prop. Project Item 	Mod. 

Item Description Unit 	Item Code Ln. 	Line No. Type 	No. Quantity Item Price Dollar Amount 

Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored Ea 	6030030 0420 	0420 	00 	000 36.000 5.00 $180.00 

Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch Syd 	6030042 0425 	0425 	00 	000 55.700 55.00 $3,063.50 

Pavt Repr, Rem Syd 	6030080 0430 	0430 	00 	000 55.700 10.00 $557.00 

Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch Syd 	8160061 0445 	0445 	00 	000 220.600 4.00 $882.40 

Subtotal for Category 0002: $4,682.90 

Contract ID: .0160-0417 
	

Estimate: 4 
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12/3/2020 12:43 PM 

FieldManager 5.3c 

*if 	 Construction Pay Estimate Report 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 

Subtotal for Project Easement WMs: $7,666.45 

Site Method 	Days Charged Site Site Description Liq. Damages 

$0 

$0 

Completion Date 

Total Liquidated Damages: 

00 	SITE NUMBERS SHOULD BE CODED 00 

Stockpile 
Item Payment 	Adjustment Project Voucher No. Dollar Amount 

Bournemouth, Bournemouth, Raymond & Linville 0004 $0.00 $46,551.20 $46,551.20 

Easement 1NMs, 0002 $7,666.45 $0.00 $7,666.45 

Voucher Total: $54,217.65 

$54,217.65 $631,636.97 

$577,419.32 

Net Earnings to date: 

- Payments to date: 

Total Estimated Payment: 

$54,217.65 Net Earnings this period: 

Estimate Certification 

I certify the items included on this 
as of the date of this document. 

report constitute my estimate of work completed and due the contractor 

Page 2 of 2 Estimate: 4 Contract ID: .0160-0417 

Item Usage Summary 
Project: Easement WMs, 
Category: 0003, S. Renaud 

Total Estimated Item Payment: 	 $54,217.65 

Time Charges 

Pre-Voucher Summary 

Prop. Project Item Mod. 
Ln. Line No. Type No. Unit Item Code Quantity 

00 000 	220.600 

Item Price 

5.00 Syd 8160055 	0525 0525 

Subtotal for Category 0003: 

Item Description 

Sodding 

Dollar Amount 

$1,103.00 

$1,103.00 

Summary 

Current Voucher Total: 

-Current Retainage: 

-Current Liquidated Damages: 

-Current Adjustments: 

$54,217.65 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Earnings to date: 

- Retainage to date: 

- Liquidated Damages to date: 

- Adjustments to date: 

$674,169.88 

$42,532.91 

$0.00 

$0.00 

• 

_.„2Poss T . Wilbfi5irOE 

12/3/2020 
(Date) 



0. AN 	 Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
Estimate: 4 

12/3/2020 12'.43 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Contract: .0160-0417, Bournemouth Water Main Replacement 
Project: Bournemouth, Boumemouth, Raymond & Linville 

Category: 
Prop. 
Line 

0000, 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 	 Quantity This 
Qty. 	Unit 	Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0005 _ Audio Visual Record of the 1027051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 3,750.00000 $3,750.00 
Construction Influence Area 

0010 Mobilization, Max 3% 1500001 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 24,000.00000 $24,000.00 
0015 Tree, Rem, 19 inch to 36 inch 2020002 23.000 Ea 16.000 16.000 70% 1,200.00000 $19,200.00 
0020 Tree, Rem, 37 inch or Larger 2020003 2.000 Ea 3.000 3.000 150% 2,000.00000 $6,000.00 
0025 Tree, Rem, 6 inch to 18 inch 2020004 9.000 Ea 18.000 18.000 200% 500.00000 $9,000.00 
0030 Curb and Gutter, Rem 2040020 75.000 Ft 0.000 20.00000 

0035 Sidewalk, Rem 2040055 300.000 Syd 115.240 115.240 38% 9.00000 $1,037.16 

0040 _ Driveway, Rem 2047011 400.000 Syd 86.660 86.660 22% 9.00000 $779.94 

0045 _ Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 2057021 50.000 Cyd 0.000 40.00000 

0050 _ Subgrade Undercutting, Special 2057021 50.000 Cyd 0.000 30.00000 

0055 Ero Con, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 2080020 16.000 Ea 0.000 90.00000 

0060 Aggregate Base, 6 inch 3020016 250.000 Syd 0.000 9.00000 

0065 Maintenance Gravel 3060020 350.000 Ton 0.000 20.00000 

0070 _ External Structure Wrap, 18 inch 4027050 2.000 Ea 0.000 600.00000 

0075 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 2 4030006 4.000 Ea 0.000 350.00000 

0080 Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 4030280 12.000 Ft 0.000 1.00000 

0085 _ Catch Basin Cover, Restricted, GPW 4037050 4.000 Ea 0.000 501.00000 

0090 _ Combined Manhole Cover, GPW 4037050 1.000 Ea 0.000 488.00000 

0095 _ Storm Manhole Cover, GPW 4037050 1.000 Ea 0.000 488.00000 

0100 Hand Patching 5010025 20.000 Ton 0.000 170.00000 

0105 Joint, Expansion, E2 6020207 50.000 Ft 12.600 12.600 25% 20.00000 $252.00 

0110 Joint, Expansion, Erg 6030021 50.000 Ft 0.000 20.00000 

0115 Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 6030030 800.000 Ea 85.000 85.000 11% 5.00000 $425.00 

0120 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch 6030042 295.000 Syd 157.500 157.500 53% 55.00000 $8,662.50 

0125 Pavt Repr, Rem 6030080 295.000 Syd 151.300 151.300 51% 10.00000 $1,513.00 

0130 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch 8010005 400.000 Syd 87.500 87.500 22% 50.00000 $4,375.00 

0135 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 8010007 25.000 Syd 0.000 58.00000 

0140 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det Fl 8020035 75.000 Ft 0.000 25.00000 

Contract: .0160-0417 	 Estimate: 4 
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Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
I 
tit 
	 Estimate: 4 

12/3/2020 12:43 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: Bournemouth, Bournemouth, Raymond & Linville 

Category: 
Prop. 
Line 

0000, 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 
Qty. 	Unit 

Quantity This 
Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0145 Detectable Warning Surface 8030010 25.000 Ft 5.000 5.000 20% 40.00000 $200.00 
0150 Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 8030030 35.000 Ft 0.000 25.00000 

0155 Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 4 inch 5030034 250.000 Sft 0.000 5.00000 

0160 Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 6 inch 8030036 400.000 Sft 0.000 6.00000 

016$ Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 8030044 1800.000 Sft 803.700 803.700 45% 4.50000 $3,616.65 

0170 Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch 8030046 250.000 Sft 25.500 25.500 10% 4.75000 $121.13 

0175 _Traffic Control, Bournemouth, Linville, 
Raymond 

8127051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 2,500.00000 $2,500.00 

0180 _ Proposed Trees 8157050 42.000 Ea 58.000 58.000 58.000 138% 500.00000 $29,000.00 
0185 Sodding 8160055 3,250.000 Syd 1,941.800 1,941.800 1,941.800 60% 5.00000 $9,709.00 

0190 Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 8160061 3,250.000 Syd 1,941.800 1,941.800 1,941.800 60% 4.00000 $7,767.20 

0195 Water, Sodding/Seeding 8160090 79.000 Unit 1.000 1.000 1.000 1% 75.00000 $75.00 

0200 Gate Valve, 6 inch 8230062 5.000 Ea 5.000 5.000 100% 2,000.00000 $10,000.00 

0205 Gate Valve, 12 inch 8230064 1.000 Ea 0.000 2,950.00000 

0210 Gate Well,Rem 8230076 6.000 Ea 5.000 5.000 83% 475.00000 $2,375.00 

0215 Hydrant, Rem 8230091 7.000 Ea 5.000 5.000 71% 475.00000 $2,375.00 

0220 Water Main, 8 inch, Cut and Plug 8230132 2.000 Ea 0.000 327.00000 

0225 Water Main, 12 inch, Cut and Plug 8230134 1.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 100% 440.00000 $440.00 

0230 Water Sery 8230240 5.000 Ea 0.000 800.00000 

0235 Water Serv, Long 8230245 5.000 Ea 0.000 1,500.00000 

0240 Gate Well, 60 inch dia 8230360 6.000 Ea 5.000 5.000 83% 2,900.00000 814,500,00 

0245 Water Shutoff, Adj, Case 2 8230422 4.000 Ea 0.000 100.00000 

0250 Gate Box, Adj, Case 2 8230432 1.000 Ea 0.000 200.00000 

0255 _ Irrigation Pipe, Fum and Install 8237001 650.000 Ft 0.000 0.01000 

0260Water Main, HDPE, DR11, 8 inch, Pipe 8237001 3,200.000 Ft 2,880.000 2,880.000 90% 95.00000 $273,600.00 
Burst 

0265 _ Water Main, Remove 8237001 20.000 Ft 0.000 10.00000 

0270 _ Fire Hydrant Assembly 8237050 7.000 Ea 6.000 6.000 86% 5,100.00000 $30,600.00 

0275 _ Gate Box, Rem 8237050 1.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 100% 500.00000 $500.00 

0280 _ Gate Well Cover, GPW 8237050 6.000 Ea 4.000 4.000 67% 488.00000 $1,952.00 

Contract: .0160-0417 	 Estimate: 4 
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AIL 	 Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
4 	 Estimate: 4 

12/3/2020 12:43 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: Bournemouth, Bournemouth, Raymond & Linville 

Category: 
Prop. 
Line 

0000, 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 	 Quantity This 
Qty. 	Unit 	Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0285 _ Sprinkler Head 8237050 100,000 Ea 0.000 0.01000 
0290 _ Sprinkler Head, Adj 8237050 10.000 Ea 0.000 0.01000 
0295 _ Water Main Connection, 12 inch 8237050 1.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 100% 2,300.00000 $2,300.00 
0300 _ Water Main Connection, 8 inch 8237050 2.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 100% 2,100.00000 $4,200.00 
0305 _ Water Serv, Modified 8237050 105.000 Ea 100.000 100.000 95% 580.00000 $58,000.00 
0310 _ Water Serv, Special 8237050 5.000 Ea 0.000 2,980.00000 
0315 _ Temporary Water Service 8237051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 20,000.00000 $20,000.00 
0320 _ Rubbish Pickup 8507051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 1.00000 $1.00 
0585 _ Sidewalk, Conc. Ramp, 8 inch, 8507010 0.000 Sft 0.000 36.000 0.00000 

	

Subtotal for Category 0000: 	552826.58 

	

Subtotal for Project Bournemouth: 	552826.58 

Project: Easement WMs, 

Category: 

Prop. 
Line 

0001, Saddle Ln-Cook 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 
Qty. 	Unit 

Quantity This 
Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0325 Sidewalk, Rem 2040055 20.000 Syd 18.600 18.600 18.600 93% 9.00000 5167.40 
0330 Ero Con, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 2080020 2.000 Ea 0.000 90.00000 

0335 Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 6030030 25.000 Ea 0.000 5.00000 

0340 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch 6030042 75.000 Syd 0.000 55.00000 

0345 Pavt Repr, Rem 6030080 75.000 Syd 40.000 40.000 53% 10.00000 $400.00 

0350 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 8030044 150.000 Sft 167.500 167.500 167.500 112% 4.50000 $753.75 

0355 _ Traffic Control, Saddle Ln 8127051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 2,500.00000 $2,500.00 

0360 Sodding 8160055 250.000 Syd 106.600 106.600 106.600 43% 5.00000 $533.00 
0365 Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 8160061 250.000 Syd 106.600 106.600 106.600 43% 4.00000 $426.40 
0370 Water, Sodding/Seeding 8160090 7.000 Unit 0.000 75.00000 

0375 Gate Valve, 8 inch 8230062 1.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 100% 2,000.00000 $2,000.00 

Contract: .0160-0417 	 Estimate: 4 
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Category: 0002, Lakeshore-Shoreham 

Prop. 	 Item 	Authorized 	 Quantity This 	Qty. Paid 	Total Qty. 	 Dollar Amt. 

0415 

0420 

0425 

0430 

0435 

0440 

0445 

0450 

0455 

0460 

0465 

Line Item Description Code Qty. 	Unit Estimate To Date Placed % Cpt Unit Price Paid To Date 

Ero Con, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 2080020 4.000 Ea 0.000 90.00000 

Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 6030030 50.000 Ea 36.000 36.000 36.000 72% 5.00000 $180.00 

Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch 6030042 40.000 Syd 55.700 55.700 55.700 139% 55.00000 $3,063.50 

Pavt Repr, Rem 6030080 40.000 Syd 55.700 55.700 55.700 139% 10.00000 $557.00 

_ Traffic Control, Lakeshore 8127051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 2,500.00000 $2,500.00 

Sodding 8160055 250.000 Syd 0.000 5.00000 

Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 8160061 250.000 Syd 220.600 220.600 220.600 88% 4.00000 $882.40 

Water, Sodding/Seeding 8160090 7.000 Unit 0.000 75.00000 

Water Main, 6 inch, Cut and Plug 8230131 2.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 100% 287.00000 $574.00 

_ Water Main, HDPE, DR11, 6 inch, Pipe 8237001 295.000 Ft 0.000 90.00000 
Bur st 
_ Water Main Connection, 6 inch 8237050 2.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 50% 2,100.00000 $2,100.00 

kike. 	 Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
Ava.7 	 Estimate: 4 

12/3/2020 12:43 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Authorized 	 Quantity This 
Qty. 	Unit 	Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed 	% Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

1.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 	100% 475.00000 $475.00 

2.000 Ea 0.000 327.00000 

1.000 Ea 0.000 2,900.00000 

230.000 Ft 230.000 230.000 	100% 95.00000 $21,850.00 

1.000 Ea 0.000 488.00000 

2.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 	50% 2,100.00000 $2,100.00 

2.000 Ea 8.000 8.000 	400% 580.00000 $4,640.00 

Subtotal for Category 0001: 35845.55 

Project: Easement WMs, 

Category: 0001, Saddle Ln-Cook 

Prop. 	 Item 
Line 	 Item Description 	 Code 

0380 	Gate Well,Rem 	 8230076 

0385 	Water Main, 8 inch, Cut and Plug 	8230132 

0390 	Gate Well, 60 inch dia 	 8230360 

0395 	_ Water Main, HDPE, DR11, 8 inch, Pipe 8237001 
Burst 

0400 	_ Gate Well Cover, GPW 	 8237050 

0405 	_ Water Main Connection, 8 inch 	8237050 

0410 	_ Water Serv, Modified 	 8237050 

Subtotal for Category 0002: 	9856.90 

Contract: .0160-0417 	 Estimate: 4 
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Avs, 44r 	 Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
Estimate: 4 

12/3/2020 12:43 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: Easement WMs, 

Category: 
Prop. 
Line 

0003, S. Renaud 

Item Description 
Item 
Code 

Authorized 
Qty. 	Unit 

Quantity This 
Estimate 

Qty. Paid 
To Date 

Total Qty. 
Placed % Cpt Unit Price 

Dollar Amt. 
Paid To Date 

0470 Sidewalk, Rem 2040055 15.000 Syd 13.889 13.889 93% 9.00000 $125.00 

0475 Exploratory Investigation, Vertical 2040080 7.000 Ft 0.000 125.00000 

0480 _ Driveway, Rem 2047011 25.000 Syd 52.650 52.650 211% 9.00000 $473.85 

0485 Ero Con, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 2080020 6.000 Ea 0.000 90.00000 

0490 Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 6030030 50.000 Ea 0.000 5.00000 

0495 Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch 6030042 40.000 Syd 0.000 55.00000 

0500 Pavt Repr, Rem 6030080 40.000 Syd 0.000 10.00000 

0505 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch 8010005 25.000 Syd 0.000 50.00000 

0510 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 8030044 150.000 Sft 0.000 4.50000 

0515 Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch 8030046 100.000 Sft 0.000 4.75000 

0520 _ Traffic Control, S. Renaud 8127051 1.000 LS 1.000 1.000 100% 2,500.00000 $2,500.00 

0525 Sodding 8160055 250.000 Syd 220.600 220.600 220.600 88% 5.00000 $1,103.00 

0530 Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 8160061 250.000 Syd 0.000 4.00000 

0535 Water, Sodding/Seeding 8160090 7.000 Unit 0.000 75.00000 

0540 Gate Valve, 6 inch 8230061 1.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 100% 1,610.00000 $1,610.00 

0545 Gate Well,Rem 8230076 1.000 Ea 1.000 1.000 100% 475.00000 $475.00 

0550 Water Main, 6 inch, Cut and Plug 8230131 1.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 200% 287.00000 $574.00 

0555 Water Main, 8 inch, Cut and Plug 8230132 1.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 200% 327.00000 $654.00 

0560 Gate Well, 60 inch dia 8230360 1.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 200% 2,900.00000 $5,800.00 

0565 _ Water Main, HDPE, DR11, 6 inch, Pipe 8237001 345.000 Ft 635.000 635.000 184% 90.00000 $57,150.00 
Bur st 

0570 _ Gate Well Cover, GPW 8237050 1.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 200% 488.00000 $976.00 

0575 _ Water Main Connection, 6 inch 8237050 1.000 Ea 2.000 2.000 200% 2,100.00000 $4,200.00 

Contract: .0160-0417 	 Estimate: 4 
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Avs 	 Construction Pay Estimate Amount Balance Report 
Estimate: 4 

12/3/2020 12:43 PM 

Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 	 FieldManager 5.3c 

Project: Easement WMs, 

Category: 0003, S. Renaud 

Prop. 	 Item 	Authorized 
Line 	 Item Description 	 Code 	Qty.  

0580 	_ Water Main Connection, 8 inch 	8237050 
	

1.000 Ea 

ubtotal for Project Easement WMs: 	121343.30 

Quantity This 	Qty. Paid 	Total Qty. 	 Dollar Amt. 
Unit 	Estimate 	To Date 	Placed 	% Cpt 	Unit Price 	 Paid To Date 

0.000 	 2,100.00000 

Subtotal for Category 0003: 	75640.85 

Percentage of Contract Completed(curr): 79% 	 Total Amount Earned This Estimate: 	$54,217.65 

(total earned to date / total of all authorized work) 	 Total Amount Earned To Date: 
	

$674,169.88 

Contract: .0160-0417 	 Estimate:4 
	 Page 6 of 6 



147, 	, iC• S 7 -:"F, 	 7 TRIC.K. 
'I, CIVIL. Ei\IGINEFF!.5 SURVEYORS ARCHITECTS 

51301 SCHOENHERR RD. SHELBY TOWNSHIP, MI 48315 

	

Vtf W IN. El 2Wi nc.corn 	0586)726-1234 

INVOICE 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
20025 MACK AVENUE 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236-2397 

November 17, 2020 
Project No: 	0160-0431-0 
Invoice No: 	0128650 

Project 	 0160-0431-0 	 0160-0431 20861-20879 MACK AVE PLAN REV 

FOR: ENGINEERING PLAN REVIEW AND PUBLIC UTILITY AND ROW INSPECTION 
Professional Services from September 28, 2020 to October 25. 2020  
Professional Personnel 

Hours Rate 	 Amount 

1.10 62.00 	 68.20 

2.00 103.00 	 206.00 

2.00 103.00 	 206.00 
5.10 480.20 

480.20 

Current Prior 	To-Date 

480.20 1,287.50 	1,767.70 
5,000.00 
3,232.30 

Total this Invoice $480.20 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
ENGINEERING AIDE II 

MEETINGS 
PRINCIPAL ENGINEER 

ENGINEERING PLAN REVIEW 
LICENSED ENG/SUR/ARC 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Billing Limits 

Total Billings 
Limit 
Remaining 

c.:('n 	\22o 

101-000-5,6 5  
(EscroLk3 - 

V 	Cr% ?rbper -ti c.)) 

--2\Az-cw 

Please include the project number and invoice number on your check. 
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12432.J2.0 

   

Balance Due 	$ 	10,795.00 USD 
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l©E 
Plante & Moran, PLC 

1098 Woodward Avenue 

Detroit, MI 48226-1906 

TeI313.496.7200 

Fax:313.496.7201 

INVOICE 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Plaza Drive 
Grosse Pte. Woods, MI 48236 

Date: 
Client No: 
Invoice No: 
Page: 

November 30, 2020 
64954 

1928851 
1 

For Professional Services Rendered 

Final bill for services rendered in connection with the June 30, 2020 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods financial statement audit engagement: 
City $2,925 

a Municipal Court $300 

10,795.00 

Accounting services provided from September 16 through November 25, 2020 
related to the following (Bill Brickey 14 hours, Josh Yde 29 hours - billed at 
discounted rates): 
$7,570 

Assistance with the following year-end matters: 

Pension and OPEB reporting - GASB 68/75 - Review of actuary reports and 
discussions regarding assumptions, calculations, and proposed changes. 
Assistance with the preparation of the related workaids and 
associated journal entries 

Milk River drainage district activity 
Investment activity and disclosures 
Deferred revenue 
Net position 

Remittance information: 

Check: Wire Transfer: ACH: 

Plante & Moran, PLLC Bank Bank of America Bank of America 
16060 Collections Center Drive Routing/ABA# 026009593 071000039 
Chicago, IL 60693 Bank Address 100 West 33rd Street 1401 Elm Street 2nd Floor 

New York, NY 10001 Dallas, TX 75202 
Account Number 9890996003 9890996003 
Account Name Plante & Moran, PLLC Plante & Moran, PLLC 



Audit Fee Distribution 

20-21 

Budgeted 	1st pmt 	2nd pmt 	3rd pmt 	FINAL 

Funds 	PD 10.6.20 PD 10.20.20 PD 11.10.20 PAYMENT 

To-Date 

Total 

    

101-223-818.000 44,883 8,775 5,015 13,350 10,795 37,935 

101-136-818.000 5,400 0 4,400 1,000 5,400 

202-482-818.000 4,052 0 3,052 1,000 4,052 

203-482-818.000 4,052 0 3,052 1,000 4,052 

226-528-818.000 3,859 0 2,859 1,000 3,859 

365-993-818.000 6,064 0 5,064 1,000 6,064 

592-536-818.000 5,250 0 4,250 1,000 5,250 

632-854-818.000 4,052 0 3,052 1,000 4,052 

640-851-818.000 2,756 0 1,756 1,000 2,756 

80,368 
	

8,775 	32,500 
	

21,350 	10,795 
	

73,420 



   

ell 
MCGRAW MORRIS P.C. )or 

2075 WEST BIG BEAVER 
SUITE 750 

TROY, MI 48084 

248-502-4000 
TAX I.D. #27-1058649 

 

Attn: BRUCE SMITH 
CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
20025 MACK PLAZA 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 

Statement Date: December 4, 2020 

	

Statement No. 	 7377 

	

Account No. 	3184.100 
Page: 1 

RE: FOIA MATTERS 

OUR FILE #3184.1000 

Fees 

Hours 
11/13/2020 	SJB REVIEW FOIA REQUEST REGARDING VIDEO FOOTAGE AND REVIEW 

CASE LAW REGARDING PRODUCTION OF INFORMATION. 

11/19/2020 	SJB TELEPHONE CALL WITH CLIENT REGARDING REQUEST FOR POLICE 
REPORT; REVIEW CASE LAW REGARDING PARTICULARIZED 
JUSTIFICATIONS FOR DENYING REQUEST; PREPARE DRAFT 
RESPONSE TO REQUESTS. 

11/20/2020 	SJB TELEPHONE CALLS WITH J. KOSANKE REGARDING ATTORNEY 
GENERAL REQUEST FOR INFORMATION; REVIEW FOIA REGARDING 
EXEMPTIONS. 

For Current Services Rendered 

Previous Balance 

Total Current Work 

Balance Due 

0.50 87.50 

1.70 297.50 

1.10 192.50 

3.30 577.50 

Rate 
$175.00 

$350.00 

577.50 

$927.50 

Recapitulation 
Timekeeper 
	

Title 	 Hours 
STACY J. BELISLE 
	

Partner 	 3.30 

I 	\ atogo 000 

vAik2_01:z. 



Hallahan & Associates, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

1750 S. Telegraph Road, Suite 202 
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48302-0179 

(248) 731-3089 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
c/o WCA Assessing 
38110 Executive Drive 
Westland, MI 48185\ 

SUMMARY OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Dates Involved: 

Invoice Number: 

Timekeeper Summary: 

November 1-30, 2020 

17914 

Name Hours Rate Fees 
Laura M. Hallahan 0.0 $167.13 $0.00 
Seth A. O'Loughlin 0.6 $167.13 $100.28 
Total 0.6 $100.28 

Expenses: $0.00 

Amount of This Invoice: $100.28 

Previous Balance $0.00 

Amount Due: $100.28 

icazs; 



Hallahan & Associates, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

1750 S. Telegraph Road, Suite 202 

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48302-0179 
(248) 731-3089 

Email 	
December 1, 2020 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
c/o WCA Assessing 
Aaron P. Powers, MMAO, Managing Director 
38110 Executive 
Westland, MI 48185 

Please Include Invoice No. 
with your payment 

Invoice No.17914 

$100.28 

Professional services rendered through November 30, 2020 

Hours Amount 

DRSN Real Estate GP LLC 20-001648 

Received and reviewed draft of motion to hold case in abeyance; edit and return 
to petitioner; sign final version of draft and send to petitioner for filing; review 
confirmation of filing and calendar for entry of order. 
Received and reviewed order holding case in abeyance; note conditions of 
abeyance; update file. 

Subtotal: 

Subtotal of charges 

Professional services rendered 

11/03/20 SAO 

11/04/20 SAO 

Timekeeper Summary 
Name 

0.50 83.57 

0.10 16.71 

0.60 100.28 

$100.28 

0.60 $100.28 

Hours Rate 
Seth A. O'Loughlin 	 0.60 	167.13 

Previous balance 

Accounts receivable transactions 

11/19/2020 Payment received from City of Grosse Pointe Woods. Check No. 058706. 

Total payments and adjustments 

AMOUNT DUE 	 $100.28 

$83.57 

($83.57) 

($83.57) 



Pc\ - 

For professional services rendered 

Previous balance 

11/10/2020 Payment - thank you. Check No. 58726 

Balance due 

9.30 	$2,325.00 

— $3,175.75 

($1,925.75) 

$3,55.00 

-1,20 

‘k!-91'11L  

  

ROSATI, SCHULTZ, JOPPICH & AMTSBUECHLER, P.C. 

27555 Executive Drive, Suite 250 
Farmington Hills, MI 48331 

(248) 489-4100 Tax ID# 38-3107356 

INA 

 

December 9, 2020 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
Attn: Bruce Smith, City Adminsitrator 	 Invoice # 	 1074839 
20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods MI 48236 

In Reference To: Jana Brownell, et al vs. City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

Professional Services Rendered Through November 30, 2020 

11/25/2020 SPJ 
Continue working on draft legal opinion 
correspondence to City Council 

	

Hrs/Rate 	Amount 

	

3.80 
	

950.00 
250.00/hr 

	

11/30/2020 SPJ 	Continue work on supplemental legal opinion letter to 
City Council 

	

SPJ 	Work on drafting of notice letter 

	

TRS 	Work on legal opinion 

2,70 
250.00/hr 

2.30 
250.00/hr 

0.50 
250,00/hr 

675.00 

575.00 

125.00 

Rosati, Schultz, Joppich & Amtsbuechler, P.C. 



Jana Brownell, et al vs. City of Grosse Pointe Woods 	 Page 	2 

Please include your Invoice Number on your payment. Thank you. 

Rosati, Schultz, Joppich & Amtsbuechler, P.C. 



  

KELLER THOMA 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

/Di 

 

 

COUNSELORS AT LAW 

26555 EVERGREEN 
SUITE 550 

SOUTFIFIELD, MICHIGAN 48076 
313.965.7610 

FAX 313.965.4480 
www.kellerthoma.com   

FEDERAL I.D. 38-1996878 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 Mack Plaza 

Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

Attention: Bruce Smith, City Manager 

   

December 01, 2020 
Client: 	 000896 
Matter: 	 000000 
Invoice #: 	119615 

REGARDING: GENERAL MATTERS 

For professional services rendered and expenses incurred relative 
to the above matter: 

TOTAL 
	

$3,088.75 

to a motcoo.  

‘q' 753g: 



DEC 1  ?fl 
KELLER THOMA 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

COUNSELORS AT LAW 
26555 EVERGREEN 

SUITE 1240 
SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN 48076 

313.965.7610 
FAX 313.965.4480 
www.kellerthoma.com   

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

Attention: Bruce Smith, City Manager 

FEDERAL I.D. 38-1996878 

December 01, 2020 
Client: 	000896 
Matter: 	000000 
Invoice #: 	119615 

Page: 

RE: GENERAL MATTERS 

For Professional Services Rendered through November 30, 2020 

DATE ATTY DESCRIPTION HOURS 

11/2/2020 GPK Attention to review of documents and telephone calls from Mr. 0.50 
Tomassi regarding employee matter. 

11/2/2020 GSR Attention to preparation of employee agreement and correspondence 
and telephone discussion with pension attorney regarding the same. 

1.50 

11/2/2020 TLF Attention to preparation of investigation report and correspondence to 1.25 
Mr. Smith. 

11/3/2020 GSR Correspondence with Mr. Smith regarding grievance settlement. 0.25 

11/4/2020 TLF Telephone call from Mr. Smith regarding investigation report and 
recommendations regarding the employee matter. 

0.50 

11/5/2020 TLF Telephone call from Mayor Novilke regarding investigation 
report/closed session; telephone call from Mr. Berschback regarding 

1.25 

Council session; research regarding OMA; telephone call to Mr. 
Berschback regarding the employee matter. 

11/6/2020 GSR Telephone call and correspondence from Mr. Smith regarding 
employee grievance; telephone call from the Mayor regarding the 
same. 

0.75 

11/9/2020 TLF Telephone call from Mr. Smith regarding LCA and meeting with 
employee; telephone call from Mr. Berschback regarding closed 
session for employee; preparation of LCA; preparation for and 
attendance at closed session via Zoom; attendance at City Council 
general meeting. 

3.50 

11/9/2020 KEJ Attention to preparation and drafting of last chance agreement. 1.50 



KELLER THOMA 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

Attention: Bruce Smith, City Manager 

December 01, 2020 
Client: 	000896 
Matter: 	000000 
Invoice #: 	119615 

Page: 	 2 

RE: 	GENERAL MATTERS 

DATE ATTY DESCRIPTION 	 HOURS 
11/10/2020 	TLF 	Attention to receipt and review of correspondence from Mr. Smith with 	1.75 

employee's application for LTD; telephone call from Mr. Berschback 
regarding settlement negotiations with employee; telephone 
conference with Mr. Smith and Mr. Berschback; receipt and review of 
draft separation agreement and correspondence from Mr. Smith and 
employee regarding termination/LTD. 

11/11/2020 	TLF 	Attention to preparation of Separation Agreement for employee; 	 1.00 
telephone conference with Mr. Smith and Mr. Berschback regarding 
same; preparation of final Separation Agreement. 

11/12/2020 	TLF 	Telephone call from Mr. Berschback regarding Separation Agreement 	0.50 
and settlement negotiations with employee; telephone call from Mr. 
Smith regarding employer response. 

11/16/2020 	TLF 	Telephone call from Mr. Berschback regarding status of settlement 	 1.75 
negotiations with employee; review of Unum application form; 
telephone call to Mr. Smith regarding employer's statement on Unum 
form; preparation for and attendance at closed session. 

11/17/2020 	TLF 	Attention to receipt and review of correspondence from Mr. 	 1.00 
Berschback with draft Separation Agreement for employee; telephone 
call to Mr. Berschback regarding same; review of correspondence 
from Mr. Berschback to employee's attorney. 

11/19/2020 	GSR 	Telephone call from Mr. Schulte regarding employee matter. 	 0.25 
11/19/2020 	TLF 	Attention to receipt and review of correspondence from Mr. 	 0.50 

Berschback with signed Separation Agreement; telephone call to Mr. 
Smith regarding the employee matter. 

Total Services 	$3,083.75 

ATTORNEY HOURS RATE AMOUNT 

TLF THOMAS L. FLEURY 13.00 $175.00 $2,275.00 

KEJ KATHRYN E. JONES 1.50 $160.00 $240.00 

GPK GARY P. KING 0.50 $175.00 $87.50 

GSR GOURI SASHITAL 2.75 $175.00 $481.25 



KELLER THOMA 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

Attention: Bruce Smith, City Manager 

December 01, 2020 
Client: 	000896 
Matter: 	000000 
Invoice #: 	119615 

Page: 	 3 

RE: 	GENERAL MATTERS 

DISBURSEMENTS 

11/11/2020 	Document Reproduction 	 $5.00 

Total Disbursements 	$5.00 

Total Amount Due 	 $3,088.75 



/05 

TIME 

I lad t ''Itt(24) ibtiP 
CHARLES T. BERSCHBACK 

ATTORNEY AT LAW 

24053 EAST JEFFERSON AVENUE 

ST. CLAIR SHORES, MICHIGAN 45080-1530 

(588) 777-0400 
FAX (586) 777-0430 
blbwlaw@yahoo.com  

November 30, 2020 

Bruce Smith 
City Administrator 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, Ml 48236 

RE: November Billing 

DATE 	 DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES  

11.02.2020 Work on open carry election issue (.50); work on Municipal Court cases and review of 
renewal of Indigent Defense contract (.50); work on City Attorney file all calls and edits to 
letter to M/C (1.00) 

11.03.2020 Preparation for and Zoom meeting Tomlinson/Schultz (.75); Municipal Court calls, emails, 
review of warrant (.50); TCs, emails, re. employment issues (.50) 

11.04.2020 Report review, TCs new dog bite case (.50); Municipal Court Zoom docket (1.50); attendance 
at GLWA meeting (.25) 

11.05.2020 TCs, review of Municipal Court cases (.75); TCs BS, BN, LH, miscellaneous emails & calls, 
(.25); TCs, research on closed session items (2.75) 

11.06.2020 Work on Council meeting agenda items and letters to M/C; TCs, meeting with BS and CB 
(3.00); work on OMA materials (.25); attendance at GPW Municipal Court case, TCs GT and 
other cases (.50); meeting re. PSO Arthur (.50); review of cross connection agreement and 
email (.25) 

11.07.2020 TCs on agenda items (.50) 

11.08.2020 TC on agenda items (.25) 

11.09.2020 TCs, emails on closed session, preparation for closed session (2.75); review of new warrant, 
TC (.25); TC resident on tax penalty; email review and TCs re. Conigliaro (.50); preparation 
for and attendance at Council meeting, follow up calls (2.75) 

	

\ CA ',A ICJ 	 (114i .2n 

	

Olato 	. 103 	11-44t,7_6 

Sim 	WV2.;32i-3 	 tA I tol ,t53 

2.00 

1.75 

2.25 

3,75 

4.50 

0.50 

0.25 

6.25 



11.10.2020 All follow up on CB file, draft of agreement, TCs (2.00); two new warrant reviews, DVD review 
(.75); continued work on CB file, calls with TF, BS,CB (1.00) 	 3.75 

11.11.2020 Conference call with BS and Tom Fluery; review of agreement, revisions, email to CB (2.50); 
finalization of OMA remote meeting letter and resolution (.50); review of Municipal Court files 
and new warrant (1.50) 	 4.50 

11.12.2020 TCs, work on separation agreement (3.00); continued work on warrant authorizations (.25); 
TCs and response to election inquiry from resident (.25) 	 3.50 

11.13.2020 TC GT; revisions to generator ordinance draft (.50); TCs on Separation Agreement (.75); 
review of Getac body cam proposal, draft contract (.50) 	 1.75 

11.16.2020 Work on CB issue, TCs attorney, Tom Fluery, etc. (4.00); TCs and prep for meeting (1.00); 
review of new Municipal Court warrants; TCs attorneys re: pretrials (.50); review of GLWA 
Amendment No. 4 (.25); review of attorney retainer letters, calls; attendance at COW and 
Council meeting (1.75) 	 7.50 

11.17.2020 Finalized separation agreement, all calls with BS, Tom Fluery, all calls with CB's attorney 
(4.00); work on employment issues re: new Treasurer; TCs Municipal Court docket (1.00) 	5.00 

11.18.2020 Attendance at Municipal Court Zoom; TC JK, review of bodycam contract and Code 
research; TCs LH, FS, review of subrogation notice, denial letter sent (4.00); TC BN re: 
agenda items, email to Deputy Clerk (.25); additional calls on Municipal Court cases (.25) 

	
4.50 

11.19.2020 Work on CB file (.50); review of Municipal Court docket, prep of offers and calls with 
attorneys (1.25); meeting with BS and miscellaneous pending issues; TCs GT (.50); 
file review/reply to Plante Moran final audit inquiry (.25); review of 3 new warrants (audio/ 
video); TC Det Bur (1.00); TC BN and review of LH email (.50) 

	
4.00 

11.20.2020 TCs re: ordinance violation, TCs re: COW agenda, review of new COVID orders and 
issues (1.50); TCs on Municipal Court, continued review of warrant request, TC GT, 
resident on tickets (1.00) 
	

2.50 

11.21.2020 Meeting with CB, follow up (.50) 	 0.50 

11.23.2020 TC JK; Municipal Court emails (.50); review of annual Wayne County Permits and email 
(.25); work on COVID office issues (.25); review of agenda items, resumes for COW (.50); 
TCs BN, work on personnel issues (.75); initial review of letter re: Lipke Road prop (.25); 
TCs, attendance at Special Council meeting and COW (1.75) 

	
4.25 

11.24.2020 Calls and letters re. Special Council meeting; Charter research, TC (2.00); Municipal Court 
review of new warrant, TC Det. And witness, other miscellaneous Municipal Court calls (.75); 
TCs, email SM, email (.25); review of MI case law re. City Attorney records (.50) 

	
3.50 



11.25.2020 Attendance at Municipal Court docket (1.25) 	 1.25 

11.30.2020 Municipal Court docket review and TCs (2.25); calls, emails with SM and BS re. CB; letter 
to Municipal Court on City Attorney agreements (.50); TC BN pending issues; work on SM file, 
meeting with BC (1.00) 
	

3.75 

CTB = 71.50 hours at $155.00 per hour 
TOTAL DUE: 
	

$11,082.50 

M/C - Mayor and Council 
Det. Bur. - Detective Bureau 
ED - Eric Dunlap 
FS - Frank Schulte 

TC - Telephone 
BS - Bruce Smith 
PC - Planning Commission 
JK - Dir. John Kosanke 
DV - Domestic Violence 

Breakdown  
General 
Municipal Court 
Building/Planning Commission 
Tax Tribunal  

GT - Gene Tutag 
LH - Lisa Hathaway 
CB - Cathrene Behrens 
TT - Tax Tribunal 
SM - Shawn Murphy 

55.75 hours 
15.75 hours 
0 hours 
0 hours 
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